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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE (DR DAVID V K CHAO) 
(July 2019 to June 2020) 
 

The year of 2019/20 has been both challenging and rewarding. Sometimes 

even the best laid plans could be affected by unexpected circumstances, 

but there are always more solutions than problems if we try hard enough. 

No one could have imagined that the once-in-a-century COVID-19 

pandemic would strike upon us this year and the consequences that would 

follow. While many of our regular Collegial activities were kept going, some 

had to adopt new formats of delivery, and others were postponed. 

 

Back in September 2019, the first District Health Centre (DHC) in Hong Kong was officially opened in 

Kwai Tsing. It was an important step of the government putting great efforts in enhancing primary 

healthcare services in Hong Kong. The DHCs aim at encouraging the public to develop a healthy 

lifestyle, be engaged in disease prevention, identify health issues at an early stage, manage chronic 

diseases, and improve self-care ability through community rehabilitation programme and patient 

empowerment. With services focused on primary, secondary and tertiary prevention, the DHCs 

emphasise district-based medical-social collaboration and public-private partnership. After the 

establishment of the first DHC in Kwai Ching District, the government has planned to set up DHCs 

gradually in all 18 districts in Hong Kong.  

 

 

 

 

During the last weekend of October 2019, delegates from Hong Kong attended the annual Conference 

of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners (RACGP) - GP19. The theme of the conference 

was “Your patients, your community, your solutions”. A wide variety of presentations and symposia, 

from the traditional auditorium style presentations to the interactive case study discussions, were held 

under the sunshine and breeze. Associate Professor Dr Mohammad Husni Jamal, President of 

Academy of Family Physicians of Malaysia (AFPM), and I were invited to present on how our Continuing 

Professional Development (CPD) programmes in our localities have evolved over the years. Our 

presentations were delivered during the International College Case Study session in the afternoon on 

24 October 2019. And the host of the session was our dear friend, Dr Mark Miller, former RACGP 

Opening of District Health Centre in Kwai Tsing 



Censor-in-Chief. My given topic was, “The CPD 

programme in Hong Kong and its contribution to a 

‘Healthy GP’ and ‘Healthy Patient”, while that of 

Associate Professor Dr Mohammad Husni Jamal was, 

“The role of Academy of Family Physicians of Malaysia 

(AFPM) in the enhancement of primary care in 

Malaysia”. Hong Kong and Malaysia have our similarities 

and differences in terms of demographics trends, 

disease patterns, family doctors’ training, assessment 

and funding systems. But we both face a tremendous 

increase in healthcare burden due to ageing populations 

and increasing prevalence of non-communicable 

diseases in our communities. Therefore, we can learn 

from each other and reflect on different models of care 

being delivered in our two localities.   

 

By the end of 2019, we were most honoured to co-organise our annual Hong Kong Primary Health Care 

Conference (HKPCC) with the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine 

Conference and the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019. The Conference was initially a 

Tripartite Congress. After almost over a year’s planning and preparations, it was unfortunate that the 

Academy of Medicine of Malaysia (AMM) and the Academy of Medicine, Singapore, could not join as 

originally planned due to the unforeseen social circumstances in Hong Kong at that time. We look 

forward to our opportunities for future collaborations to arise soon. With the tremendous support from 

all the participants and guests, the joint Conference was successfully held on 6 – 8 December 2019. 

The theme was “People-Centred Care: Towards Value-Based Innovations”, aiming at addressing the 

future directions of healthcare improvement and development in provision of patient-oriented clinical 

care. It was a valuable platform for healthcare experts and practitioners from different specialties across 

the healthcare sectors to share their experiences and insights. The Halnan Lecture titled “Knocking 

Down Barriers to Inclusive Healthcare” was delivered by Mr. Ricky MK Chu, Chairman of Equal 

Opportunities Commission, Hong Kong. Prof Doris Young, Division of Family Medicine, National 

University of Singapore, also shared with us during the Conference, as in previous HKPCCs over the 

Dr David Chao with Hong Kong Delegates at GP19 

Dr David Chao with  
Prof John Murtagh at GP19 



years. The plenary session titled, “Enhancing Primary Care in Hong Kong through the Provision of 

Integrated People-Centred Primary Care in District Health Centres” was delivered by Dr Donald Li, 

President of World Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA). Dr Li shared with us the concepts behind 

the setting up of DHCs and the challenges on how DHCs could help fulfil the delivery of comprehensive 

healthcare needs to the people and community in Hong Kong.  

 

 

While members were planning training activities for the new 2020-2022 specialist CME/CPD triennium 

cycle commenced at the beginning of 2020, here came the COVID-19 outbreak. In response to the 

ongoing crisis, some of the training activities had to be reviewed and adjusted. We were most grateful 

towards our Web Committee, Board of Education and College secretariat! Our College quickly found 

the alternative method and started to arrange CME activities via videoconferencing. The online CME 

activities received many positive feedbacks and were very welcomed by our members.  

 

The COVID-19 was characterised as COVID-19 pandemic by the World Health Organisation (WHO) in 

March 2020. According to the online survey conducted in January/February 2020 among our members 

on family doctors’ preparedness in serving the public during the COVID-19 pandemic, the family doctors 

in Hong Kong from both private and public sectors were most willing and prepared to provide first 

contact clinical service to the community during the crisis. We, family physicians and primary healthcare 

practitioners, played the role as frontline defenders in the battle against COVID-19. We are always in 

the forefront, and we are also the ones who manage the aftermath of the emergencies. Prevention is 

one of the essential elements of primary care practice and family doctors are most appropriately placed 

to guide people in the community to have better preventive activities so that they can stay healthy in 

the community. Prevalence of asymptomatic SARS-CoV-2 infection might be a significant factor in the 

rapid progression of the COVID-19 pandemic. Members’ contribution in arranging COVID-19 test for all 

patients presenting with any symptoms were much appreciated. As the combat went on, the number of 

patients confirmed with the diagnosis had soared. The manpower, the hospital services and the 

healthcare system were pushed to their limits. As family doctors have already built up rapport with the 

patients and hence are in the best position to continue looking after the patients in the community, 

Opening Ceremony of HKAM Conference and HKPCC Conference 2019 



including people returned after hospitalisation and those with chronic diseases unable to attend the 

usual follow-up appointments due to various situational reasons. 

 

The COVID-19 pandemic brought us challenges and impetus for change. Many usual practice and 

habits were becoming impractical during the outbreak. Surgical masks have become one of the daily 

necessities without which we cannot go out. We practise proper hand hygiene and become more aware 

of personal and environmental hygiene than ever. Our personal health, the healthcare systems, the 

economy… etc. are being challenged by this unforeseeable outbreak of the coronovirus. Yet, the role 

and contribution of family doctors remain unchanged. We stand firm in the community looking after 

patients in need, we go to quarantine and triage stations to help screening the patients. We follow up 

the patients for their medical, social and psychological needs in their own environment where they are 

familiar with. We celebrated the World Family Doctor Day (WFDD) on 19 May 2020. WONCA proposed 

the best-fit theme to our role for 2020 WFDD, “Family doctors on the front line”. To celebrate family 

doctors’ contribution in the crisis, various video clips and photographs collections were compiled with 

the help of our College Council and our members. They were shown via our College’s usual channels, 

e.g. College website, Facebook, etc. They were shared with WONCA member orgainisations and 

various medical institutions in different localities. It was a remarkable WFDD for all of us. 

 

With the wholehearted dedication and active participation from our Censors, Executives, Council 

members, College members and our secretariat, the Collegial events have been run very smoothly over 

the last twelve months despite the various challenges along the way. I would like to take this opportunity 

to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of you! 

 

Please keep well and stay safe! 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr David V K CHAO 

President 
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HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE (DR WILLIAM C W WONG)  

(July 2019 to June 2020) 

 

It has been really a difficult year for the College and the Secretariat.  

 

The first District Health Centre (DHC) was officially opened in Kwai Tsing in 

September 2020. The Kwai Tsing DHC is a pilot scheme with a new 

operation mode and funding mechanism from the Government, which will 

be gradually extended in all 18 districts. Primary care is the first port of care 

to provide high quality continuing care to individuals and families. We look 

forward to a more efficient model of public-private partnership and medical-

social collaboration in providing access to primary healthcare services in 

the community, as well as to enhance public awareness of a healthy lifestyle, disease prevention and self-

management of health. 

 

We were most honoured to be invited by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine to co-organise the 4th AMM-

AMS-HKAM Tripartite Congress cum 53rd Singapore-Malaysia Congress of Medicine & Hong Kong Primary 

Care Conference 2019. Unfortunately, representatives from the Academy of Medicine of Malaysia (AMM) 

and the Academy of Medicine, Singapore (AMS) could not join us for the Tripartite Congress. The 

Organising Committee thus made necessary changes to the programmes and to rename the Congress as 

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Conference & Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019. Despite these 

changes, the Conference was successfully held with tremendous support from all the participants and 

guests. It was indeed a valuable opportunity with more than 600 participants including medical practitioners, 

nurses and allied health professionals sharing their knowledge and skills on this happy event. 

 

In the past, we would end a year’s work by celebrating it in the Annual Dinner, which was one of the most 

important events of the College. This year (2019), again thank you for the members’ understanding, we had 

to cancel the Annual Dinner to avoid unforeseen circumstances due to the recent social activities. 

 

COVID-19 attacked Hong Kong in January 2020 with now over 40 million people infected worldwide. In 

order to reduce the general risk of transmission, the College had been proactively adopting the online 

conferencing platform for conducting our CME/CPD activities during the outbreak. The Research 

Committee launched an online survey evaluated the preparedness of family doctors during the early phase 

of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak in Hong Kong. All members of the College were 

invited to participate between 31 January 2020 and 3 February 2020. Family doctors from both public and 

private sectors demonstrated preparedness and willingness to serve the community at the COVID-19 

outbreak. It was found that there was a need for support from the government to secure PPE supply and 

institute public health interventions. The study was published in Hong Kong Medical Journal in the June 

2020 issue. 

 

COVID-19 affected the annual plan and the subsequent events of the College, the world has been 

transformed to virtual life in a rapidly progress with all our meetings and events held online. I would take 

the opportunity to thank all the contributions from our dedicated fellows, broads and committee members, 

particularly my sincere gratitude to the Secretariat and Ms Erica So, our General Manager, for their hard 

work to make all these events run smoothly throughout the difficult time.  

 

We hope the world get well and get over from the COVID-19 soon. 

 

 

 

Dr William C W Wong 

Honorary Secretary  
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BOARD OF CONJOINT EXAMINATION 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

Chairman:  Dr CHAN Hung Chiu  

Members:  Dr IP Pang Fei       (Chief Examiner &  

          OSCE Case Writing Subcommittee Coordinator) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim      (KFP Coordinator) 

 Dr Kinson K S LAU      (Deputy KFP Coordinator) 

 Dr KUNG Kenny      (AKT* Coordinator, to December 2019) 

 Dr. Cecilia Y M FAN      (AKT* Coordinator, from January 2020 onwards) 

 Dr NGAI Ka Ho      (Deputy AKT* Coordinator, to December 2019) 

 Dr. Maria K W LEUNG      (Deputy AKT* Coordinator, from January 2020 onwards) 

 Dr Billy S H CHUI      (OSCE Coordinator) 

 Dr CHAN Wing Yan      (Deputy OSCE Coordinator) 

 Dr Barry T F BIEN 

 Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

 

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 Dr William C W WONG     

    

Board of Censors: Prof Cindy L K LAM       (Chief Censor) 

 Dr Stephen K S FOO      (Censor) 

 Prof Donald K T LI      (Censor) 

 

Staff: Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Suki Y C LUNG    (Administrative Executive) 

 

*Multiple Choice Questions (MCQ) has been renamed as Applied Knowledge Test (AKT) since 2018 

Panel of Examiners: 

(A) Active Examiners 

Dr Eva T K AU 

Dr AU YEUNG Shiu Hing 

Dr Barry T F BIEN 

Dr CHAN Hung Chiu 

Dr Patrick H W CHAN 

Dr Carroll K L CHAN 

Dr CHAN King Hong 

Dr Kitty K C CHAN 

Dr CHAN Kwok Wai 

Dr CHAN Laam 

Dr CHAN Man Hung 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr Eddie T CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wan Wai 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr Thomas Y L CHAN 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr Andrew Y H CHAN 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr CHAU Kai Man 

Dr CHENG Michael 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha 

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr Cindy P S CHEUNG 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man 

Dr Paul W K CHEUNG 

Dr Florence Y L CHEUNG 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man 

Dr CHING Kam Wing 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

Dr Daniel W S CHU 

Dr Billy S H CHUI 

Dr John T N CHUNG 

Dr Anita W M FAN 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

Dr Elsie O S FANG 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony 

Dr Stephen K S FOO 

Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr HO Kin Sang 

Dr Steven Y K HO 

Dr HUI King Wai 

Dr Wilson K S HUI 

Dr Eric M T HUI 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

Dr HUNG Wai Yin 

Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sui Wah 

Dr Silvia S M KAM 

Dr KAN Chi Ho 

Dr KO Wai Kit 

Dr KONG Che Wan 

Dr Albert Y F KONG 

Dr KUNG Kenny 

Dr Betty K M KWAN 

Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr Michael C H KWOK 

Dr Mary B L KWONG 

Dr Johnny C Y LAM 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr LAM Hon Man 

Prof Cindy L K LAM 

Dr LAM Paul 

Dr Catherine T M LAM 

Dr LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr LAM Wing Wo 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr Kinson K S LAU 

Dr LAU Po Shan 

Dr Tony C K LEE 

Dr Glenn K L LEE 

Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr LEE Man Kei 

Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

Dr LEUNG Gin Pang 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr Sandy M H LEUNG 

Dr Violet T M LEUNG 

Dr Dana S M LO 
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Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr NG Mei Yee 

Dr NGAI Bernard 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr NGAN Sze Yuen 

Dr PANG Siu Leung 

Dr SHEK Chun Chiu 

Dr SHEK Hon Wing 

Dr SIN Ka Ling 

Dr Gloria C Y SO 

Dr TAM Ho Shan 

Dr TAM John Hugh 

Dr Tammy K W TAM 

Dr TAM Kit Ping 

Dr TONG Leon George 

Dr TONG Po Hei 

Dr TSE Hing Choi 

Dr Keith K K TSE 

Dr TSIM Koon Lan 

Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Dr Gene W W TSOI 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 

Dr WAN King Tung 

Dr WONG Chak Tong 

Dr Roger C K WONG 

Dr WONG Chi Lung 

Dr WONG Chuen Ho 

Dr WONG Kwok Ho 

Dr Marcus M S WONG 

Dr WONG Nai Ming 

Dr Amy O Y WONG 

Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr WONG Pak Kin 

Dr WONG Suk Ching 

Dr Nerrissa S C WU 

Dr WU Tsz Yuen 

Dr YAU Lai Mo 

Dr Solomon T L YEUNG 

Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

Dr YIU Ming Pong 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

Dr YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr Frances S K YU

(B)  Examiners 

Dr Dawn H F AI 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

Dr CHAN Man Li 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak 

Dr Mark S H CHAN 

Dr CHAN Suk Yin 

Dr David S L CHAN 

Dr Dickson Y S CHAN 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan 

Dr CHEUNG Yu 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr CHOY Lai Chun 

Dr FU Sau Nga 

Dr HO Kam Wai 

Dr Linda Y F HUI 

Dr Andrew K K IP 

Dr Hilary C S KU 

Dr KWOK Chi Sum 

Dr LAI Wing Yiu 

Dr Stanley K H LAM 

Dr LAM Pui 

Prof LAM Tai Pong 

Dr LAM Tsan Augustine 

Dr LAU Tai Wai 

Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Prof LEE Albert 

Dr LEE Wang Yat 

Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG 

Dr LI Heung Wing 

Prof Donald K T LI 

Dr LI Yim Chu 

Dr LIANG Jun 

Dr Raymond C H LO 

Dr LUK Wan 

Dr NG Chun Bor 

Dr Catherine S W NG 

Dr NG Ventura Lorna 

Dr Monica P S SHUM 

Dr SIU Pui Yi 

Dr SO Kon Ping 

Dr SO Ping Roger 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO 

Dr TSUI Kwok Biu 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

Dr WAN Wing Fai 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr YUEN Shiu Man

(C) Trainee Examiners 

Dr CHEUK Christina 

Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN 

Dr TAM Wah Kit 

Dr TAM Yick Sin 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr George T W TSE 

Dr WONG Fai Ying 

Dr WONG Man Kin 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam

(D)  Case-writers 

Dr Barry T F BIEN 

Dr CHAN Man Hung 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr CHENG Michael 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

Dr Billy S H CHUI 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr Wilson K S HUI 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sui Wah 

Dr KUNG Kenny 

Dr Catherine T M LAM 

Dr LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr Kinson K S LAU 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr SIU Pui Yi 

Dr Gloria C Y SO 

Dr TAM Ho Shan 

Dr TSIM Koon Lan 

Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Dr WONG Chak Tong 

Dr WONG Chi Lung 

Dr WONG Fai Ying 

Dr WONG Man Kin 

Dr WU Tsz Yuen 

Dr YAU Lai Mo 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

 

The Examination 

The format of the 33rd Conjoint Examination 2019 was the same as in previous years, consisting of both Written and Clinical Examinations. 

Preparatory works for both segments started early from the beginning of the year. Thanks to the tremendous contributions of our Board 

members, our case writers and all our examiners. 
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Workshops for Examiners 

 1st Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 14 July 2019 
(Sunday) 

 2nd Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 11 August 2019 
(Sunday) 

 
 Workshops on Standard Setting for KFP exam paper 
 

11 August 2019 
(Sunday) 

 
 Workshop on Standard Setting for AKT exam paper 
 

18 & 26 August 2019 
(Sunday, Monday) 

 
 KFP Marking Sessions 
 

16 & 17 August 2019 
(Friday & Saturday) 

  
 Case-writing Meeting for AKT 13 January 2019 

(Sunday) 

 Case-writing Group Meetings for OSCE February, May - August 2019 
 

 3rd Examiner Training Workshop and On-site Examiners’ Rehearsal for OSCE 
(Cancelled) 

6 October 2019 
(Sunday) 

Information Seminar and Rehearsal for Candidates 

An information seminar for candidates sitting the clinical segment was organized on 16 June 2019. 18 candidates attended. The purpose 

of the seminar was to provide first-hand information to the candidates on the various aspects of the examination (including the logistics, 

expectations, marking and standard setting methods, and so on), in order to help them become better prepared for the examination and 

to minimize their anxiety and misunderstandings. Interactive sessions with video-taped scenarios were also conducted. 

 

On-site rehearsal for the candidates on 6 October 2019 was cancelled because of the unpredictable social and traffic conditions on that 

Sunday in Hong Kong. 

Number of candidates 

There were altogether a total of 79 candidates sitting for this year’s examination, with 75 candidates of Category I and 4 Category II 

respectively.  

 

47 candidates sat for the Written Segments (46 Cat I and 1 Cat II candidates), while 34 candidates sat for the Clinical Examination (30 

Cat I and 4 Cat II candidates).  

 

The total numbers of candidates for the years from 2010 to 2019: 

 

 

The Conjoint Fellowship Examination 

Written Segments: 

AKT 11 August 2019 (Sunday) Venue: HKAM Jockey Club Building 

KFP 18 August 2019 (Sunday) Venue: HKAM Jockey Club Building 

 

 

0

50

100

150

Total no. of Candidates (2010-2019)

Cat. I Cat. II Total
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Successful candidates in Written Examination 2019 

1. Dr CHAN Kam Sheung 

2. Dr CHAN Ki Fung Dickson 

3. Dr CHAN Kwan Ho 

4. Dr CHAN Siu Chung Bruce 

5. Dr CHAN Yuen Ling 

6. Dr CHANG Hsu Wei 

7. Dr CHANG Ting Ting 

8. Dr CHAU Yiu Shing 

9. Dr CHOI Sze Wai Michelle 

10. Dr CHOW Hoi Kei Jessica 

11. Dr CHOW Tsz Wang 

12. Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung 

13. Dr FAN Siu Wai 

14. Dr FONG Pak Yiu 

15. Dr HUI Alice Sau Wei 

16. Dr KONG Ka Ming Andrew 

17. Dr LAM Kang 

18. Dr LAM Wai Yiu 

19. Dr LEUNG Eunice Hilching 

20. Dr LEUNG Wai Lun 

21. Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee 

22. Dr LI Wing Chi 

23. Dr LO Yuen Man 

24. Dr LUK Sze Wan Candy 

25. Dr MA Man Ki 

26. Dr MA Yuen Ying 

27. Dr NG Pui Yee Beatrice 

28. Dr PANG Sze Ching Esther 

29. Dr SIU Wing Yee 

30. Dr SZETO Chui Ying 

31. Dr TAI Lik 

32. Dr TIK Tsz Ling Nicola 

33. Dr TSANG Kam Wah 

34. Dr WONG Chung Ming 

35. Dr YEUNG Lok Ki 

36. Dr YUEN Man Ki 

 

The passing rates of the Written Examination for the years 2010 – 2019: 

 

Clinical Segment: 

OSCE 27 October 2019 (Sunday) Venue: Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 

Successful candidates in Clinical Examination 2019 

1. Dr CHAN Chi Hung 

2. Dr CHAN Ki Chun Enoch 

3. Dr CHAN Kiu Pak Kilpatrick 

4. Dr CHAN Wei Kwan Rita 

5. Dr CHAN Wing Chi Annie 

6. Dr CHAN Yin Yue Yeni 

7. Dr CHIU Ho Ching 

8. Dr CHUNG Ka Chun 

9. Dr FENG Longyin 

10. Dr FUNG Kevin Koon Fun 

11. Dr KAM Ngar Yin 

12. Dr LAM Ki Yu 

13. Dr LAM Ting Chung Matthew 

14. Dr LEE Wing Lam 

15. Dr LEE Ying Cheung 

16. Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

17. Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei 

18. Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee 

19. Dr LIM Martina 

20. Dr LO Ka Man Michelle 

21. Dr NG Kwok Fai 

22. Dr NG Ngai Mui 

23. Dr NG Yui Wing 

24. Dr WONG Chi Wing 

25. Dr WONG Chung Yan 

26. Dr WONG Hin Hei Henry 

27. Dr YAN Chi Yung 

28. Dr YAU Tang Fai 

29. Dr YUNG Hiu Ting

 

 

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Written passing rate (2010 - 2019)

Cat. I passing rate Cat. II passing rate Overall passing rate
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The passing rates of the OSCE Examination for the years 2010 - 2019:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

External Examiners from RACGP 

Due to the unrest social situation at the second half of the year in Hong Kong, the RACGP decided not to send RACGP representatives 

to our 2019 OSCE Examination, but to undergo distance based approaches to support the OSCE on 27th October 2019. The measures 

used were: 

1.  During the standardization meeting on the OSCE day, videotaping of altogether 4 cases was made, so that they can be reviewed by 

the RACGP representatives. 

2.  During the OSCE cases live examinations, altogether 28 videos were recorded, so that the marking across a number of candidates 

can be reviewed by the RACGP representatives. 

All the videotaping recordings were treated as strictly confidential materials. They were only used for quality assurance purposes of 2019 

HKCFP/RACGP Conjoint Fellowship Examination and were destroyed after the announcement of 2019 Examination results. They will not 

be used for any future training purpose, or any individual candidate’s marking or any individual candidate's result review purposes. 

Security  

Strong emphasis was put on the security measures as in previous years. All preparatory procedures were carried out according to our 

security protocols, including: 

1. Strict adherence to the Working Protocol by staff handling all the Examination Materials. 

2. Use of designated Case-Writing Subcommittee, consisting of Examiners, led by our Chief Examiner, to be responsible for the 

preparation of all the OSCE cases. 

3. A centralized process for development of examination cases and marking schemes, with examination materials exposed to a minimal 

number of persons. 

4. Strict adherence to the security protocol for the OSCE examination by all examiners (including strict prohibition of electronic 

transference of exam materials). 

5. Sharing cases with RACGP to widen our examination case bank. 

6. Transmission of confidential examination materials through the secured sharing platform as suggested by RACGP. 

7. Presentation of OSCE examination materials to examiners only on the day of examination. 

8. Continual appeal to the professional integrity of all involved in the examination. 

9. Proper “quarantine” of candidates of the morning and afternoon sessions respectively on the day of OSCE examination. 

10. Forbiddance of use of any electronic devices by candidates inside examination venue. 

11. Prompt data entry of candidates’ scores on the same day of examination. 

All these measures, among many others, were well adhered to throughout the whole examination period. 

 

Quality Assurance 

Quality assurance of our examination was maintained by the large number of experienced local examiners in our panel. Pairing up 

experienced examiners with less experienced examiners also helped to improve its validity. Our QA Examiners and External Examiners 

continued to assess and monitor the standards of our local examiners as well as the role players. 

 

Comments on individual examiner by various QA Examiners had been grouped and sent to each examiner for reference. 
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Examination Prize: "Dr Peter C Y Lee Best Candidate Award 2019" 

It was the fifteenth year that the College offered this prize. From the year 2013, this award was renamed “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best 

Candidate Award” for commemorating Dr Peter Lee’s contribution to the discipline of family medicine. The “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best 

Candidate Award 2019” was presented to Dr CHUNG Ka Chun, who had passed the Conjoint Examination at one setting and achieved 

the best performance in the Examination. 

 

Acknowledgement 

The Board of Conjoint Examination would like to thank our Chief Examiner and segment Coordinators for contributing so much of their 

time and effort throughout the entire examination, all the Board members for their active participation, the External Examiners from RACGP 

for their continual advice and support, all our QA Examiners, Case-writing and Marking Examiners, Trainee Examiners, and Role Players 

for their time and contributions before and during the examination, and all our College secretarial staff and helpers for their excellent 

administrative and supportive works. 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIPLOMA IN FAMILY MEDICINE 

(July 2019 to June 2020) 

 

Chairman: Dr Simon C L AU       

Board Members:  Dr Stephen K S FOO (Course Director) 

(2019 - 2020) Prof Cindy L K LAM (Course Advisor)  

 Prof Donald K T LI (Course Co-ordinator)  

 Dr David V K CHAO (Course Co-ordinator) 

 Dr Edmond C W CHAN (Deputy Chairman and Chairman, DFM 

Assessment & Examination Subcommittee) 

           Dr CHAN Man Li            (Co-ordinator, DFM Clinical Examination) 

           Dr Bobo H Y TSUI            (Co-ordinator, DFM Written Examination)  

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN            (Module I & II Co-ordinator) 

 Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing  (Module III Co-ordinator) 

 Dr Mary B L KWONG (Module IV Co-ordinator) 

 Dr WONG Pak Hoi (Module V Co-ordinator) 

 Dr WAN Kwong Yu (Board Member) 

 

Ex-officio:  Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

 Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

   

Staff:  Ms Alky H K YU (Executive Officer) 

      

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

 

The DFM course entered her eighteenth year. A total of 30 doctors enrolled the DFM course in 2019 including 10 doctors from Mainland 

China and 2 doctors from Macau. Due to unforeseen circumstances, some of the classes, pre-exam workshops and final examinations 

were postponed. The Board praised the candidates for their hard work and commitment in learning new knowledge and skills in Family 

Medicine. 

 

On behalf of the Board, I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Professor Cindy L K LAM, Professor Donald K T LI, Dr Stephen 

K S FOO and our President, Dr David V K CHAO for their continuous support and guidance. Lastly, I like to express my deepest 

appreciation to Dr Edmond C W CHAN for leading his team in organizing the final examinations, Dr CHAN Man Li for his dedication in 

clinical examination, Dr Bobo H Y TSUI for her dedication in written examination and all the hardworking Board members, teachers, 

examiners and trainee examiners for their unfailing support and selfless contribution. I also wished to thank our secretarial staff Ms Alky 

H K YU for her diligent work. 

 

DFM Course 2019-2020 

The DFM Course consisted of five Modules: Principles of Family Medicine (Distance Learning), Common Problems in Family Medicine 

(Distance Learning), Essentials of Family Medicine (Structured Seminars & Tutorials), Clinical Updates (Updates and Clinical Attachment) 

and Practical Family Medicine (Practical Workshops). The timetable of the Course was as follows: 
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HK DFM 

Date  Topic Teaching Staff 

5 July 2019 (Fri) Introduction Session Course & Module Co-ordinators 

6 July 2019 –  

29 September 2019 
Module I – Principles of Family Medicine 

Distance Learning Module I 

27 July 2019 (Sat) Module V Consultation Skill Workshop I Dr Simon C L AU 

3 August 2019 (Sat) Module V Counseling Skills Workshop Dr Aster W Y LAU 

7 September 2019 (Sat) Module V Women's Health Workshop Dr Clement L K CHAN 

21 September 2019 (Sat) Module III General Overview on Chronic Diseases Management 

on Heart Diseases, Stroke, Hypertension and Diabetes 

Dr CHAN Man Li 

 Module II Introduction Session Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

28 September 2019 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 1 Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

1 October 2019 –  

24 November 2019 

Module II – Common Problems in Family Medicine Distance Learning Module II 

12 October 2019 (Sat) Module III – Evidence-based Medicine & Critical Appraisal Dr Aster W Y LAU 

26 October 2019 (Sat) Module III – Elderly Care and Related Issues on Fall Prevention, 

Hip Fracture & Polypharmacy 

Professor LAM Tai Pong 

9 November 2019 (Sat) Module III – Mental Health Care in Primary Care Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

23 November 2019 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 2 Dr FOK Peter Anthony 

30 November 2019 (Sat) Module V Orthopaedic Injection Workshop Dr LAU Hoi Kuen 

14 December 2019 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 3 Dr CHAN Man Li 

21 December 2019 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 4 Dr Mark S H CHAN 

28 December 2019 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 5 Dr Mary B L KWONG 

4 January 2020 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 6 Dr Simon C L AU 

 Module V – Musculoskeletal Workshop (Part I)  

11 January 2020 (Sat)* Module III – Common Musculoskeletal Problems Dr Simon C L AU 

 Module V – Musculoskeletal Workshop (Part II)  

18 January 2020 (Sat)* Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 7 Dr CHAN Man Li 

14 March 2020 (Sat)# Module III – Anticipatory Care Dr David V K CHAO 

21 March 2020 (Sat)*# Module III – Practice Management and District Health Centre Dr Donald K T LI 

28 March 2020 (Sat)*# Module III – Clinical Audit, Research & Teaching in Family 

Medicine 

Professor Cindy L K LAM 

18 April 2020 (Sat)*# Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 8 Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

25 April 2020 (Sat)*# Module V Consultation Skill Workshop II Dr CHAN Man Li 

28 June 2020 (Sun)* Pre-exam Workshop I  

5 July 2020 (Sun)* Pre-exam Workshop II  

TBC* Module V APCLS Training Workshop & Examination  APCLS instructors, HKCFP 

3 October 2020 (Sat)* Written Examination  

4 October 2020 (Sun)* Clinical Examination  

Remarks:   * Re-scheduled due to unforeseeable circumstances 

   # Classes were conducted via online platform due to COVID-19 pandemic  

  

DFM Assessment and Examination Subcommittee 

Chairman:   Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

Subcommittee Members: Dr CHAN Man Li   Clinical Examination Co-ordinator 

Dr Bobo H Y TSUI   Written Examination Co-ordinator 

    Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Written Examination Co-ordinator (Chinese Translation) 

   Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Case Leader 

   Dr FOK Peter Anthony Case Leader 

   Dr Ken K M HO  Case Leader 

   Dr LAI Sheung Siu  Case Leader 

   Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Case Leader 

   Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG Case Leader 

 

Panel of Examiners: 

QA Examiners:  Dr Simon C L AU   Prof Cindy L K LAM 

Dr Stephen K S FOO  

List of Examiners and Trainee Examiners would be included in next annual report.      
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Pre-examination Workshop: 

The simulated OSCE workshops were organised for candidates before the final examination on 28 June and 5 July 2020 (Saturdays) for 

HK DFM. Those who were not familiar with the examination format would have a chance to practice through the simulated workshops. 

 

Written and Clinical Examination: 

The written examination and the clinical examination were held on 3 and 4 October 2020 (Saturday and Sunday). 

 

Graduation Ceremony 2019 - 2020 

The Graduation Ceremony of the 18th DFM Course of the College was postponed to 2021 due to unforeseen circumstances.  

List of successful candidates of the DFM course 2019-2020 would be included in next annual report. 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

 

Chairman:       Dr Alvin C Y CHAN  

 

Board Members (2019-2020): 

Dr Edmond C W CHAN (Deputy Chairman, Board) 

Dr Solomon T L YEUNG (Deputy Chairman, Board) 

Dr Simon C L AU (Coordinator, Neuro-Musculoskeletal Interest Group) 

Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing (Chairman, Moderator Subcommittee) 

Dr CHAN King Hong (Coordinator, Community Education Subcommittee)  

Dr Mark S H CHAN (Coordinator, Interest Group in Mental Health & Psychiatry in Primar Care 

and Coordinator, Interest Group in Medical Humanities) 

Dr David S L CHAN   (Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee)  

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN (OLMH Coordinator, Community Education Subcommittee) 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man (Deputy Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 

Dr DAO Man Chi (Coordinator, Interest Group in Point-of-care Ultrasound (POCUS)) 

Dr Anthony K Y HO (Coordinator, Interest Group in Counselling, from October 2020 onwards) 

Dr Winson W Y HUNG  (Liaison Person with QA&A Committee) 

Dr KONG Che Wan (Deputy Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr KO Siu Hin (Coordinator, Interest Group in Evidence-based Medicine) 

Dr Mary B L KWONG (Chairlady, Clinical Attachment Subcommittee, Advisor of CPR Subcommittee and liaise person with 

RCHK) 

Dr Florence S S LAI (Coordinator, Assessment Enhancement Subcommittee) 

Dr Edmund W W LAM (Coordinator, Interest Group in Dermatology) 

Dr Aster W Y LAU (Coordinator, Interest Group in Counselling) 

Dr Bea W S LAU (Coordinator, Interest Group in Geriatric, to July 2020) 

Dr Francis W T LEE (Coordinator, Interest Group in Evidence-based Medicine) 

Dr Yvonne Y C LO                  (Chairlady, Annual Refresher Course) 

Dr Danny P K MA (Coordinator, Interest Group in Chronic Disease & Geriatrics) 

Dr Lorna V NG (Liaison Person with Hong Kong Primary Care Conference Organizing Committee) 

Dr MO Kam Chuen (Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 

Dr Leon G TONG (Coordinator, Interest Group in Medical-legal Alert) 

Dr TONG Siu Man (Chairman, Small Discussion Group Subcommittee) 

Dr TSUI Hing Sing (Member) 

Dr WONG Ka Wah  (Liaison Person with Editorial Board) 

Dr WONG Pak Hoi (Deputy Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr Esther Y T YU (Member, from July 2020 onwards) 

 

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President) 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

  Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 
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Staff: Ms Teresa D F LIU           (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Windy W L LAU          (Administrative Executive)   

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

 

During the year 2019-2020, the Board continued to organize a series of different educational activities for our members and doctors in 

Hong Kong. These abundant activities are outlined below.  

 

Video-Library and Video Viewing Session 

For the year 2019 we arranged 10 video sessions in our Wanchai College premises on a monthly basis. Video Library has been set up 

since July 2005. Video viewing session is scheduled on the last Friday of every month, at 2:30pm – 3:30pm, at the 8/F, Duke of Windsor 

Social Service Building, Wanchai. The topics are selected from the lectures in our Luncheon CME activities, various Interest Groups and 

Annual Refresher Course. These viewing sessions are open only to our members. 1 CME point per session is accredited to colleagues 

who attend the viewing session. A maximum of 2 CPD points may be accredited (subject to submission of satisfactory report of 

Professional Development Log). It is encouraging that the number of attendance is increasing. The topics presented were as follows: 

 

- Start right in hypertension management for reducing cardiovascular events 

- Management of Atrial Fibrillation in Primary Care 

- Dermatology Case Studies (Part 1) 

- Dermatology Case Studies (Part 2) 

- Approach to a Snoring Child in Primary Care Setting 

- Chronic Cough in Adult: Diagnosis, Management and Preventive Care 

- Casting new light in diabetes journey from basal initiation to intensification 

- Eczema treatment in Primary Care – Topical Role in Holistic Approach 

- Update on Management of Irritable Bowel Syndrome 

- Prediabetes: Why and How to Treat 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr MO Kam Chuen and Dr CHEUNG Ying Man in running the monthly video session 

very smoothly and especially Dr Cheung’s effort in producing the high quality video. With Dr Cheung’s works, the participants will feel like 

attending the luncheon meeting live while watching the video. 

 

Small Discussion Group 

There was 64 active Small Discussion Groups in 2019. Participants will gain 1 CME point per session.  In addition, speaker or moderator 

will be accredited 1 CPD point. 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr TONG Siu Man and other Board members in reviewing all the synopses and 

protocol, making sure the standard is reached.  

 

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training: Advanced Primary Care Life Support 

The Advanced Primary Care Life Support (APCLS) organized by the CPR Subcommittee was launched in 2017 in order to align with our 

Sister College (RACGP) requirement of Advanced Life Support components, namely the airway management, neck support and 

automated external defibrillation (AED) on top of basic life support.  

 

In association with the outbreak of the novel coronavirus infection, in order to reduce the risk of spreading of the coronavirus in the 

community, the February session and the March session of the APCLS Training Workshop has been postponed. The 1st Training Workshop 

was held in July 2020 and the 2nd training course would be rescheduled later when circumstances allow, subject to the development of 

COVID-19 infection. 

 

Clinical Attachment 

Being the Chairman, I am glad that we have the ENT clinical attachment this year with the support from Department of Otorhinolaryngology, 

Head and Neck Surgery, CUHK. The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Prof Michael TONG, Prof C A van HASSELT, Dr 

John WOO and the staff of their department for organizing the ENT clinical attachments in the Prince of Wales Hospital.  

 

The clinical attachments are aimed at in-depth and structural teaching of our members in these specialties. 

 

Assessment Enhancement Course  

Assessment Enhancement Course remained the most welcome course in her 20th year of establishment. I would like to thank all the tutors 

in contributing their time and effort in this course. They help tremendously in improving the skills on consultation, physical examination 

and other various aspects of the participating doctors. These are very useful to our members in preparing the Conjoint Fellowship 

Examination. The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr Florence S S LAI in coordinating the course and all tutors for their 
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hard work as follows: Dr CHAN Man Li, Dr CHOW Tsz Ling, Dr DAO Man Chi, Dr FOK Peter Anthony, Dr LAM Ting, Dr LEE Sum, Dr LUK 

Chun Wa, Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo, Dr TAM Kwan Wai, Dr WONG Kwok Hoi and Dr WONG Chun Fai. 

 

Annual Refresher Course 

Annual Refresher Course has been the traditional major year-end event for 39 years. This year, we had 5 weekday lectures and 4 Sunday 

workshops and over 163 members attended the course. We would like to thank all those participants who returned their evaluation 

questionnaires. Their comments and suggestions are invaluable in helping us to plan for the next ARC. 

 

LUNCHEON LECTURES 

Date Topics Speakers 

19 Nov 2019 (Tue) Myeloma 
Latest Advances in Management of Multiple Myeloma 

Dr AU Wing Yan 

26 Nov 2019 (Tue) Asthma 
Practical cues to embed international & British guidelines in daily asthma 
management 

Dr KWONG Kwok Chu 

28 Nov 2019 (Thu) Influenza 
1. Updates on management of influenza 
2. Case sharing on the management of Influenza in Primary Care 

1.  Dr Angus H Y LO 
2.  Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

16 Dec 2019 (Mon) Renal 
Approach to Patients with Renal Impairment in Primary Care Setting 

Dr CHAN Siu Kim 

17 Dec 2019 (Tue) Asthma 
Grab your AIR - New Approach on Asthma Management 

Dr MIU Ting Yat 

 

SUNDAY WORKSHOPS 

3 Nov 2019 (Sun) DM and GERD 
1. The evolving prevalence of GERD and Functional Dyspepsia in 

Hong Kong: What are the Clinical Issues and Solutions? 
2. Personalized treatment for Type 2 Diabetes Patients 

1. Dr Victoria P Y TAN 

2. Dr YEUNG Chi Kin 

10 Nov 2019 (Sun) Angina and Hypertension 
1. Approach to chest pain in primary care, & management update on 

Angina  
2. Combination therapy for Hypertension 

 
1. Dr HO Kwok Tung 
 
2. Dr WONG Man Lok 

24 Nov 2019 (Sun) DM 
The revolution of cardiovascular-renal-metabolic management with 
T2DM  

 
Prof Alice P S KONG 
 

1 Dec 2019 (Sun) Pre-DM and Hypertension 
1. To treat or not to treat – What is the cut-off for treatment in the era 

of prediabetes? 
2. Hypertension management – Are we misunderstanding beta-

blockers? 

1. Dr Michele M A YUEN 
 
2. Dr LAU Chun Leung 

 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr Yvonne Y C LO in organizing the course and all the speakers in making our ARC 

very successful. 

 

Annual Updates, Luncheon Meetings, Seminars and Workshops  

Updates seminars and weekday luncheon lectures were organized regularly throughout the whole year with the support from various 

specialties including Cardiology, Dental, Endocrinology, ENT, Surgery, Gynaecology, Dermatology, Gastroenterology, Geriatric, 

Nephrology, Neurology, Oncology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics, Paediatric, Psychiatry, Respiratory and Rheumatology. 

 

The following were our programmes since the last report: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

4 Apr 2019 Silent Killer: Elevated Heart Rate in Hypertensives  Prof Murray ESLER 

26 Apr 2019 Perspectives on New Basal Insulin Use in the Real World Dr TSANG Man Wo 

7 May 2019 Role of the glycemia-targeted specialized nuturition in daily clinical management 

for type II DM 
Dr Jeffrey MECHANICK 

11 May 2019 World Family Doctor Day Symposium 2019 Dr Donald K T LI 

Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

Prof Martin C S WONG 

19 May 2019 Application to Dermoscopy for Primary Care Doctors Dr Antonio A T CHUH 

3 Jun 2019 A call to action in the management of hypertension – clinical challenges and 

antihypertensive solutions 
Prof Krzysztof NARKIEWICZ  

4 Jun 2019 Rotavirus Infection – where are we and what we can do better  1 Prof Tony NELSON 

2 Dr Philippe BUCHY 
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18 Jun 2019 1. Life changing orthognathic surgery: from aesthetic, function to health  

2. The current status of oral implantology 

Dr Mike LEUNG 

Dr James CHOW 

19 Jun 2019 Healthy Lung - Asthma Scientific Workshop Prof Gary W K WONG 

22 Jun 2019 Atopic Dermatitis Prof Ellis HON 

Prof Kenji KABASHIMA 

Dr Theresa LEUNG 

25 Jun 2019 Sarcopenia Diagnosis and Management in Hong Kong Prof Francesco LANDI 

27 Jun 2019 Challenges in Achieving Full Functional Recovery in MDD Prof Pratap CHOKKA 

12 Jul 2019 Discovery in Smoking Cessation Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

17 Oct 2019 Latest Update on Insulin + Prandial GLP1-RA combo in T2DM management  Dr Peter C Y TONG 

22 Oct 2019 1.  Early Diagnosis and Management of Dementia in Primary Care: the Practical 

Approach  

2. Real Cases sharing on dementia management in primary care 

Prof Henry BRODATY 

Dr Herbert YUEN 

25 Oct 2019 Achieving targets and enhancing adherence: a new era in the hypertension 

management 
Prof Alistair HALL  

30 Oct 2019 Declaring the new chapter in Diabetes Management Dr Philip Alan MCFARLANE  

7 Nov 2019 Atrial Fibrillation: Practical management and considerations at your fingertips Prof Shaun GOODMAN            

12 Dec 2019 Osteoarthritis management - does patient has adequate pain relief? Dr HO Ka Ki 

22 Feb 2020 Updates on the new Coronavirus infection, COVID-19. What primary care 

doctors should know? (Online Seminar) 
Dr Andrew T Y WONG 

31 Mar 2020 Common Paediatric Orthopaedic Problems (Online Seminar) Dr LIU King Lok 

 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank all guest speakers in our various College scientific and educational events.  

 

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, the Moderator Chairman, Dr Edmond C W CHAN, Dr 

Alvin C Y CHAN, Dr CHAN King Hong, Dr David V K CHAO, Dr Catherine X R CHEN, Dr Cecilia Y M FAN, Dr HO Ka Ming, Dr Winson 

W Y HUNG. Dr Mary B L KWONG, Dr Florence S S LAI, Dr LAM Wing Wo, Dr Aster W Y LAU, Dr. Bea W S LAU, Dr Yvonne Y C LO, Dr 

Danny P K MA, Dr Lorna V NG, Dr TONG Siu Man, Dr TSE Sut Yee and Dr Robert H S TSUI for being the moderators. 

 

The Board would like to thank all those members for giving us comments or returning evaluation forms after attending the lectures or 

Updates. Their valuable comments would enable the Board to arrange lectures to meet the learning needs of our members in the future. 

Again, members are encouraged to submit their CPD logs after attending these lectures and Updates to gain additional CPD points. 

 

Certificate Course 

Three certificate courses were organized in 2019 with the co-organization with Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (OLMH), United Christian 

Hospital (UCH) and Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) respectively. 

 

Refresher Course for Health Care Providers 2019/2020 co-organized with OLMH 

Dates               Topics                                      Speakers 

5 Oct 2019  Back pain assessment and management Dr KL TUNG 

9 Nov 2019 Hyperbaric medicine in Hong Kong- new developments Dr Jeffrey CHAU 

7 Dec 2019 Dental management of patients with medical diseases Dr KUM Chun Sing 

  

In association with the outbreak of novel coronavirus infections, please note the “Refresher Course for Health Care Providers” original 

scheduled on 8 Feb 2020, 29 Feb 2020, 7 Mar 2020, 25 Apr 2020, 9 May 2020, 13 Jun 2020 and 11 Jul 2020 will be postponed until 

further notice. 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Winnie W Y CHAN and all the guest speakers. 

 

CME Course for General Practitioners 2019 co-organized with UCH 

Dates Topics                      Speakers 

28 Mar 2019 Management of Acute Stroke & TIA Dr NG Ping Wing 

16 May 2019 Management of UTI in Paediatrics Dr James Wesley C H CHENG 

4 Jul 2019 Approach to Carcinoma of Breast Cancer Dr LAW Siu King 

12 Sep 2019 Assessment of Mental Competency Dr Michael G C YIU  

26 Sep 2019 Interpretation of Common Haematological Investigations & Management of 
Common Haematological Problems in Primary Care Settings 

Dr LIN Shek Ying 

21 Nov 2019 Approach to Acute "Red Eye" Dr Theresa S T MAK  

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinators, Dr David V K CHAO and Dr Danny P K MA and all the guest 

speakers. 
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The Board would also like to thank Dr Gary K K AU, Chairman, HKMA Kowloon East Community Network, in helping to organize the CME 

Course for General Practitioners 

 

CME Course for Health Personnel 2019 co-organized with UCH 

Dates Topics                       Speakers 

6 Apr 2019 Advance Directives AD & Advance Care Planning ACP Dr LEUNG Man Fuk 

15 Jun 2019 Pain Management in Primary Care Settings Dr LIM Huey Sing 

10 Aug 2019 Update on Vaccination in Paediatrics Dr CHOW Chit Kwong 

19 Oct 2019 Approach to Urinary Incontinence Dr Elaine CHENG 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinators, Dr David V K CHAO and Dr. Danny P K MA and all the guest 

speakers. 

 

The Board would also like to thank Dr Gary K K AU, Chairman, HKMA Kowloon East Community Network, in helping to organize the CME  

Course for Health Personnel 

 

Certificate Course on Bringing Better Health to Our Community 2019 co-organized with QEH 

Dates Topics Speakers 

25 May 2019 1 Update on Management of Atrial Fibrillation in Primary Care 
2 Interpretation and Management of CT Angiogram 

1. Dr CHENG Yuet Wong 
2. Dr WONG Chi Yuen 

29 June 2019 1. Management of Patients with Wrist Pain 
2. Cumulative Disease Program 
3. Management of Patients with Neck Pain 

1. Dr Edmund L K YAU  
2. Ms Carol K Y HUI 
3. Dr WONG Chun Kong 

27 July 2019 1. Update on Management of Hyperlipidaemia  
2. Dietitian - Management on Hyperlipidaemia 
3. Update on Usage of Anti-platelets in Primary Care 

1. Dr CHAN Kam Tim 
2. Ms Bonnie CHENG 
3. Dr Sunny C F TSANG 

31 Aug 2019  1. Advanced Wound Management in Primary Care  
2. Use of Antibiotics in Primary Care  

1. Ms Fiona W S WU 
2. Dr TANG Hing Cheung 

28 Sep 2019 1. Management of Common Nail Problems  
2. Podiatrist - Toe Nail Care in Community Setting  

1. Dr Kingsley H N CHAN 
2. Ms Nicole Y L LAM 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr LI Yim Chu and all the guest speakers. The Board would also 

like to thank Dr CHAN Mei Tak, Dr Clarence C M CHOI, Dr KWONG Hon Kei, Dr TAM Wah Kit and Dr WONG Kwai Sheung for being the 

moderators: 

 

The HIV/STI Primary Care Workshop were held in 2019 with the details below: 

HIV/STI Primary Care Workshop 

Dates Topics Speakers 

11 May 2019 HIV/STI Diagnosis Dr KWAN Chi Keung 

Dr Naomi H Y CHENG 
18 May 2019 Meeting the Needs of People at Risk Dr Alfred Y W SIT 

15 Jun 2019 Clinical Management in Primary Care Dr KWAN Chi Keung 

Dr Wilson LAM 
29 June 2019 PrEP and PEP – Who and How Dr Kenny C W CHAN 

Dr Bonnie C K WONG 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all the guest speakers. The Board would also like to thank Dr Dawn Teresa H F AI, 

Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG) and Dr Robert H S TSUI for being the moderators. 

 

Collaboration between Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and Primary Care Office, Department of Health 

Certificate Course on Community Geriatrics for Primary Care Doctors 

With the aging population in Hong Kong, primary care doctors are taking care of more and more older adults nowadays. These elder 

patients are often coming with more chronic problems with complexing needs. In order to enhance the capacity of primary care doctors to 

provide quality medical care to the older adults in the community, the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and the Department of 

Health is going to co-organize a course on community geriatrics. The course aims to update primary care doctors and family physicians 

on common and important topics in geriatrics, to facilitate exchange of ideas between Geriatric Medicine and General Practice colleagues, 

and to emphasis the importance of preventive care and health maintenance among the elderly. 
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The course consists of 5 seminars with the following details: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

21 Sep 2019 Fall as Geriatric Syndrome Dr YIM Ting Kwan 

12 Oct 2019 Common Urinary disorder and Incontinence in older adults 
Dr Elaine Y L CHENG 
Ms Becky CHAN 

26 Oct 2019 1. Office based management of Cognitive impairment in older adults  
2. Advance care planning 

Dr Arisina C Y MA 

30 Nov 2019 1. Update on Parkinsonism – Management in the community 
2. Anticipatory care / Preventive care for our older adults 

1. Dr Ray C C CHAN 
2. Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

11 Jan 2020 1. Rational prescriptions in older adults 
2. Common medical problems in older adults in RCHEs 

1. Dr SHA Kwok Yiu 
2. Dr FUNG Sze Yuen 

 

Professional Development Subcommittee 

Since 2005, nine Interest Groups have been formed under Professional Development Subcommittee Clinical Family Medicine, Chronic 

Disease and Geriatrics, Counseling, Dermatology, Evidence-based Medicine, Medico-legal Alert, Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary 

Care, Medical Humanities and Neuro-Musculoskeletal Interest Groups. 

 

Our Interest Groups provide a platform for all members of our College in public and private sectors to meet and exchange their experience. 

Members are encouraged to participate and present their cases or problems for discussions or role-play for sharing. Sharing experience 

is an important mode of gaining knowledge. Both the experienced and less experienced doctors can benefit from their participation. 

 

Sharing problem cases with specialists or experts will provide peer support, skill-mix, knowledge transfer and bridging the professional 

gap. This will help to solve our clinical problems and queries, upgrade our standard, raise our morale, and increase our job satisfaction. 

This will also promote early awareness, clinical governance and risk management in respect to different medical fields, to assure a better 

management and a high-quality health care for the public 

 

The Interest Group in Dermatology scheduled to have regular bimonthly meeting on the first Saturday afternoon of odd months (except 

public holidays) in the year 2019. We had 5 meetings in 2019. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

5 January 2019 Eczema Treatment for Primary Care – Topical Role in Holistic Approach  Dr WU Wai Fuk 

16 March 2019 Review in Cosmetic Dermatology and Post-Treatment Skin Care Dr Kingsley H N CHAN 

4 May 2019 Dermatological Manifestation in Rheumatic Diseases Dr CHEUNG Tak Cheong 

6 July 2019 Doctor, am I suffering from Rosacea Dr LEE Tze Yuen 

7 September 2019 Eczema and Common Papulosquamous Lesions in Quiz Format Dr Mimi M CHANG 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Edmund W W LAM and all the guest speakers who had contributed 

their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us. The Board would also like to thank Dr Edmund W W LAM for being the moderator. 

 

The Interest Group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care scheduled regular bimonthly meeting on the first Saturday 

afternoon of even months (except public holidays) in the year 2019. We had 4 meetings and 6 speakers in 2019. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

2 February 2019 Pearls of sports psychology for Family Physicians Dr Samuel H C CHAN 

6 April 2019 Primary Care of People with Dementia Prof Timothy C Y KWOK 

1 June 2019 Updates on Depression Dr LO Chun Wai 

3 August 2019 Parasomnia – does it matter? From sleep walking to dream enactment – an 
insight to the mechanism and implications 

Prof WING Yun Kwok 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and all the guest speakers who had contributed 

their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us. The Board would also like to thank Dr Mark S H CHAN for being the moderator. 

 

The Interest Group in Counselling 

Counseling is a professional relationship that empowers diverse individuals, families, and groups to accomplish mental health, wellness, 

education, and career goals. Counseling skills are important in daily management of our patients on the aspects of psychosocial issues 

and health education, such as life style modification. Counseling is one of the effective means for developing human potential. Interest 

Group in Counseling is established and will provide some training to the beginners by sharing of experience with expertise and members, 

who are interested in Counseling in primary care setting. We had 2 meetings in 2019. 
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Dates Topics Speakers 

09 March 2019 Circle of Security – Parenting from an Attachment Perspective Dr Aurelius FUNG 

13 July 2019 Balint Group 
Dr Aster W Y LAU 
(Facilitator) 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Aster W Y LAU for her hard work and all the guest speakers for 

their time in sharing their knowledge. 

 

The Interest Group in Evidence Based Medicine  

Interest Group in Evidence Based Medicine aims to introduce the development of evidence based medicine and show how to apply 

evidence based medicine in general practice. We had 2 meetings in 2019. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

10 August 2019 EBM approach to Diabetes mellitus: Update from local and international 
guidelines 

Dr KO Siu Hin 

23 November 2019 Evidence based approach to common geriatric problems in primary care Dr HUI Lai Chi 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr KO Siu Hin and all the guest speakers for their knowledge and 

skills sharing. The Board would also like to thank Dr KO Siu Hin and Dr HUI Lai Chi for being the moderators. 

 

The Interest Group in Medical Humanities  

Interest Group in Medical Humanities aims to form a regular platform for sharing and developing knowledge and skill in the medical 

humanities. We had 3 meetings in 2019. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

23 March 2019 From Humanities to Doctor Patient relationship 從人文文化看醫患關係 Dr Mark S H CHAN 

24 August 2019 Thanatology for Family Physicians 你識唔識死？ 
Dr Karl T K WONG 

Dr LO Kit Hung 

14 December 2019 Mood problems encountered in Hong Kong 2019 Dr LEUNG Wai Ching 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and all the guest speakers for their knowledge 

and skills sharing. 

 

The Interest Group in Point-of-care Ultrasound (POCUS)  

Interest Group in Point-of-care Ultrasound (POCUS) aims to promote the use of POCUS in primary care in HK. We had 1 meeting in 

2019. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

14 April 2019 Introduction/overview on point-of-care ultrasound  

Hands-on scanning on renal USG 

Dr CHAU Ming Tak 

Dr DAO Man Chi 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr DAO Man Chi and the guest speaker for their knowledge and 

skills sharing. The Board would also like to thank Dr DAO Man Chi for being the moderators. 

 

Primary Care Point-of-care Ultrasound (POCUS) Course co-organized the School of Biomedical Sciences, LKS Faculty of 

Medicine, the University of Hong Kong 

The course co-organized the School of Biomedical Sciences, LKS Faculty of Medicine, the University of Hong Kong, the aims of the 

course are to introduce the use of POCUS in primary care in Hong Kong, to teach the knowledge and ultrasound (USG) scanning skills 

on common abdominal conditions and to provide opportunities for course participants on supervised hands-on practice. 

 

The contents of the course were as follows: 

Dates Contents to be covered Speakers 
6 July 2019 
 

13 July 2019 
 
 

20 July 2019 

Point-of-care Ultrasound in Abdomen 

Ultrasound Basics Physics 

Techniques (Transducers, Imaging effects, Imaging artefacts, Orientation, 

Pearls and Pitfalls) 

Abdominal Sonography: Liver, Gallbladder, Biliary ductal system, Spleen, 

Pancreas, Aorta, IVC, Peritoneal fluid, Kidneys, Urinary bladder, Prostate 

gland 

Dr Andrew WAI  

Dr Samuel LAU 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all guest speakers, the School of Biomedical Sciences, LKS Faculty of Medicine, 
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the University of Hong Kong for the venue arrangement. 

The Board would like to thank Dr Alvin C Y CHAN, Dr CHAN Kin Wai, Dr Andrew Y H CHAN, Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei, Dr DAO Man Chi, Dr 

TSE Sut Yee and Dr WU Chun Yu for being the tutors. 

 

Community Education Programmes 

I would like to thank the following hospitals, societies and associations in helping our Board to organize the various Community Education 

Programmes, which are open to all our College members and will be announced in the Board Education News every month.  

- Hong Kong Medical Association 

- Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital, Kowloon Central Cluster, Hospital Authority 

- Professional Development & Quality Assurance, Department of Health 

- Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Kowloon Central Cluster, Hospital Authority 

- United Christian Hospital, Kowloon East Cluster, Hospital Authority 

 

College members are welcomed to attend these programmes which are free and CME points are accredited. 

 

Structured Education Programme 

The Structured Educational Programme (SEP) is the mandatory training programme in basic training of Family Medicine. It is divided into 

14 modules and trainees should be attended at least 15 hours for each module. It is also open to all College members and will be awarded 

CME credit points when attending the programme. I would like to thank the following hospitals in organizing the Structured Education 

Programme for our College members: 

- Caritas Medical Centre 

- Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 

- Prince of Wales Hospital 

- Queen Elizabeth Hospital 

- Tsan Yuk Hospital 

- Tseung Kwan O Hospital 

- Tuen Mun Hospital 

- United Christian Hospital 

 

Self-Assessment Correspondent Programme 

MCQ papers 

MCQ papers were sent out quarterly with our College Journal. Members will only be accredited if over 50% of the answers are correct 

and will be awarded maximum 12 CME credit points per year.  

 

Acknowledgement 

I would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere gratitude to all members of the Board of Education for their continuous 

support and contributions in serving the College. I have indeed a capable and supportive team to back me up in organizing the various 

types of educational activities for our College members. I am indebted to them. Last but not the least, I have to thank our secretarial staffs, 

Ms Teresa D F LIU and Ms Windy W L LAU for their enormous hard work over the past year. I would also like to take this opportunity to 

thank all sister Colleges, Universities, Hospital Authority, Department of Health for their support in our various educational activities. We 

are also grateful to the various pharmaceutical companies who generously sponsored many of our functions. 

 

 

 

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES 

(July 2019 to June 2020)  

Chairman: Dr LAU Ho Lim  

   

Vice Chairman: Dr LIANG Jun  

   

Advisors: Dr Stephen K S FOO  

 Prof Cindy L K LAM  

 Prof Donald K T LI  

   

Board Members: Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

 Dr Angus M W CHAN  Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

 Dr Edmond C W CHAN Dr NGAN Po Lun 

 Dr Lorette W Y CHAN Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

 Dr David V K CHAO Dr Jenny H L WANG 
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OVERVIEW 

Family Medicine educational activities provided for doctors in mainland China and Macau were planned in advance as in the last few 

years. However, with the COVID-19 epidemic, these educational activities have to be either cancelled or postponed. Regular 

communications with the parties concerned were made and it was agreed that these educational activities would resume when appropriate. 

 

STRUCTURED PROJECTS         

Continuing Medical Education Programme 2019/2020 – coordinated with Macau Health Bureau (澳門衛生局): 

 

Organizers: BPDS, HKCFP and Macau Health Bureau  

Format: 30 hours of lecture divided into 10 half-day sessions 

Topics (2019/2020) Month / Year Speakers 

Immunisations (Childhood/Adult/Pregnancy Women Immunisations) September 2019 Dr Jenny H L WANG 

Common Skin Problems October 2019 Dr David V K CHAO 

Thyroid Disease Management November 2019 Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Childhood Developmental Milestones (including Speech) December 2019 Dr IP Pang Fei 

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) January 2020 Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Communication Skills in Patients with Psychological/Mental Problem 
February 2020 
(postponed) 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

Lower Urinary Tract Symptoms (LUTS) 
March 2020 
(postponed) 

Dr LIANG Jun 

Pelvic Pain & Contraceptive Methods 
April 2020 
(postponed) 

Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

Travel Medicine 
May 2020 
(postponed) 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Osteoarthritis & Joint Replacement 
June 2020 
(postponed) 

Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

 

This course was organised on the request from the Macau Health Bureau aiming at strengthening knowledge and skills in Family Medicine 

for Macau doctors. We have received excellent feedback from those who attended the course. Certificates of Attendance were issued to 

those who had maintained an attendance of 80% or higher. 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND STANDARDS 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

Chairlady: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan  

  

Deputy Chairlady Dr Heidi H T FUNG 

     

Board Members:          Dr Barry T F BIEN  Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai  Dr Tony C K LEE 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling  Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

Dr Billy C F CHIU  Dr LI Yim Chu 

Dr CHONG Man Yuk  Dr LIANG Jun 

Dr P A FOK    Dr Benny L P LUI 

 (from January 2020 onwards)   

Dr Eric M T HUI  Dr Peter T K NG 

Dr KO Wai Kit  Dr Lorna V NG 

Dr Mary B L KWONG  Dr Michelle M Y WONG  

    

Ex-officio:            Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN   

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

   

Ex-officio: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice President, Education and Examinations) 

 Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

   

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

 Ms Katie P L LAM (Administrative Assistant) 
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Dr William C W WONG 

Subcommittees 

Basic Training Subcommittee 

Chairman: Dr P A FOK    (from January 2020 onwards) 

 Dr Michelle M Y WONG  (to December 2019) 

Members:            Dr Loretta W Y CHAN   Dr Tony C K LEE 

             Dr CHONG Man Yuk   Dr Anthony S B POON 

             Dr Eric M T Hui   Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

Dr KO Wai Kit   Dr YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr LAU Po Shan 

 

Higher Training Subcommittee 

Chairlady: Dr Heidi H T FUNG  

Members: Dr Carroll K L CHAN   Dr Stanley K H LAM  

Dr Edwin Y H CHAN   Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr Anthony K Y HO   Dr NG Ming Shing 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam   Dr WONG Suk Ching 

Vetting Subcommittee 

Chairlady: Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

Memebers: Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Clinical Supervisor Coordinator 

Chairman:  Dr Barry T F BIEN        

Member: Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Training Centre Coordinator 

Chairman:            Dr CHAN Kin Ling  

Members:          Dr CHEUNG Yu      

Dr Tony C K LEE 

Structured Educational Programme (SEP) Coordinator 

Chairman: Dr Peter T K NG      

Staff:            Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG                (Administrative Executive) 

            Ms Kathy K Y LAI                 (Administrative Executive) 

 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

 

This year has passed smoothly in the running of the Board’s regular activities. All Board members and subcommittee members had helped 

on various BVTS’s activities such as responding trainees’ enquiries, checking new applications for enrollment, checking logbooks for 

completion of trainees’ training, organizing the workshop for both basic and higher trainees, travelling to various training centers for 

accreditation, reviewing the Structural Education Programmes for pre-approval and holding the quarterly board meeting etc. All these 

activities are ongoing all through the year and important to the standard of vocational training. 

 

  The usual statistics up to 31st March 2020 are as follows: 

  New enrolled Basic trainees  : 45 

  New enrolled Higher trainees  : 28 

  Total Basic trainees   :             150 

  Total Higher trainees  : 61 

 
The sixth edition Basic Training Logbook and Handbook has been endorsed in 452nd Council meeting and 243rd HKAM Education 
Committee Meeting, and launched in September 2019. 
 
The Board revamped the Board structure and terms of references in November 2019. 
 

The Board reviewed and discussed the impact on training in relation to the COVID-19: 

I. The use of teleconference for SEP seminars 

II. ENT/Eye/Dermatology attachment 

III. Pre-requisite requirement of CPR for new enrolled Basic Trainees 

IV. Higher Training – 1st PA requirement to be carried out within 3 months upon enrolment 

V. Training centre accreditation/ re-accreditation site visit 

.  
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Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our Board members, honorary clinical supervisors, and cluster coordinators for their 

contributions in the training programme. I would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our administrative executives Ms Charlotte 

Cheung and Ms Kathy Lai who are highly committed in their duties to serve the trainees and the Board’s running. Their efforts and patience 

are very much appreciated. 

 

Output 

Congratulations to our trainees for passing the HKCFP/RACGP Conjoint Examination in 2019 and for being elected Fellows of the Hong 

Kong College of Family Physicians and the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners.

Dr CHAN Chi Hung  

Dr Enoch K C CHAN 

Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN 

Dr Rita W K CHAN  

Dr Annie W C CHAN 

Dr Yeni Y Y CHAN 

Dr CHIU Ho Ching 

Dr CHUNG Ka Chun 

Dr FENG Longyin 

Dr Kevin K F FUNG 

Dr KAM Ngar Yin  

Dr Matthew T C LAM 

Dr LEE Wing Lam 

Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee 

Dr LIM Martina 

Dr Michelle K M LO 

Dr NG Kwok Fai 

Dr NG Ngai Mui 

Dr NG Yui Wing 

Dr WONG Chi Wing 

Dr Henry H H WONG 

Dr YAN Chi Yung 

Dr YAU Tang Fai 

Dr YUNG Hiu Ting 

  

The Board certified completion of 4-year Basic Training in Family Medicine for the 25 trainees in 2019.

Dr CHAN Chi Hung 

Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN 

Dr Rita W K CHAN 

Dr Yeni Y Y CHAN 

Dr CHUNG Ka Chun 

Dr FENG Longyin 

Dr Kevin K K FUNG 

Dr HOU Jing 

Dr Matthew T C LAM 

Dr LEE Wing Lam 

Dr LEE Ying Cheung 

Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee 

Dr LI Minru 

Dr LIM Martina 

Dr Michelle K M LO 

Dr NG Kwok Fai 

Dr NG Ngai Mui 

Dr Joanne Y W NG 

Dr WONG Chi Wing 

Dr Henry H H WONG 

Dr YAN Chi Yung 

Dr YAU Tang Fai 

Dr YUNG Hiu Ting

 

The Board certified completion of 2-year Higher Training in Family Medicine for the 18 trainees in 2019-2020.

Dr CHAN Ham 

Dr CHAN Lam 

Dr CHAN Pui Chuen 

Dr CHAN Pui Kwan 

Dr CHANG Wells 

Dr CHEN Hing Han 

Dr CHENG Wai Fat 

Dr CHEUK Yau Chun 

Dr CHIANG Lap Kin 

Dr Winnie W Y CHUI 

Dr FONG Chui Ying 

Dr HAN Jinghao 

Dr HO Shu Wan 

Dr Tony Y T KWOK 

Dr LIU Yin Mei 

Dr LUK Chun Wa 

Dr Queenie H K WONG 

Dr XU Shaowei 

 

APPENDIX A 

Trainees in Higher Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2019/2020 

Name of Trainees Clinical Supervisor 

Dr Kevin Y H AU-YEUNG Dr LEE Kit Yan 

Dr CHAN Chi Hung Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr Enoch K C CHAN Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu 

Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN Dr Clarence C M Choi 

Dr Rita W K CHAN Dr Felix H L Li 

Dr CHAN Wing Yi Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr Yeni Y Y CHAN Dr WONG Man Kin 

Dr CHEN Liujing Dr LEE Shik Pui 

Dr CHEUK Hiu Ying Dr WONG Chi Kwong 
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Dr Kelvin K W CHEUNG Dr LAU Chi Hang 

Dr CHIU Ho Ching Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr CHOI Man Kei Dr Judy G Y CHENG 

Dr CHOI Yan Tak Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr Melody P Y CHOW Dr WONG Sze Nga 

Dr FENG Longyin Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr Kevin K F FUNG Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr HOU Jing Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr KUM Chung Hang Dr CHENG Sai Yip 

Dr Joyce H Y LAI Dr Rosita WONG 

Dr Matthew T C LAM Dr LAU Po Shan 

Dr LAU Ka Man Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr LEE Shek Hang Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr LEE Ying Cheung Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

Dr LEUNG Lai Man Dr NG Yeung Shing 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee Dr Kitty K WONG 

Dr LIM Martina Dr FUNG Hoi Tik 

Dr Michelle K M LO Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

Dr NG Hoi Yee Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr NG Kwok Fai Dr CHAN Chi Wai 

Dr NG Ngai Mui Dr NG Yeung Shing 

Dr Joanne Y W NG Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr Leon M NGAI Dr HONG Tin Chak 

Dr POON Wing Kwan Dr CHOW Kam Fai 

Dr TONG Ka Hung Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr TSANG Pui Lim Dr SY Hung Pan 

Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr WONG Chi Wing Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr WONG Chung Yan Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr Henry H H WONG Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

Dr Alan Y H WONG Dr Y T Esther YU 

Dr WONG Hiu Lap Dr YEUNG Chi Keung 

Dr Samuel S W WONG Dr WONG Pak Kin 

Dr YAN Chi Yung Dr FUNG Pak Kei 

Dr YAU King Sun Dr CHAN Ting Bong 

Dr YAU Tang Fai Dr LEE Kit Yan 

Dr YEN Pang Fei Dr WONG Sum Lok 

Dr Doogie K Y YEUNG Dr CHAN Pang Fai 

Dr Vivian H M YIP Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr YUEN Chi Hang Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

Dr YUNG Hiu Ting Dr YIM Chi Ling 

 
Trainees in Basic Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2019/2020 

Hong Kong West Cluster 

1. Dr HOU Baijing 4. Dr LIU Wing Yee 

2. Dr KWAN Tsz Yan 5. Dr Esther S C PANG 

3. Dr LEUNG Ka Cheong 6. Dr Kelly H C WONG 

 

Hong Kong East Cluster 

1.      Dr CHAN Yuen Ling 

2       Dr CHIU Yuen Man 

3.      Dr Michelle S W CHOI 

4.      Dr FONG Pak Yiu 

5       Dr Nicole W C LAM 

6.      Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yiu 

7.     Dr LO Yuen Man 

8.     Dr Michael K Y LOCKE 

9.     Dr TAI Hing Kuen 

10.   Dr TAI Lik 

11.   Dr Nadia L Y TAI 

12.   Dr YUEN Man Ki 

 

Kowloon East Cluster 

1.      Dr Dickson K F CHAN 

2.      Dr CHANG Hsu Wei 

3.      Dr CHAU Yiu Shing 

4.      Dr CHEN Tsz Ting 

5.      Dr Karen M T CHUK 

6.      Dr HO Sze Ho 

7.      Dr Candy Y T HUI 

8.      Dr Eunice H C LEUNG 

9.      Dr LI Wing Chi 

10.     Dr LIU Tsz Yin 

11.     Dr Candy S W LUK 

12.     Dr MA Man Ki 

13.     Dr MA Yuen Ying 

14.     Dr Charlotte T L TSANG  
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15.     Dr WONG Chung Ming 

16.     Dr WONG Yu Man 

17.     Dr YAU Chi Yan 

 

Kowloon Central Cluster 

1. Dr CHAN Fung Yuen 

2. Dr CHAN Kam Sheung 

3. Dr CHAU Kei Wai 

4. Dr CHEUNG Yuen Yan 

5. Dr CHUANG Chi Kit 

6. Dr Patricia Y S FAN 

7. Dr HO Ka Ki 

8. Dr Alice S W HUI 

9. Dr JIAO Fangfang 

10. Dr KELLY Sara Jane 

11. Dr LAI Ka Ho 

12. Dr Janice C Y LI 

13. Dr LO Chak Yui 

14. Dr Sharon S R MAK 

15. Dr NG Ka Wing 

16. Dr NOH Young Ah 

17. Dr SIU Wing Yee 

18. Dr TSO Sau Lin 

19. Dr YU Kwun Nam 

20. Dr YU Xiaoxia 

21. Dr ZHU Yin 

 

Kowloon West Cluster 

1. Dr Davina S H BIEN 

2. Dr CHAN Kwan Ho 

3. Dr CHANG Hoi Yi 

4. Dr Christie Y Y CHEUNG 

5. Dr Jessica H K CHOW 

6. Dr CHOW Tsz Wang 

7. Dr CHU Pui Yan 

8. Dr DIANTO Jeffrey 

9. Dr HO Chun Kei 

10. Dr Ho Suet Ying 

11. Dr Colin Y N KWOK 

12. Dr Gevon G W LAI 

13. Dr LAM Chi Hang 

14. Dr LAM Ching Man 

15. Dr LEUNG Wai Lun 

16. Dr LI Shiyue 

17. Dr LIU Ka Yee 

18. Dr Kara W S LO 

19. Dr LO Wei 

20. Dr Carrie C W NG 

21. Dr Beatrice P Y NG 

22. Dr SHEN Yu Chun 

23. Dr SZETO Chui Ying 

24. Dr TAM Chun Ho 

25. Dr TAM Long Yee 

26. Dr TO King 

27. Dr TSAI Hung Yu 

28. Dr WONG Calvin Alexander 

29. Dr WONG Chiu Lun 

30. Dr Jonathan C H WONG 

31. Dr WONG Man Ho 

32. Dr WONG Sau Kuen 

33. Dr Rosanna W N WONG 

34. Dr WOO Long Yiu 

35. Dr YEUNG Lok Ki 

36. Dr Genevieve M L YIU 

37. Dr Louise Anne S W YU 

 

New Territory East Cluster 

1. Dr CHAU Chuen 

2. Dr CHOI Man Kit 

3. Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung 

4. Dr FAN Vei Chen 

5. Dr Andrew Y W FUNG 

6. Dr Andrew K M KONG 

7. Dr LAU Sin Mei 

8. Dr LEE Jerrold 

9. Dr Viola W Y LEUNG 

10. Dr LI Kwok Ho 

11. Dr Sunny W H LI 

12. Dr LIM Foon Lian 

13. Dr MAK Ho Yin 

14. Dr NG Hok Wai 

15. Dr POON Lai Ping 

16. Dr SHEN Yu Wei 

17. Dr Arthur C K WONG 

18. Dr WONG Hiu Yeung 

19. Dr ZHAO HaiFeng

 

New Territory West Cluster 

1. Dr Erica C S CHAN 

2. Dr CHAN Yuen Ching 

3. Dr CHANG Ting Ting 

4. Dr Catherine K Y CHENG 

5. Dr Jonathan C H CHUNG 

6. Dr FAN Siu Wai 

7. Dr HUN Pek I 

8. Dr KO Pak Long 

9. Dr LAM Ka Wai 

10. Dr LAM Kang 

11. Dr LAM Wai Yiu 

12. Dr LEUNG Ching 

13. Dr Cathy K Y LO 

14. Dr NG Kai Man 

15. Dr SHENG Wei Yang 

16. Dr Kevin K H SO 

17. Dr TONG Wing Sze 

18. Dr TSANG Kam Wah 

19. Dr TSANG Lai Ting 

20. Dr TSANG Yee Wing 

21. Dr WU Flora 

22. Dr Jon-Alvan T H YAP  

23. Dr YIP Pui Leung 

24. Dr YU Yi Fung 

25. Dr ZHANG Dingzuan 

26. Dr ZHOU Niman 

 

Others 

1. Dr Eugenia L C LAM    
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APPENDIX B 

Clinical Supervisors of Basic and Higher Training in Family Medicine

 1.  Dr Simon C L AU 

 2.  Dr Barry T F BIEN 

 3.  Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

 4.  Dr CHAN Chin Ping 

 5.  Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

 6.  Dr Peter H C CHAN 

 7.  Dr CHAN Ka Ho 

 8.  Dr Carroll K L CHAN 

 9.  Dr CHAN Ka Man 

 10.  Dr CHAN Ka Wai 

 11.  Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

 12.  Dr CHAN King Hong 

 13.  Dr Kitty K C CHAN 

 14.  Dr Keith K W CHAN 

 15.  Dr CHAN Laam 

 16.  Dr CHAN Lit Ping 

 17.  Dr Jeff M H CHAN 

 18.  Dr CHAN Man Li 

 19.  Dr CHAN Mei Tak 

 20.  Dr Angus M W CHAN 

 21.  Dr CHAN Ngai Ping 

 22.  Dr CHAN Pang Fai 

 23.  Dr CHAN Pui Wai 

 24.  Dr CHAN Sio Pan 

 25.  Dr CHAN Suk Yin 

 26.  Dr David S L CHAN 

 27.  Dr Eddie T CHAN 

 28.  Dr CHAN Ting Bong 

 29.  Dr CHAN Wan Wai 

 30.  Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

 31.  Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

 32.  Dr Thomas Y L CHAN 

 33.  Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei 

 34.  Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

 35.  Dr Andrew Y H CHAN 

 36.  Dr CHAN Yuen Yan 

 37.  Dr David V K CHAO 

 38.  Dr CHAU Kai Man 

 39.  Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

 40.  Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong 

 41.  Dr David C S CHENG 

 42.  Dr Judy G Y CHENG 

 43.  Dr CHENG Kit Wing 

 44.  Dr Lisa P K CHENG 

 45.  Dr Cupid P S CHENG 

 46.  Dr Ronald S Y CHENG 

 47.  Dr CHEUK Christina 

 48.  Dr David C H CHEUNG 

 49.  Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

 50.  Dr Sydney K L CHEUNG 

 51.  Dr CHEUNG Man Ha 

 52.  Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

 53.  Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

 54.  Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung 

 55.  Dr CHEUNG Sze Man 

 56.  Dr Paul W K CHEUNG 

 57.  Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo 

 58.  Dr CHEUNG Yu 

 59.  Dr CHING Kam Wing 

 60.  Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 61.  Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

 62.  Dr Gabriel K CHOI 

 63.  Dr CHOI Wing Kin 

 64.  Dr CHOI Yue Kwan 

 65.  Dr Stephen C W CHOU 

 66.  Dr CHOW Kai Lim 

 67.  Dr CHOW Kam Fai 

 68.  Dr Alex S Y CHOW 

 69.  Dr Ignatius P S CHOY 

 70.  Dr CHU Lai Shan 

 71.  Dr CHU Tsun Kit 

 72.  Dr Daniel W S CHU 

 73.  Dr CHUA Kam Ling 

 74.  Dr Antonio A T CHUH 

 75.  Dr Billy S H CHUI 

 76.  Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong 

 77.  Dr CHUNG Kin Wing 

 78.  Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 

 79.  Dr John T N CHUNG 

 80.  Dr CHUNG Wai Ho 

 81.  Dr DAO Man Chi 

 82.  Dr Anita W M FAN 

 83.  Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

 84.  Dr FOK Peter Anthony 

 85.  Dr Garry K L FONG 

 86.  Dr Stephen K S FOO 

 87.  Dr FOSTER Jonathan Charles 

 88.  Dr FU Sau Nga 

 89.  Dr FUNG Hoi Tik 

 90.  Dr FUNG Kwok Hay 

 91.  Dr FUNG Pak Kei 

 92.  Dr Colman S C FUNG 

 93.  Dr HO Hon Ming 

 94.  Dr HO Ka Ming 

 95.  Dr HO Kam Wai 

 96.  Dr Anthony K Y HO 

 97.  Dr Desmond W F HO 

 98.  Dr HO Wing Man 

 99.  Dr HONG Tin Chak 

 100.  Dr HUI King Wai 

 101.  Dr Wilson K S HUI 

 102.  Dr HUI Lai Chi 

 103.  Dr Eric M T HUI 

 104.  Dr Linda Y F HUI 

 105.  Dr HUNG Chi Bun 

 106.  Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

 107.  Dr Winson W Y HUNG 

 108.  Dr Ronald C H IP 

 109.  Dr Andrew K K IP 

 110.  Dr IP Pang Fei 

 111.  Dr IP Sui Wah 

 112.  Dr IP Yan Yan 

 113.  Dr Silvia S M KAM 

 114.  Dr KAN Chi Ho 

 115.  Dr KO Siu Hin 

 116.  Dr KO Wai Kit 

 117.  Dr KONG Che Wan 

 118.  Dr KUNG Kenny 

 119.  Dr Betty K M KWAN 

 120.  Dr KWAN Sin Man 

 121.  Dr Wendy W Y KWAN 

 122.  Dr KWAN Yu 
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 123.  Dr KWOK Chi Sum 

 124.  Dr KWOK Vincci 

 125.  Dr Mary B L KWONG 

 126.  Dr KWONG Ho Tak 

 127.  Dr KWONG Hon Kei 

 128.  Dr KWONG Ka Wah 

 129.  Dr Alfred S K KWONG 

 130.  Dr KWONG Wing Hun 

 131.  Dr LAI Kit Chi 

 132.  Dr Loretta K P LAI 

 133.  Dr LAI Sheung Siu 

 134.  Dr LAI Siu Wai 

 135.  Dr Irene S Y LAI 

 136.  Dr LAI Sum Yin 

 137.  Dr Douglas T C LAI 

 138.  Dr LAI Wai Wah 

 139.  Dr Johnny C Y LAM 

 140.  Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

 141.  Dr LAM Hon Man 

 142.  Dr Stanley K H LAM 

 143.  Prof Cindy L K LAM 

 144.  Dr LAM Paul 

 145.  Dr LAM Pui 

 146.  Prof LAM Tai Pong 

 147.  Dr Catherine T M LAM 

 148.  Dr Augustine T LAM 

 149.  Dr LAU Chi Hang 

 150.  Dr LAU Chi Hung 

 151.  Dr Angela K M LAU 

 152.  Dr LAU Kam Tong 

 153.  Dr Kinson K S LAU 

 154.  Dr Dominic M W LAU 

 155.  Dr LAU Po Shan 

 156.  Dr LAU Pui Ling 

 157.  Dr LAU Tai Wai 

 158.  Dr LAW Tung Chi 

 159.  Prof LEE Albert 

 160.  Dr Frederick C T LEE 

 161.  Dr LEE Chik Pui 

 162.  Dr Tony C K LEE 

 163.  Dr LEE Hoi Ying 

 164.  Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

 165.  Dr LEE Kar Fai 

 166.  Dr LEE Kit Yan 

 167.  Dr LEE Ling Hin 

 168.  Dr LEE Man Kei 

 169.  Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

 170.  Dr Francis W T LEE 

 171.  Dr LEE Wang Yat 

 172.  Dr LEE Wing Yi 

 173.  Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

 174.  Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG 

 175.  Dr LEUNG Ka Fai 

 176.  Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

 177.  Dr LEUNG Lok Hang 

 178.  Dr Crystal P S LEUNG 

 179.  Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun 

 180.  Dr Selina S W LEUNG 

 181.  Dr LEUNG To Fung 

 182.  Dr Violet T M LEUNG 

 183.  Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu 

 184.  Dr LEUNG Wing Kit 

 185.  Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

 186.  Dr LI Hei Lim 

 187.  Dr LI Heung Wing 

 188.  Prof Donald K T LI 

 189.  Dr Vincent W S LI 

 190.  Dr LI Yim Chu 

 191.  Dr LIANG Jun 

 192.  Dr Raymond C H LO 

 193.  Dr Dana S M LO 

 194.  Dr Yvonne Y C LO 

 195.  Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG) 

 196.  Dr LUI How Mui 

 197.  Dr Benny L P LUI 

 198.  Dr LUK Kam Hung 

 199.  Dr Matthew M H LUK 

 200.  Dr LUK Wan 

 201.  Dr Dennis C S MAK 

 202.  Dr MAN Fung Yi 

 203.  Dr Jennifer Y F MOK 

 204.  Dr NG Ching Luen 

 205.  Dr NG Chun Bor 

 206.  Dr NG Kwok Keung 

 207.  Dr Jackie M P NG 

 208.  Dr NG Mei Yee 

 209.  Dr NG Ming Shing 

 210.  Dr NG Pak Him 

 211.  Dr Catherine S W NG 

 212.  Dr NG Tsz Kin 

 213.  Dr Peter T K NG 

 214.  Dr NG Yeung Shing 

 215.  Dr NG VENTURA Lorna 

 216.  Dr NGAI Bernard 

 217.  Dr Allen H Y NGAI 

 218.  Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

 219.  Dr Raymond K L NGAN 

 220.  Dr OR Ka Yan 

 221.  Dr OWENS David Edward 

 222.  Dr PANG Siu Leung 

 223.  Dr Raymond W M PAU 

 224.  Dr PON Wai Pi 

 225.  Dr PONG Pong 

 226.  Dr POON Ming Wai 

 227.  Dr Anthony S B POON 

 228.  Dr POON Ting Kong 

 229.  Dr SHEK Chun Chiu 

 230.  Dr SHEK Hon Wing 

 231.  Dr Mariana C K SHUEN 

 232.  Dr SIN Ming Chuen 

 233.  Dr SIT Wing Shan 

 234.  Dr SIU Leung Chow 

 235.  Dr SIU Lok Man 

 236.  Dr SO Fong Tat 

 237.  Dr SUN Yiu Kwong 

 238.  Dr David T W SUNG 

 239.  Dr Jimmy H P SY 

 240.  Dr SY Wing Man 

 241.  Dr SZE Chung Fai 

 242.  Dr SZE Hon Ho 

 243.  Dr Catherine P K SZE 

 244.  Dr Janet C Y TAM 

 245.  Dr TAM Ho Shan 

 246.  Dr TAM John Hugh 

 247.  Dr Tammy K W TAM 

 248.  Dr TAM Kit Ping 

 249.  Dr TAM Sze Man 

 250.  Dr TAM Wah Kit 

 251.  Dr TAM Yick Sin 

 252.  Dr TANG Kin Sze 
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 253.  Dr Joyce S F TANG 

 254.  Dr TING Fei Yin 

 255.  Dr Dorothy K Y TO 

 256.  Dr Timmy P H TONG 

 257.  Dr TOO Lai Chong 

 258.  Dr Luke C Y TSANG 

 259.  Dr TSANG Ming Lam 

 260.  Dr TSE Hing Choi 

 261.  Dr TSE Keith Kwok Ki 

 262.  Dr TSE Sut Yee 

 263.  Dr Emily T Y TSE 

 264.  Dr TSE Wan Ying 

 265.  Dr Gene W W TSOI 

 266.  Dr TSUI Felix 

 267.  Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 

 268.  Dr TSUI Kwok Biu 

 269.  Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

 270.  Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

 271.  Dr Hayles H W WAI 

 272.  Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

 273.  Dr WAN Wing Fai 

 274.  Dr WANG Hua Li 

 275.  Dr WONG Chak Tong 

 276.  Dr Roger C K WONG 

 277.  Dr WONG Chi Lung 

 278.  Dr William C W WONG 

 279.  Dr WONG Chun Fai 

 280.  Dr WONG Chung Tao 

 281.  Dr WONG Fai Ying 

 282.  Dr WONG Ho Cheong 

 283.  Dr WONG Kwai Sheung 

 284.  Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

 285.  Dr Joseph K H WONG 

 286.  Dr WONG Kwok Hoi 

 287.  Dr Kitty K WONG 

 288.  Dr Virginia L C WONG 

 289.  Dr WONG Man Kin 

 290.  Dr Michelle M Y WONG 

 291.  Dr Marcus M S WONG 

 292.  Dr Amy O Y WONG 

 293.  Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

 294.  Dr WONG Pak Kin 

 295.  Dr WONG Suk Ching 

 296.  Dr WONG Sum Lok 

 297.  Dr WONG Sze Nga 

 298.  Dr WONG Tak Lung 

 299.  Dr WONG Tseng Kwong 

 300.  Dr Rita W M WONG 

 301.  Dr WONG Wing Sze 

 302.  Dr WONG Yu Fai 

 303.  Dr WU Chun Yu 

 304.  Dr WU Kwok Keung 

 305.  Dr Nerrissa S C WU 

 306.  Dr Tom T Y WU 

 307.  Dr YAU Kin Chung 

 308.  Dr YAU Lai Mo 

 309.  Dr YEUNG Chi Keung 

 310.  Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

 311.  Dr YEUNG Sze Wai 

 312.  Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

 313.  Dr YIM Chi Ling 

 314.  Dr YIP Chun Kong 

 315.  Dr YIP Pui Chuen 

 316.  Dr YIP Wing Yi 

 317.  Dr YIU Ming Pong 

 318.  Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

 319.  Dr YU Pui Hang 

 320.  Dr Frances S K YU 

 321.  Dr Esther Y T YU 

 322.  Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

 323.  Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

APPENDIX C 

Training Centers and Clinical Supervisors of Basic Vocational Training Programme in Family Medicine 

HOSPITAL BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1.  Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (Coordinator: Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr CHAN Chung Yung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Richard S D YEUNG Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kin Wing General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Chi Wo Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Hok Sum Internal Medicine 

Dr Larry W L CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHENG Yuk Lun Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Kin Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Sheng Sheng Internal Medicine 

Dr HUI Aric Josun Internal Medicine 

Dr HUI Wai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr LAI King Son Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Wai Yan Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Shun Wah Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Kwun Man Internal Medicine 

Dr LUN Chung Tat Internal Medicine 

Dr TSANG Chiu Chi Internal Medicine 

Dr Jonas H M YEUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr Jason C H FAN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jeffrey Justin S C KOO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Hoi Yan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAW Sheung Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Siu Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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Dr LO Chun Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MA Chun Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Kwok Chiu Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Tang Tat Paediatrics 

Dr CHENG Yan Wah Paediatrics 

Dr MA Kam Hung Paediatrics 

Dr MAK Chung Wai Paediatrics 

Dr Rainbow K Y MAK Paediatrics 

Dr Luke C T TONG Paediatrics 

Dr TSUI Kwing Wan Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Tak Wai Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Wai Chun Paediatrics 

 

2. Caritas Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr CHAN Ho Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHIU King Yung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Vincent W T HO Emergency Medicine 

Dr HO Yu Kit Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chui Ling Emergency Medicine 

Dr Gordon P C LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr Ringo S F LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chung Hong Emergency Medicine 

Dr MA Kin Kou Emergency Medicine 

Dr MUI Tsz Kuen Emergency Medicine 

Dr SOONG Chieh Pin Emergency Medicine 

Dr TANG Ka Yuen Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSANG Wai Tsan Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Pan General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Chung Yeung General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Chi Keung General Surgery 

Dr Tommy C H MAN General Surgery 

Dr NG Ka Chun General Surgery 

Dr Steven K L TING General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kwok Wa General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Jen Ngai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHIU Chi Suen Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Chi Kai Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Oi Ling Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chi Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chung Ping Internal Medicine 

Dr NG Kam Hung Internal Medicine 

Dr Lawrence C Y ONG Internal Medicine 

Dr SAY Chun Yu Internal Medicine 

Dr SHAN Hok Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr SHEK Lam Hin Internal Medicine 

Dr Vicki H K TAM Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Cheuk Lik Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Chit Wai Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Mo Lin Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Wing Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr WOO Kam Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr David S P YONG Internal Medicine 

Dr YOUNG Kit Yu Internal Medicine 

Dr YUEN Sze Kit Internal Medicine 

Dr Epiphania Y C CHAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Mimi T M FUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HE Mung Yuen Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HUI Sze Ki Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Fred Y L KUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Kai Wan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Yun Ting Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LO Tsz Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr MOK Sau Lan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 
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Dr TAM Man Sum Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Janet S M TANG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Rebecca S F WAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Queenie H Y WONG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Rose P S CHAN Ophthalmology 

Dr Ida Y F IO Ophthalmology 

Dr Madeline K M KWOK Ophthalmology 

Dr KWONG Chi Ho Ophthalmology 

Dr Rachel P W KWONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Frank H P LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr Robert F LAM Ophthalmology 

Dr LI Chi Lai Ophthalmology 

Dr Fiona O J LUK Ophthalmology 

Dr Abbie S W LUK Ophthalmology 

Dr NGAI Wing Sang Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Kwok Tung Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Lee Ophthalmology 

Dr CHAN Hing Shing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIU Ming Yu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HO Sheung Tung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Angela W H HO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr IP Hoi Yeung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MAN Lok Pong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kwok Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YEUNG Yip Kan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Cheong Wai Paediatrics 

Dr CHENG Wai Wai Paediatrics 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Ming Paediatrics 

Dr HUI Wai Han Paediatrics 

Dr HUNG Kei Wong Paediatrics 

Dr KO Chun Hung Paediatrics 

Dr KO Po Wan Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Ping Paediatrics 

Dr LAU Wai Ling Paediatrics 

Dr Yoki Y K FONG Psychiatry 

Dr HO Pui Tat Psychiatry 

Dr KU Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

Dr Shirley S L WONG Psychiatry 

 

3. Castle Peak Hospital (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Cheong Fai) 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Koi Man Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Suet Yan Psychiatry 

Dr LAI Wing Him Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Mei Suen Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Yuk Shing Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sai Yu Psychiatry 

Dr MAK Shun Chi Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Chi Fong Psychiatry 

Dr TUNG Chi Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr YEUNG Sze Wing Psychiatry 

 
4. Evangel Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Billy S H CHUI) 

Dr Dennis Y P YUEN Internal Medicine 

Dr David Y W WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr FUNG Shiu Kee Otorhinolaryngology 
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Dr Leo P W CHIU Psychiatry 

5. Fung Yiu King Hospital (Coordinator: Dr James K H LUK) 

Dr Felix H W CHAN Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHAN Tuen Ching Geriatric Medicine 

Dr James K H LUK Geriatric Medicine 

 
6. Grantham Hospital – Ophthalmology (Coordinator: Prof Jimmy S M LAI) 

Prof Jimmy S M LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr Yim Suk Ming Ophthalmology 

 

7. Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Joseph W T CHAN) 

Dr Johnny C Y CHAN Dermatology 

Dr Ian C T TSE Dermatology 

Dr Angus C W CHAN General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Sang General Surgery 

Dr Annie O O CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Bing Internal Medicine 

Dr Raymond H S LIANG Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Kwok Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr Joseph W T CHAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr John S M CHANG Ophthalmology 

Dr Ivan N CHEN Ophthalmology 

Dr Walton W T LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Agnes T Y TSE Ophthalmology 

Dr Joan T WU Ophthalmology 

Dr Stephen W C WU Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Ignace W WEI Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TSAO Yen Chow Paediatrics 

Dr Ben K L CHEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr IP Yan Ming Psychiatry 

 
8. Haven of Hope Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LAM Wai Man) 

Dr MOK Shan Shan Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kam Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kin Sang Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Wai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr NG Sheung Ching Internal Medicine 

Dr Donald K K SHING Internal Medicine 

Dr WAH Shu Hong Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Wei Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr YIP Choi Wan Internal Medicine 

 
9. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Stanley K F TAM) 

Dr Dorothy W H Kwok Internal Medicine 

Dr MA Hon Sum Internal Medicine 

Dr Stanley K F TAM Internal Medicine 

Dr YAU Wai Shan Internal Medicine 

 
10. Hong Kong Eye Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YUEN Kwok Lai) 

Dr CHAN Kar Man Ophthalmology 

Dr CHI Chung Chai Ophthalmology 

Dr CHOW Wing See Ophthalmology 

Dr Angie H C FONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Yolanda Y Y KWONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Isabel S W LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr LAM Nai Man Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Lai Chun Ophthalmology 

Dr LOK Ka Hing Ophthalmology 

Dr MOHAMED Shaheeda Ophthalmology 

Dr Clement C Y THAM Ophthalmology 

Dr TSANG Chi Wai Ophthalmology 

Dr Mandy O M WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Siu Man Ophthalmology 
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Dr Victoria W Y WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr YUEN Kwok Lai Ophthalmology 

 

11. Kowloon Hospital, Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr Roger M K NG) 

Dr CHAN Ka Yee Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Chun Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Wai Keung Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Che Kin Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Hing Wah Psychiatry 

Dr Kevin Y T LI Psychiatry 

Dr Roger M K NG Psychiatry 

Dr POON Ting Keung Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Man Tak Psychiatry 

Dr Eric W C YAU Psychiatry 

Dr Gabriel K K YU Psychiatry 

 
12. Kowloon Hospital, Respiratory Medical Department (Coordinator: Dr LING Sai On) 

Dr KWAN Hoi Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr LING Sai On Internal Medicine 

Dr Thomas Y W MOK Internal Medicine 

Dr POON Yik Ning Internal Medicine 

Dr Anthony P Y YAU Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Chie Wai Internal Medicine 

 
13. Kwai Chung Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Desmond G H NGUYEN) 

Dr CHAN Cheuk Chi Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Chin Ho Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Hung Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Lap Kei Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Kin Shing Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie M M CHIU Psychiatry 

Dr CHOI Yan Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Catherine S Y CHONG Psychiatry 

Dr Stephanie S K CHU Psychiatry 

Dr CHUN King Kong Psychiatry 

Dr HEUNG Joyce Psychiatry 

Dr HO Pui Tat Psychiatry 

Dr KU Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

Dr Lisa L S LAU Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Chi Chiu Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Quinson Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Wing King Psychiatry 

Dr Joey S Y LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LI Ching Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr LIU Wan Wan Psychiatry 

Dr Alison W F LO Psychiatry 

Dr LU Wan Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Desmond G H NGUYEN Psychiatry 

Dr Clara M W SIU Psychiatry 

Dr Danny W H TAM Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Chun Pan Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Hoi Yin Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Wing Ki Psychiatry 

Dr TSANG Suk Ling Psychiatry 

Dr Carrie K Y TUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Lydia K Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Lai Yi Psychiatry 

Dr Charlotte W K WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Shirley S L WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Terence T Y YEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Vicky W K YOUNG Psychiatry 

Dr YU Yee Wah Psychiatry 
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14. Kwong Wah Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Lorna V NG) 

Dr AU Yiu Kai General Surgery 

Dr Miranda C M CHAN General Surgery 

Dr Patrick Y Y LAU General Surgery 

Dr LAW In Chak General Surgery 

Dr NG Yim Hung General Surgery 

Dr YING Wai Leung General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Ming Houng Internal Medicine 

Dr KWAN Min Chung Internal Medicine 

Dr MAK Siu Ka Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Ping Nam Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kit Sheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Irene L Y CHO Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAI Shui Fan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Mei Ting Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAU Wai Lam Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEUNG Tsin Wah Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEUNG Wing Cheong Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Kennis A L LIU Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Vivian K S NG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr YUNG Wai Kwan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Wai Lam Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOI Siu Tong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Tik Koon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Keith H M WAN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hing Cheong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kam Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kevin K H WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Wing Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WOO Siu Bon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Vincent P H YU Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Ka Li Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Yuen Yu Paediatrics 

Dr Lettie C K LEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr Daniel K K NG Paediatrics 

 

15. North District Hospital (Coordinator: Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr Bin A K KITCHELL Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAW Kam Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Wing Cheong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Yin General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Yue Sun General Surgery 

Dr LEONG Heng Tat General Surgery 

Dr Raymond S K LI General Surgery 

Dr MAK Siu King General Surgery 

Dr NG Chung Kei General Surgery 

Dr TSOI Yee Kei General Surgery 

Dr LAU Kam Piu Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG I Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr LIEM Man Shing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LO Cho Yau Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr SIU Yuk Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kit Yi Psychiatry 

 

16. Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Winnie W Y CHAN) 

Dr CHIU Ying Wah General Surgery 

Dr Kevin C N LAU General Surgery 

Dr Jasmine T M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Wing I Internal Medicine 

Dr Iris W S KWAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Herrick S W LAU Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Sze Ting Internal Medicine 
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Dr Sandy H S LEUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr MAN Shiu Piu Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Kai Kit Ophthalmology 

Dr LAU Sai Kit Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr HUNG Kei Wong Paediatrics 

Dr KO Po Wan Paediatrics 

 

17. Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Michelle M Y WONG) 

Dr Thomas T S AU Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Hok Hang Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Lap Wa Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ming Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffrey C W CHAU Emergency Medicine 

Dr Edward S C CHIANG Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHOI Sing Yim Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHOI Yu Fai Emergency Medicine 

Dr Samuel S N CHOW Emergency Medicine 

Dr HON Ka Fai Emergency Medicine 

Dr KWOK Wai Shing Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAW Chi Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Kai Shing Emergency Medicine 

Dr Maxime S M MARK Emergency Medicine 

Dr Maria M Y SY Emergency Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Sze Hoi Emergency Medicine 

Dr YU Fong Emergency Medicine 

Dr YUNG Chun Tung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Christina T Y CHAN General Surgery 

Dr Oliver C Y CHAN General Surgery 

Dr Jessie Y W CHAN General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Ning Hong General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Wai Hong General Surgery 

Dr CHIU Nga King General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Chi Yee General Surgery 

Dr Carmen C W CHU General Surgery 

Dr Daniel T M CHUNG General Surgery 

Dr Eric C H LAI General Surgery 

Dr LAU Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Steven C Y LAW General Surgery 

Dr LEE Suet Ying General Surgery 

Dr Alex L H LEUNG General Surgery 

Dr James C M LI General Surgery 

Dr Eric S K LI General Surgery 

Dr Grace Y L LIU General Surgery 

Dr Skyi Y C PANG General Surgery 

Dr TANG Chung Ngai General Surgery 

Dr Jason K W WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Ho General Surgery 

Dr AU YEUNG Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kwok Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yu Pak Internal Medicine 

Dr Jonathan Y K CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Chun Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Vincent C C CHOW Internal Medicine 

Dr Bonnie C S KHO Internal Medicine 

Dr LAO Wai Cheung Internal Medicine 

Dr Emmy Y F LAU Internal Medicine 

Dr Violet K L LEE Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chi Man Internal Medicine 

Dr Stanley H K LO Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Yi Tat Internal Medicine 

Dr LUNG Kwok Cheung Internal Medicine 

Dr Flora P L MIU Internal Medicine 

Dr MO Ka Leung Internal Medicine 

Dr PANG Ho Kwong Internal Medicine 
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Dr Loletta K Y SO Internal Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kin Lam Internal Medicine 

Dr Winnie Z M WAT Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Chi Kwan Internal Medicine 

Dr Stephen S F WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Ka Man Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHUNG Carmen Diana Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Jessica Y P LAW Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Chung Nin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Dorothy Y T NG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Wendy SHU Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TANG Kwok Keung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr WONG Daniel Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Anita P C YEUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Edwin Ophthalmology 

Dr Calle K L KO Ophthalmology 

Dr KO Tak Chuen Ophthalmology 

Dr LEOW Po Lin Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Shan Ophthalmology 

Dr CHAN Wai Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Philip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIU Shin Yeung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HAU Vincent Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr IP Fu Keung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Ka Hei Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Man Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Priscilla O Y LEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MAK Yan Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MOK Wing Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr POON Kai Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TAM Kin Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Wai Leuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Man Kwan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Tak Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YAM Sai Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIP Tak Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ka Cheong Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Amy Sonya C S CHEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Alvin P N CHU Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Peter K C KWAN Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TONG Fu Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Chui Yan Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHAN Chi Man Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Kwong Tat Paediatrics 

Dr KO Wai Tai Paediatrics 

Dr Elaine Y W KWAN Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Kwok Piu Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Shing Yan Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Wing Cheong Paediatrics 

Dr LIU Kam Tim Paediatrics 

Dr SO Lok Yee Paediatrics 

Dr TAI Shuk Mui Paediatrics 

Dr Lilian L Y TSUNG Paediatrics 

Dr Wendy K W WONG Paediatrics 

Dr Wilson K Y YEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr YU Tak Ching Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Ka Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Man Chak Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Wai Hong Psychiatry 

Dr Joyce Y CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr CHEUK Tin Yan Psychiatry 

Dr CHOY Lam Wai Psychiatry 

Dr Eva L W DUNN Psychiatry 

Dr HUI Hon Man Psychiatry 
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Dr Brian P I IP Psychiatry 

Dr KAN Chui Kwan Psychiatry 

Dr KWOK Choi Hon Psychiatry 

Dr Francis W K LEE Psychiatry 

Dr POON Yvonne Patricia Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Chi Keung Psychiatry 

Dr Queenie S M WONG Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Shun Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Anna Y K WU Psychiatry 

Dr YEUNG Wai Song Psychiatry 

 
18. Pok Oi Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LIANG Jun) 

Dr FUNG Hin Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffery C H LAI Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chu Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Larry L Y LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr ONG Kim Lian Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Yi General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Shun General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung General Surgery 

Dr Lysander H CHAU General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Cheung Hing General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Hin Fong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Wing Kee General Surgery 

Dr CHU Ming Leong General Surgery 

Dr CHU Sau Kwan General Surgery 

Dr FUNG Tak Kwan General Surgery 

Dr HUI Wei Han General Surgery 

Dr HUNG Lai Fai General Surgery 

Dr LEE Ching Ching General Surgery 

Dr LEE Yue Kit General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Yu Wing General Surgery 

Dr MAK Chak Fong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Yan Wah General Surgery 

Dr MAN Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Michael C M POON General Surgery 

Dr Terrence T L POON General Surgery 

Dr THUNG Kin Hoi General Surgery 

Dr TSUI King Yiu General Surgery 

Dr Kenny C Y WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Chun Sing General Surgery 

Dr Kelvin K F WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kei Kwong General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Man General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wui Bun General Surgery 

Dr Patricia P C YAM General Surgery 

Dr YIU Chun Wang General Surgery 

Dr YIU Hak Lim General Surgery 

Dr YUEN Ho Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Ting Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr CHOI Chun Hung Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LAM Cheuk Sum Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr MAN Shiu Piu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SHIU Ka Lock Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Matthew K H TONG Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr WONG Chi Wing Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr YUNG Chun Yu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr CHAN Chun Fung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ping Tak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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Dr CHENG Hung On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Chi Nok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alexander K Y CHOI Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Yuk Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Chi Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Arthur K H MA Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Bruce Y H TANG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Ka Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSUI Hon For Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WEN Eleanor Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hok Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WUN Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Emily K Y YIP Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIO Io Meng Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LAU Tak Yin Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LEE Ting Hon Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Vincent K H LEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Andrew C L WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Athena T K WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr YEUNG Kong Wah Otorhinolaryngology 

 

19. Prince of Wales Hospital (Coordinator: Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr CHEUNG Koon Ho Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Nai Kwong Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Yue Sun General Surgery 

Dr Simon S M HOU General Surgery 

Dr LEE Kit Fai General Surgery 

Dr Albert K Y NG General Surgery 

Dr Enders K W NG General Surgery 

Dr Jones C M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kai Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Philip K T LI Internal Medicine 

Dr OZAKI Risa Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Kong Chiu Internal Medicine 

Dr Raymond S M WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Man Yan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr WAH Yi Man Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr YEUNG Suet Ying Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Noel C Y CHAN Ophthalmology 

Dr CHEN Lijia Ophthalmology 

Dr Joyce K Y CHIN Ophthalmology 

Dr FAR Ying Ophthalmology 

Dr HO Mary Ophthalmology 

Dr Lawrence P L IU Ophthalmology 

Dr KAM Ka Wai Ophthalmology 

Dr LOK Ying Ching Ophthalmology 

Dr YIP Wai Kuen Ophthalmology 

Dr Alvin L YOUNG Ophthalmology 

Dr CHIU Wang Kei Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHUNG Kwong Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Kin On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LO Chun Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TANG Ning Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSE Wing Lim Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kwok Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Yu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Man Wai Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LEUNG Moon Wah Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Wai Yeung Otorhinolaryngology 
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Dr CHAN Ching Ching Paediatrics 

Dr Eva L W FUNG Paediatrics 

Dr Assunta C H HO Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Hugh Simon Hung San Paediatrics 

Dr LEUNG Ting Fan Paediatrics 

Dr LI Chi Kong Paediatrics 

Dr Albert M LI Paediatrics 

Dr Amy F C LO Paediatrics 

Dr Geoffrey C F MOK Paediatrics 

Dr Allan K W SO Paediatrics 

Dr Gary W K WONG Paediatrics 

Dr YAM Man Ching Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Ho Chung Paediatrics 

Dr KO Shuk Fun Psychiatry 

Dr Grace T Y LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Vincent M C LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LIN Wei Psychiatry 

Dr Arthur D P MAK Psychiatry 

Dr Alan K L TANG Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Wai Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr WING Yun Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Tak Shun Psychiatry 

 

20. Princess Margaret Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr CHAN Chi Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEE Fu Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr SHIH Yau Ngai Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kwong Man General Surgery 

Dr HO Leung Sing General Surgery 

Dr LAI Tak Wing General Surgery 

Dr KO Chi Fai Geriatric Medicine 

Dr Alexander C B LAW Geriatric Medicine 

Dr TAM Tak Cheong Geriatric Medicine 

Dr TONG Bing Chung Geriatric Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Kwan Mo Geriatric Medicine 

Dr AU Kai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ka Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kin Wah Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Chun Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ngai Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yu Wai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHANG Yui Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUK Au Internal Medicine 

Dr John J H CHIU Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Ho Ying Internal Medicine 

Dr CHU Pui Shan Internal Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Chun Hoi Internal Medicine 

Dr Samuel K S FUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Chi Pang Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Sze Ki Internal Medicine 

Dr Victor H F HUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Chi Hang Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Hau Chung Internal Medicine 

Dr KWONG Kai Yan Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Wai Sing Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Kwok Kuen Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE William Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wai Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr Reggie S T LI Internal Medicine 

Dr Vivien W M MAK Internal Medicine 

Dr MOK Ngai Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr Carmen K M NG Internal Medicine 

Dr POON Ka Yan Internal Medicine 
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Dr SHENG Bun Internal Medicine 

Dr TANG Hon Lok Internal Medicine 

Dr Owen T Y TSANG Internal Medicine 

Dr TSUI Ping Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Yiu Cheong Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Ka Fai Internal Medicine 

Dr YING King Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr Epiphania Y C CHAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Mimi T M FUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HE Mung Yuen Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HUI Sze Ki Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Fred Y L KUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Kai Wan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Yun Ting Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LO Tsz Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr MOK Sau Lan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TAM Man Sum Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Janet S M TANG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Rebecca S F WAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Queenie H Y WONG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Shiu Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Kim Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOI Shing Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LUI Wai Hee Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr SIU Kwai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TAM Kwok Bun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Benny Y N TSE Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Chong Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hin Keung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kam Yiu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WU Tse Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YUEN Man Hon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr FONG Nai Chung Paediatrics 

Dr KWAN Yat Wah Paediatrics 

Dr SHEK Chi Chiu Paediatrics 

Dr Eric K C YAU Paediatrics 

 
21. Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Coordinator: Dr CHOI Cheung Hei) 

Dr Paul H F HO Emergency Medicine 

Dr Gordon C K WONG Emergency Medicine 

Dr AU Wing Hang General Surgery 

Dr CHIA Nam Hung General Surgery 

Dr CHICK Wai Keung General Surgery 

Dr KWOK Kam Hung General Surgery 

Dr LAU Chi Hung General Surgery 

Dr LEE Kin Yan General Surgery 

Dr LI Ki Kwong General Surgery 

Dr Allen K L TONG General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Kam Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr Johnny W M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Cheung Hei Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Man Po Internal Medicine 

Dr HUNG Wing Yan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LI Wai Hon Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Nai Man Ophthalmology 

Dr Benjamin S T FONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Kin Bong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Wilson Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr John K F WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHONG Hon Ming Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Kelvin C W CHOW Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHU Tsun Cheong Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr PANG Pui Shan Otorhinolaryngology 
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Dr Betty W M BUT Paediatrics 

Dr Winnie K Y CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Wai Hung Paediatrics 

Dr Jasmine C K CHOW Paediatrics 

Dr HO Po Ki Paediatrics 

Dr LAM King Fai Paediatrics 

Dr NG Chi Hang Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Man Yee Paediatrics 

Dr WU Shun Ping Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Yat Sun Paediatrics 

 

22. Queen Mary Hospital (Coordinator: Dr KO Wai Kit) 

Dr Tsang Tat Chi Emergency Medicine 

Dr Ludwig C H TSOI Emergency Medicine 

Dr Tsui Sik Hon Emergency Medicine 

Dr Albert C W TING General Surgery 

Dr James C M HO Internal Medicine 

Dr Mary S M IP Internal Medicine 

Dr Karen S L LAM Internal Medicine 

Dr Albert K W LIE Internal Medicine 

Dr Paulin W S MA Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Kenneth M C CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Man Hong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jason P Y CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Peter K Y CHIU Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Fang Xinshuo Christian Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Ip Wing Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kenny Y H KWAN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Lam Ying Lee Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Frankie K L LEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Terence C T PUN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Michael K T TO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Wong Tak Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Yan Chun Hoi Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Yau Wai Pan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Ho Wai Kuen Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Raymond K Y TSANG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Birgitta Y H WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Godfrey C F CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr Anita M C TSANG Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Fong Chun Psychiatry 

Dr Phyllis K L CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kwai Yeung Psychiatry 

Dr Queenie P M CHIN Psychiatry 

Dr Eileena M C CHUI Psychiatry 

Dr HO Chung Psychiatry 

Dr LAW Chi Wing Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Chit Tat Psychiatry 

Dr Michael M C WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Zoe H S YU Psychiatry 

    
23. Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Michelle M Y WONG) 

Dr Carolyn P L KNG Internal Medicine 

Dr Jenny Y Y LEUNG Internal Medicine 
 
24. Shatin Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr HUI Elsie Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LUM Chor Ming Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr NG Wing Ling Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Maria W S TANG Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr WOO Jean Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr YUK Ka Lok Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr KAM Wai Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr Joshua M Y TSOH Psychiatry 
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Dr WING Yun Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr Alan K L TANG Psychiatry 

 
25. Tai Po Hospital, Department of Medicine (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr CHUI Pui Yuk Internal Medicine 

Dr LAI King Son Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Man Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Shun Wah Internal Medicine 

Dr MA Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr MAK Ka Pui Internal Medicine 

 
26. Tai Po Hospital, Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr CHAN Sheung Chun Psychiatry 

Dr TAI Wing Ki Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Yip Chau Psychiatry 

 

27. Tseung Kwan O Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LAU Ip Tim) 

Dr KUNG Shu Wing Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEE Chung Yan Emergency Medicine 

Dr LOK Cheuk Mei Emergency Medicine 

Dr MA Shu Kai Emergency Medicine 

Dr NG Wah Shan Emergency Medicine 

Dr POON Tak Shun Emergency Medicine 

Dr SO Lok Tsun Emergency Medicine 

Dr YAU Kin Pang Emergency Medicine 

Dr YOUNG Bun Emergency Medicine 

Dr Bryant S Y CHAN General Surgery 

Dr Phoebe M H CHEUNG General Surgery 

Dr CHONG Lap Chun General Surgery 

Dr CHUNG Tsz Kwong General Surgery 

Dr Grace K Y HUNG General Surgery 

Dr Alex T Y LAI General Surgery 

Dr Tommy C F LAU General Surgery 

Dr Candy Y Y LEUNG General Surgery 

Dr Susanna W Y TAM General Surgery 

Dr Kenny K Y YUEN General Surgery 

Dr Susanna C P CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Jacky K H CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHENG Ming Kin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHING Chi Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Chi Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr Frankie C F CHOY Internal Medicine 

Dr Tina T T FAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Elaine T L HO Internal Medicine 

Dr Billy T L LAI Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Chi Kuen Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Ip Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr Athena K Y LOCK Internal Medicine 

Dr Colin H T LUI Internal Medicine 

Dr Samantha Y Y LUK Internal Medicine 

Dr Maria T T SINN Internal Medicine 

Dr TSANG Woon Choy Internal Medicine 

Dr TSE Pak Yiu Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Cheuk Hon Internal Medicine 

Dr Stella P Y WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Chi Kin Internal Medicine 

Dr Joseph S Yeung Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Cheuk Wan Internal Medicine 

Dr Ivan P K YUEN Internal Medicine 

Dr Sylvia S N CHOI Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Wai Cheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TSANG Sing Wing Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Tracy H T LAI Ophthalmology 
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Dr CHAN Tsang Tung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Warren W Y CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Yuen Lun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kee K C NG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIP Kun Chow Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIU Lo Ramon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jonathan S H YUEN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alice K Y SIU Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Zenon W C YEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Louis T W CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr KU Wai Hung Paediatrics 

Dr LAU Chun Yuen Paediatrics 

Dr NG Hak Yung Paediatrics 

Dr TAY Ming Kut Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Man Mut Paediatrics 

 
28. Tuen Mun Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LIANG Jun) 

Dr FUNG Hin Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffery C H LAI Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chu Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Larry L Y LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr ONG Kim Lian Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Yi General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Shun General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung General Surgery 

Dr Lysander H CHAU General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Cheung Hing General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Hin Fong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Wing Kee General Surgery 

Dr CHU Ming Leong General Surgery 

Dr CHU Sau Kwan General Surgery 

Dr FUNG Tak Kwan General Surgery 

Dr HUI Wei Han General Surgery 

Dr HUNG Lai Fai General Surgery 

Dr LEE Ching Ching General Surgery 

Dr LEE Yue Kit General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Yu Wing General Surgery 

Dr MAK Chak Fong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Yan Wah General Surgery 

Dr MAN Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Michael C M POON General Surgery 

Dr Terrence T L POON General Surgery 

Dr THUNG Kin Hoi General Surgery 

Dr TSUI King Yiu General Surgery 

Dr Kenny C Y WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Chun Sing General Surgery 

Dr Kelvin K F WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kei Kwong General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Man General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wui Bun General Surgery 

Dr Patricia P C YAM General Surgery 

Dr YIU Chun Wang General Surgery 

Dr YIU Hak Lim General Surgery 

Dr YUEN Ho Yan General Surgery 

Dr Eddie S L CHOW Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Michael Y P FU Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr HAU Kai Ching Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Andrew Y Y HO Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr KWAN Yiu Keung Medicine and Geriatrics 
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Dr Andrew W K LAI Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr MOK Chi Chiu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Francis C K MOK Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SIN Kit Man Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Sidney K C AU-YEUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ho Ophthalmology 

Dr YIU Po Fat Ophthalmology 

Dr YUNG Hon Wah Ophthalmology 

Dr CHAN Chun Fung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ping Tak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHENG Hung On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Chi Nok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alexander K Y CHOI Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Yuk Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWUN Tung Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Chi Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Arthur K H MA Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Bruce Y H TANG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Ka Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSUI Hon For Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WEN Eleanor Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hok Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WUN Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Emily K Y YIP Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIO Io Meng Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LAU Tak Yin Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LEE Ting Hon Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Vincent K H LEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Andrew C L WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Nga Sze Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Athena T K WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr YEUNG Kong Wah Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHAK Wai Kwong Paediatrics 

Dr Tammy W Y CHEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr KWONG Ling Karen Paediatrics 

Dr David S Y LAM Paediatrics 

Dr LI Chak Ho Paediatrics 

Dr LI Ka Wah Paediatrics 

Dr LUI Ying Shun Paediatrics 

Dr Mary Y M NGAN Paediatrics 

Dr Sylvia L Y SIU Paediatrics 

Dr TSE Kong Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Chi Hang Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Lap Ming Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Oi Yin Paediatrics 

Dr YEUNG Kin Yip Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Koi Man Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Sheng Yan Psychiatry 

Dr LAI Wing Him Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Sheng Man Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Mei Suen Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Yuk Shing Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sheng Yu Psychiatry 

Dr MAK Sheng Chi Psychiatry 
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Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Cheng Fong Psychiatry 

Dr TUNG Cheng Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr YEUNG Sheng Wing Psychiatry 

Dr LO Sing Hung Oncology 

Dr Frank C S WONG Oncology 

 
29. Tung Wah Hospital – Department of Medicine (Coordinator: Dr LUI Sing Leung) 

Dr Carmen T K HO Internal Medicine 

Dr IP Tai Pang Internal Medicine 

Dr LUI Sing Leung Internal Medicine 

Dr MOK Ming Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr Terence P S YIP Internal Medicine 

 

30. Tung Wah Hospital – Department of Surgery (Coordinator: Dr Wong Kin Yuen) 

Dr Choi Hok Kwok General Surgery 

Dr Joseph H P CHUNG General Surgery 

Dr NG Lily General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kin Yuen General Surgery 

 

31. Tung Wah Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YUEN Ka Hong) 

Dr LAM Ping Ping Geriatric Medicine 

Dr Grace P S HUI Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Ho Ching Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Kai Chi Internal Medicine 

Dr LIU Hor Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Betty H K YOUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr YUEN Ka Hong Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Edwin Ophthalmology 

Dr Calle K L KO Ophthalmology 

Dr KO Tak Chuen Ophthalmology 

Dr LEOW Po Lin Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Shan Ophthalmology 

Dr Joy W Y SEE LEUNG Ophthalmology 
 

32. United Christian Hospital (Coordinator: Dr David V K CHAO) 

Dr CHAN Yiu Cheung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Chow Yiu Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAM Kin Kwan Emergency Medicine 

Dr Herman K H LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr LI Kai Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr NG Hon Wah Emergency Medicine 

Dr Andy Y B TAM Emergency Medicine 

Dr TANG Ho Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr TING Soo Moi Emergency Medicine 

Dr Sharon W W CHAN General Surgery 

Dr CHOW Tam Lin General Surgery 

Dr Henry K M JOENG General Surgery 

Dr LAW Siu King General Surgery 

Dr SO Hing Shing General Surgery 

Dr TAM Tak Lap General Surgery 

Dr TSE Pui Ying General Surgery 

Dr Arthur H W WU General Surgery 

Dr HUI Kwok Fai Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Grace Y W KAM Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LAM Po Tin Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LIN Shek Ying Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr NG Woon Leung Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Edmund K Y SHA Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SIM Tiong Chee Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Engene Y K TSO Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Sunny S H WONG Medicine and Geriatrics 
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Dr YIM Ting Kwan Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Edith O L CHENG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr GO Wing Wa Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr KONG Choi Wah Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Wai Cheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr William W K TO Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr AU Ka Hong Ophthalmology 

Dr Tracy H T LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr Charles S L LAU Ophthalmology 

Dr Brian C T LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Kenneth K W LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Candice C H LIU Ophthalmology 

Dr MAK Shiu Ting Ophthalmology 

Dr TANG Hoi Yau Ophthalmology 

Dr Emily W H TANG Ophthalmology 

Dr Nelson K F YIP Ophthalmology 

Dr CHIU Chi Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Esther C S Chow Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HSU Yung Chak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HUI Ching Lik Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Sin To Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Edwin K H LAM Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Ka Chi Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Michelle S Y LEE Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Hak Suen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LOK Lin Wing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Sammy N T MAK Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Raymond N M WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr ABDULLAH Victor James Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHO Hung Wai Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr HO Yee Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Wendy M Y Kwan Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Zenon W C YEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHIU Wa Keung Paediatrics 

Dr HO Yok Chiu Paediatrics 

Dr David C K LUK Paediatrics 

Dr Louis C K MA Paediatrics 

Dr NG Kwok Leung Paediatrics 

Dr Coral H S AU Psychiatry 

Dr Connie L W CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr Kenneth S W CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr CHEUNG Lap Kei Psychiatry 

Dr Janice D W CHIK Psychiatry 

Dr CHING Wing Ka Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Shiu Cheung Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Wai Chung Psychiatry 

Dr LI Hoi Man Psychiatry 

Dr Liao Wei Ming Psychiatry 

Dr PANG Pui Fai Psychiatry 

Dr POON Lap Tak Psychiatry 

Dr TSANG Lo Wah Psychiatry 

Dr WAN Yuen Ting Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Ho Hon Psychiatry 

Dr Mimi M C WONG Psychiatry 

Dr YIP Kim Wai Psychiatry 

Dr Michael G C YIU Psychiatry 

 
33. Yan Chai Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr LIM Bun Emergency Medicine 

Dr NGAN Hung Kwok Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Fai General Surgery 

Dr HUI Sheung Kit General Surgery 

Dr KONG Chi Kwan General Surgery 

Dr LUI Ka Wing General Surgery 
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Dr LUI Yuen Ching General Surgery 

Dr Loar K K MO Geriatric Medicine 

Dr WONG Wai Ming Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Siu Fai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Wai Hung Internal Medicine 

Dr LI Kam Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEONG Peng Meng Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KAM Wing Lok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Qunn Jid Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LO Hung Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YUNG Yu Bun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Chiu Wing Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr NGAI Chi Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TANG Kwong Chi Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr SHEK Chi Chiu Paediatrics 

COMMUNITY BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Kwai Fong) (Coordinator: Dr Eddie T CHAN) 

Dr Eddie T CHAN Family Medicine 

 
2. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Tuen Mun) (Coordinator: Dr Eddie T CHAN) 

Dr Eddie T CHAN Family Medicine 

 
3. Aberdeen Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: CHEUNG Ngai Fung) 

Dr KO Wai Kit Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Hon Ho Family Medicine 

Dr WAN Wing Fai Family Medicine 

Dr SY Hung Pan Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Wing Sze Family Medicine 

Dr SIN Ming Chuen Family Medicine 

Dr HO Wang Fung Family Medicine 

Dr David C H CHEUNG Family Medicine 

 
4. Anne Black General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr TSUI Pun Nang) 

Dr CHENG Kit Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Irene S Y LAI Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang Family Medicine 

 
5. Blue Care Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr Angus M W CHAN) 

Dr Angus M W CHAN Family Medicine 

 
6. Caritas Medical Centre - General Practice Clinic (Coordinator: Dr FOK Peter Anthony) 

Dr CHU Lai Shan Family Medicine 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony Family Medicine 

Dr LUK Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ching Luen Family Medicine 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
7. Caritas Medical Centre – Department of Medicine & Geriatrics, Palliative Care Unit (Coordinator: Dr NG Kam Hung) 

Dr NG Kam Hung Rheumatology 

Dr KWOK Oi Ling Palliative Medicine 

Dr Doris M W TSE Internal Medicine 

 
8. Central District Health Centre General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr NGAI Ka Ho) 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho Family Medicine 

 
9. Central Kowloon Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr KO Siu Hin) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr KO Siu Hin Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 
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Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

Dr MAN Fung Yi Family Medicine 

 
10. Chai Wan Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN) 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN Family Medicine 

Dr Douglas T C LAI Family Medicine 

Dr Kinson K S LAU Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Yee Family Medicine 

Dr Roger C K WONG Family Medicine 

 
11. Chai Wan General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu) 

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu Family Medicine 

Dr Michelle M Y WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Family Medicine 

 
12. Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr SY Wing Man) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Lai Shan Family Medicine 

Dr KWAN Sin Man Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Family Medicine 

Dr LUK Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ching Luen Family Medicine 

Dr SY Wing Man Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Ming Pong Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
13. East Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Catherine T M LAM) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine T M LAM Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr Cupid P S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YAU Kin Chung Family Medicine 

 
14. Education and Training Centre in Family Medicine (Ngau Tau Kok) (Coordinator: Dr KONG Che Wan) 

Dr KONG Che Wan Family Medicine 

 
15. Evangel Hospital – Family Medicine Department (Coordinator: Dr Billy S H CHUI) 

Dr Billy S H CHUI Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Tai Wai Family Medicine 

 

16. Fanling Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LAU Kam Tong) 

Dr LAU Kam Tong Family Medicine 

Dr Dominic M W LAU Family Medicine 

Dr Raymond K L NGAN Family Medicine 

Dr Rita W M WONG Family Medicine 

 

17. Fanling Family Medicine Center (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun) 

Dr Jeff M H CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Wai Ho Family Medicine 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Wan Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chi Lung Family Medicine 

Dr Kitty K WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Family Medicine 
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18. Ha Kwai Chung General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr FU Sau Nga) 

Dr DAO Man Chi Family Medicine 

Dr FU Sau Nga Family Medicine 

Dr IP Yan Yan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ming Shing Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Ho Shan Family Medicine 

 
19. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Ka Man) 

Dr CHAN Ka Man Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Sze Luen David Family Medicine 

Dr CHOY Pui Sang Ignatius  

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

 
20. Hong Kong Families Clinic – Tang Chi Ngong Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr TSUI Kwok Biu) 

Dr Anthony K Y HO Family Medicine 

Dr Linda Y F HUI Family Medicine 

Dr Selina S W LEUNG  Family Medicine 

Dr NG Kwok Keung Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Biu Family Medicine 

Dr Roger C K WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Wing Yi Family Medicine 

 
21. Hong Kong Polytechnic University - University Health Service (Coordinator: Dr WONG Ho Cheong) 

Dr KWONG Ho Tak Family Medicine 

Dr Dana S M LO Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Ho Cheong Family Medicine 

 
22. Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital, Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Billy C F CHIU) 

Dr Judy G Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Yu Family Medicine 

Dr Billy C F CHIU Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong Family Medicine 

Dr HONG Tin Chak Family Medicine 

Dr PANG Siu Leung Family Medicine 

Dr Anthony S B POON Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chak Tong Family Medicine 

Dr YUEN Shiu Man Family Medicine 

 
23. Hung Hom General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LAI Siu Wai) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY, Pui Sang Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

 
24. Jockey Club Tin Shui Wai Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr John T N CHUNG) 

Dr John T N CHUNG Family Medicine 

 
25. Jockey Club Wo Lok Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr Joyce S F TANG) 

Dr Joyce S F TANG Family Medicine 

  

26. Kennedy Town Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr WONG Wing Sze) 

Dr WONG Wing Sze Family Medicine 

 
27. Kowloon Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Carroll K L CHAN) 

Dr Carroll K L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Lisa P K CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr HO Kam Wai Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Pui Ling Family Medicine 

 
28. Kwong Wah Hospital - General Out-patient Department (Coordinator: Dr HO Ka Ming) 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

Dr OR Ka Yan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ventura Lorna Family Medicine 
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29. Kwun Tong Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr TOO Lai Chong) 

Dr CHAN Ngai Ping Family Medicine 

Dr KWAN Yu Family Medicine 

Dr TOO Lai Chong Family Medicine 

 
 
30. Lam Tin Polyclinic General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr FUNG Hoi Tik) 

Dr CHAN Pui Wai  Family Medicine 

Dr FUNG Hoi Tik Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Chi Sum Family Medicine 

 
31. Lee Kee Memorial Dispensary (Coordinator: Dr David S L CHAN) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr David S L CHAN  Family Medicine 

Dr KO Siu Hin Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

 
32. Lek Yuen General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Maria K W LEUNG) 

Dr Andy K Y CHEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Family Medicine 

Dr FUNG Pak Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Sheung Siu Family Medicine 

Prof Albert LEE Family Medicine 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Peter T K NG Family Medicine 

 
33. Li Po Chun General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr HUI Lai Chi) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ventura Lorna Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Pui Chuen Family Medicine 

 
34. Ma On Shan Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG Wing Kit) 

Dr CHAN Ting Bong Family Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kam Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wing Kit Family Medicine 

Dr So Fong Tat Family Medicine 

 
35. Madam Yung Fung Shee Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr WONG Man Kin) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 
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Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
36. Mona Fong General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Matthew M H LUK) 

Dr Matthew M H LUK Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Sze Wai Family Medicine 

 
37. New Territories Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Ka Wai) 

Dr CHAN Ka Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Tammy K W TAM Family Medicine 

 
38. Ngau Tau Kok Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr WONG Kwai Wing) 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Sze Nga Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Tak Lung Family Medicine 

 
39. North Lantau Hospital Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr LAM Hiu Lam) 

Dr Alex S Y CHOW Family Medicine 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam Family Medicine 

Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
40. Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital – Family Medicine Clinic and Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Vincent W S LI) 

Dr Vincent W S LI  Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Family Medicine 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Cupid P S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr HUI King Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine T M LAM Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr TAM John Hugh Family Medicine 

Dr Timmy P H TONG Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr Vincent W S LI  Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Family Medicine 

 
41. Pok Oi Hospital - Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Ronald S Y CHENG) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
42. Practice of Dr Ip Kit Kuen (Kwai Chung and Ma On Shan Clinics) (Coordinator: Dr IP Kit Kuen) 

Dr IP Kit Kuen Family Medicine 
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43. Prince of Wales Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic and Integrated & Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LEE Man Kei) 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUK Christina Family Medicine 

Dr HO Wing Man Family Medicine 

Dr Eric M T HUI Family Medicine 

Dr Augustine T LAM Family Medicine 

Prof. Albert Lee Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Man Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Peter T K NG Family Medicine 

Dr SO Fong Tat Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Pak Kin Family Medicine 

Dr Frances S K YU Family Medicine 

 
44. Queen Elizabeth Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & FM Integrated Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LAW Tung Chi) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine X R CHEN Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN King Hong Family Medicine 

Dr KO Siu Hin Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

Dr MAN Fung Yi Family Medicine 

 
45. Queen Mary Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Chin Ping) 

Dr CHAN Chin Ping Family Medicine 

 
46. Robert Black General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Dr POON Ting Kong) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YAU Kin Chung Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

 

47. Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & Family Medicine Training Centre (Coordinator: Dr 

Crystal P S LEUNG) 

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG Family Medicine 
Dr LEUNG Wing Mun Family Medicine 
Dr Michelle M Y WONG Family Medicine 

Dr Marcus M S WONG Family Medicine 

 
48. Sai Wan Ho General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG Wing Mun) 

Dr CHENG Kit Wing Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Ka Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LI Hei Lim Family Medicine 

Dr Marcus M S WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Family Medicine 

 
49. Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAU Kai Man) 

Dr KO Wai Kit Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Siu Kei Family Medicine 

Dr WANG Hua Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAU Kai Man Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine S W NG Family Medicine 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Chin Ping Family Medicine 

Dr David C S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Ling Hin Family Medicine 

Dr LUK Kam Hung Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha Family Medicine 

Dr Stephen C W CHOU Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Sum Yin Family Medicine 
Dr Leopard P PONG Family Medicine 
Dr TAM Yick Sin Family Medicine 
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50. Shau Kei Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Wendy W Y KWAN) 

Dr Wendy W Y KWAN Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wing Mun Family Medicine 

 
51. Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Ignatius P S CHOY) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Family Medicine 

 
52. Tin Shui Wai (Tin Yip Road) Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Yin Hang) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
53. Tin Shui Wai Health Centre (Tin Shui Road) (Coordinator: Dr HUNG Chi Bun) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 



 

 

56 

54. Tin Shui Wai Hospital Family Medicine Specialist Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Man Li) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
55. Tseung Kwan O Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Loretta K P LAI) 

Dr CHAN Pang Fai Family Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kai Lim Family Medicine 

Dr Loretta K P LAI Family Medicine 

Dr TSANG Ming Lam Family Medicine 

 
56. Tsing Yi Town General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr NG Ming Shing) 

Dr IP Yan Yan Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Family Medicine 

Dr LUK Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ming Shing Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Ho Shan Family Medicine 

 
57. Tuen Mun Hospital – Family Medicine Specialist Clinic & Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr NG Yeung Shing) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 



 

 

57 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
58. Tuen Mun Mental Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr CHENG Chi Wai) 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr Gloria M Y CHOW Psychiatry 

Dr Paulina P L CHOW Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Suet Yan Psychiatry 

Dr Rommel C H HUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica P Y LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr LI Siu Wah Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sai Yu Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sing Heung Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSO Steve Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Chi Fong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

 
59. Tung Wah Hospital General Out-patient Clinic(Coordinator: Dr LEE Ling Hin) 

Dr LEE Ling Hin Family Medicine 

 
60. United Christian Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr David V K 

CHAO) 

Dr David V K CHAO Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Tseng Kwong Family Medicine 

Dr YAU Lai Mo Family Medicine 

 
61. United Christian Hospital – Department of Medicine & Geriatrics, Palliative Care Unit (Coordinator: Dr LAM Po Tin) 

Dr LAM Po Tin Internal Medicine 

 

62. University of Hong Kong – Department of Family Medicine and Primary Care / Ap Lei Chau General Out-patient Clinic 

(Coordinator: Prof Cindy L K LAM) 

Prof Cindy L K LAM Family Medicine 

Prof LAM Tai Pong Family Medicine 

Dr William C W WONG Family Medicine 

Dr Esther Y T YU Family Medicine 

Dr Emily T Y TSE Family Medicine 
Dr SIN Ming Chuen Family Medicine 
Dr HO Wang Fung Family Medicine 

 
63. University of Hong Kong - University Health Service (Coordinator: Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen) 

Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen Family Medicine 

Dr Paul W K CHEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr Silvia S M HON KAM Family Medicine 

 
64. Violet Peel General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG Wing Mun) 

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wing Mun Family Medicine 

Dr LUI How Mui Family Medicine 

Dr SIU Lok Man Family Medicine 

Dr Marcus M S WONG Family Medicine 

Dr WU Kwok Keung Family Medicine 

 
65. Wan Tsui General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Virginia L C WONG) 

Dr Irene S Y LAI Family Medicine 

Dr Virginia L C WONG Family Medicine 

 
66. Wang Tau Hom Jockey Club General Out-Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr HUI King Wai) 

Dr HUI King Wai Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 
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67. West Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Wing Yi Family Medicine 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN Family Medicine 

Dr SY Wing Man Family Medicine 

 
68. Wong Siu Ching Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator : Dr Li Heung Wing) 

Dr CHAN Lit Ping Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King Family Medicine 

Dr Eric M T HUI Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Chi Hung Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Chik Pui Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi Family Medicine 

 
69. Wu Hong General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr YIM Chi Ling) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 

70. Wu York Yu General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Susanna L L HUNG) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG  Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Family Medicine 

 
71. Yan Chai Hospital - General Practice Clinic (Coordinator: Dr YIU Ming Pong) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Thomas Y L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Family Medicine 

Dr Luk Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ming Shing Family Medicine 

Dr Janet C Y TAM Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Ming Pong Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 
 

72. Yan Oi General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHU Tsun Kit) 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 
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Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Vincci  Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy H Y LEE Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Po Family Medicine 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr Tse Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Felix Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
73. Yau Ma Tei Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr LEUNG To Fung) 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine X R CHEN Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI Family Medicine 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr MAN Fung Yi Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Pui Chuen Family Medicine 
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

 

As the official journal of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, The Hong Kong Practitioner continued its mission to serve as a 

convenient and useful medium in providing clinical update on Family Medicine related issues to our College Fellows, members, and colleagues 

both locally and overseas. Over the course of last year, we have published 5 original research articles (20%), 4 update articles (16%), 1 case 

reports (4%), 4 editorials (16%), 4 clinical quizzes (16%), 4 internet update topics (16%), 2 discussion papers (8%) and 1 Dr Sun Yat Sen 

Oration (4%). With the establishment of the ‘Panel of Reviewers’, the Board’s peer review capacity has been augmented. 

 

The Editorial Board would like to take this opportunity to thank wholeheartedly all the contributing authors, editorial board members, business 

manager, reviewers, advisers, ex-officio colleagues, statistical consultant and our secretariat staff for their tremendous support and dedication 

over the year. Our deepest appreciation also goes to the journal’s readership for their ongoing support. The Editorial Board would continue to 

enhance the journal contents in order bring a wider spectrum of articles relevant to the busy family physicians. 
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(Deputy Coordinator, Clinical Audit Segment)  

(Deputy Coordinator, Consultation Skills Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Research Segment) (to February 2020) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Research Segment) (March 2020 onwards) 

 

 

 

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr William C W WONG 

 

 

Staff: Ms Alky H K YU 

Mr John P C MA 

(Executive Officer)  

(Administrative Executive) 

Panel of Examiners: 

1. Clinical Audit 

A. Examiners  

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr Au Wah Cheong, Eric 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr Chan Chin Ping 

Dr Chan Ka Man 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu 

Dr Chan Man Li 

Dr Chan Pang Fai 

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr Chan Yin Hang, Edwin 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung 

Dr Ching Kam Wing 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr Choi Wing Kin 

Dr Chuh An Tung, Antonio 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr Fu Sau Nga 

Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr Ko Wai Kit 

Dr Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr Lam Hiu Lam 

Dr Lam Hon Man 

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr Liang Jun 

Dr Lim Mo Kin 

Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr Luk Kam Hung 

Dr Luk Wan 

Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr Ng Ching Luen 

Dr Ng Chun Bor 

Dr Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr Ng Tze King Peter 

Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Sit Wing Shan 

Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Ting Fei Yin 

Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Tse Keith Kwok Ki 

Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr Wu Tsz Yuen Tom 

Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr Yuen Fu Lam 
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B. Trainee Examiners 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr Chan King Hong 

Dr Chan Laam 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr Chan Ying Ho 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr Chau Kai Man 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong 

Dr Cheung Man Ha 

Dr Chow Kai Lim 

Dr Chow Alex Sheung Yan 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong 

Dr Chung Kin Wing 

Dr Dao Man Chi 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony 

Dr Fong Ting 

Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi 

Dr Ho Ka Ming 

Dr Ho Wang Fung 

Dr Hui King Wai 

Dr Hui Lai Chi 

Dr Ip Sui Wah 

Dr Ip Yan Yan 

Dr Kung Kenny 

Dr Kwan Yu 

Dr Lai Sheung Siu 

Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr Lai Sum Yin 

Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr Law Tung Chi 

Dr Lee Ling Hin 

Dr Lee Man Kei 

Dr Leung Cheuk Wing 

Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr Leung To Fung 

Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr Leung Yu Hang 

Dr Li Heung Wing 

Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana 

Dr Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr Luk Man Hei, Matthew 

Dr Ng Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr Ng Ming Shing 

Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr Pang Siu Leung 

Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy 

Dr Sy Wing Man 

Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Wu Chun Yu 

Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

2. Practice Assessment  

A. Examiners 

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr Au Wah Cheong, Eric 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr Chan Chin Ping 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr Chan Kin Ling 

Dr Chan King Hong 

Dr Chan Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr Chan Kwok Wai, Keith 

Dr Chan Man Li 

Dr Chan Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr Chan Pang Fai 

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr Chan Tat Eddie 

Dr Chan Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr Chan Yin Hang  

Dr Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr Cheung Man Ha 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung 

Dr Ching Kam Wing 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr Choi Wing Kin 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony 

Dr Fu Sau Nga 

Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi 

Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman 

Dr Ho Ka Ming, Ken 

Dr Ho Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr Ko Wai Kit 

Dr Kung Kenny 

Dr Kwan Yu 

Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr Kwong Ho Tak, Howard 

Dr Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr Lai Sheung Siu 

Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr Lam Hiu Lam 

Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr Lee Man Kei 

Dr Leung Cheuk Wing 

Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr Leung To Fung 

Dr Liang Jun 

Dr Lim Mo Kin 

Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana 

Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr Luk Kam Hung 

Dr Luk Wan 

Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr Ng Tze King, Peter 

Dr Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr Sit Wing Shan, Regina 

Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Ting Fei Yin 

Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Too Lai Chong 

Dr Tse Keith K K 

Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Ka Man 

Dr Chan Laam 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr Chan Ying Ho 

Dr Chau Kai Man 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa 

Dr Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence 

Dr Chow Sheung Yan, Alex 
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Dr Chung Chak Cheong 

Dr Chung Kin Wing 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita 

Dr Ho Wang Fung 

Dr Ip Yan Yan 

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Dr Lau Chi Hang 

Dr Law Tung Chi 

Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr Lee Ling Hin 

Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr Leung Yu Hang 

Dr Li Heung Wing 

Dr Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr Ng Ching Luen 

Dr Ng Ming Shing 

Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr Pang Siu Leung 

Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy 

Dr Sy Wing Man 

Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Tam Wah Kit 

Dr Tam Yick Sin, Denise 

Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Yuen Fu Lam 

Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

 

C. Examination Observer 

Dr Cheuk Christina 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong 

Dr Chou Chun Wing, Stephen 

Dr Chow Kai Lim 

Dr Dao Man Chi 

Dr Fong Ting 

Dr Hui King Wai 

Dr Hui King Wai 

Dr Ip Sui Wah 

Dr Lai Sum Yin 

Dr Lui How Mui 

Dr Luk Man Hei, Matthew 

Dr Pong Pong 

Dr Tse Sut Yee 

Dr Wong Kwai Sheung 

Dr Wu Chun Yu 

 

3. Consultation Skills Assessment 

A. Examiners 

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr Chan Chin Ping 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr Chan Ka Man 

Dr Chan King Hong 

Dr Chan Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr Chan Man Li 

Dr Chan Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr Chan Pang Fai 

Dr Chan Suk Yin 

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr Chan Tat, Eddie 

Dr Chan Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr Chan Yin Hang 

Dr Chan Ying Ho 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa 

Dr Cheuk Christina 

Dr Cheung Man Ha 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung 

Dr Ching Kam Wing 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr Choi Wing Kin 

Dr Chow Alex Sheung Yan 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony 

Dr Fu Sau Nga 

Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi 

Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman 

Dr Ho Ka Ming, Ken 

Dr Ho King Yip, Anthony 

Dr Ho Wang Fung 

Dr Ho Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr Ip Sui Wah 

Dr Ip Yan Yan 

Dr Ko Wai Kit 

Dr Kung Kenny 

Dr Kwan Yu 

Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr Kwong Ho Tak, Howard 

Dr Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr Lai Sheung Siu 

Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr Lam Hiu Lam 

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr Law Tung Chi 

Dr Lee Ling Hin 

Dr Lee Man Kei 

Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr Leung Cheuk Wing 

Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr Leung To Fung 

Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr Li Heung Wing 

Dr Liang Jun 

Dr Lim Mo Kin 

Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana 

Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr Luk Kam Hung 

Dr Luk Wan 

Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr Ng Ching Luen 

Dr Ng Chun Bor 

Dr Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr Ng Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr Ng Ming Shing 

Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr NG Tze King, Peter 

Dr Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr Pang Siu Leung 

Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr Sit Wing Shan, Regina 

Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Ting Fei Yin 

Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Too Lai Chong 

Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene 

Dr Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Wong Oi Yee, Amy 

Dr Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 
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Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr Yuen Fu Lam 

 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Laam 

Dr Chau Kai Man 

Dr Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong 

Dr Chung Kin Wing 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita 

Dr Fong Ting 

Dr Lau Chi Hang 

Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr Leung Yu Hang 

Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy 

Dr Sy Wing Man 

Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Tam Yick Sin, Denise 

Dr Tse Sut Yee 

Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

 

C. Examination Observer 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong 

Dr Chow Kai Lim 

Dr Chou Chun Wing, Stephen 

Dr Dao Man Chi 

Dr Hui King Wai 

Dr Hui Lai Chi 

Dr Lai Sum Yin 

Dr Lui How Mui 

Dr Luk Man Hei, Matthew 

Dr Pong Pong 

Dr Tam Wah Kit 

Dr Wong Kwai Sheung 

Dr Wu Chun Yu 

 

4. Research 

A. Examiners 

Dr Chan Kit Ling, Amy 

Dr Chan Kwok Wai, Keith 

Dr Chan Man Li 

Dr Chan Pang Fai 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr Chuh An Tung, Antonio 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr Fu Sau Nga 

Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman 

Dr Hong Tin Chak 

Dr Kung Kenny 

Dr Kwan Yu 

Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr Lam Hon Man 

Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Prof Lam Tai Pong 

Dr Lam Tak Man, Catherine 

Dr Lam Wing Wo, Edmund 

Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr Ng Ventura, Lorna 

Dr Sit Wing Shan 

Dr Tam Ka Wae, Tammy 

Dr Tsang Chiu Yee, Luke 

Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Prof Wong Chi Wai, William 

Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Wong Ka Wah 

Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Prof Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel 

Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Yu Yee Tak, Esther 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Chin Ping 

Dr Chan Ka Lok, Carroll  

Dr Chan Kin Ling 

Dr Chan Laam 

Dr Chan Yin Hang 

Dr Chen Yun, Julie 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr Cheuk Christina 

Dr Cheung Hard King 

Dr Cheung Kwok Leung, Sydney 

Dr Cheung Man Ha 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung 

Dr Cheung Sze Man 

Dr Chou Chun Wing, Stephen 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong 

Dr Chung Kin Wing 

Dr Dao Man Chi 

Dr Hui Kwan Sue, Wilson 

Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr Ip Sui Wah 

Dr Kwan Ka Mei, Betty 

Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Dr Lau Chi Hang 

Dr Lau Kam Tong 

Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr Leung To Fung 

Dr Liang Jun 

Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond  

Dr Ng Ming Shing 

Dr Owens David Edward 

Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Wong Carmen 

Dr Wong Chi Lung 

Dr Wong Kwok Hoi 

Dr Wong Yu Fai 

Dr Wu Chun Yu 

Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Yim Chi Ling 

Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Yu Pui Hang 

Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

 

 

The Specialty Board conducted 2019 Supplementary Exit Examination from 2 July to 30 September 2019. 10 candidates sat the 

supplementary Exit Examination and 7 of them successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination. 
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The 2020 Full Exit Examination was held from 2 December 2019 to 31 March 2020. 24 candidates attempted the Examination and 15 

candidates successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination. Professor Doris Young was the External Examiner of the 

2020 Full Exit Examination. 

 

The successful candidates were: 

Dr CHAN Pui Chuen 

Dr CHAN Pui Kwan 

Dr CHEN Hing Han 

Dr CHENG Wai Fat 

Dr CHEUK Yau Chun 

Dr Winnie W Y CHUI 

Dr FONG Chui Ying 

Dr HAN Jinghao 

Dr HO Shu Wan 

Dr HO Tsz Bun 

Dr Tony Y T KWOK 

Dr LAU Lai Na 

Dr LUK Chun Wa 

Dr Samuel J S SIU 

Dr TIN Yuen Ying 

Dr TSE Wan Ying 

Dr Ricky H F WONG 

Dr WONG Sze Kei 

Dr XU Shaowei 

Dr Derek G C YING  

Dr YIO Shing 

Dr YIU Cheuk Man 

 

The “Outstanding Candidate Award 2020 “ was presenting to Dr Winnie W Y CHUI, who had passed the Exit Examination at one setting 

with outstanding performance in the Examination.  

 

The Board had organized Pre-Exit Examination Workshop and Post-Examination Evaluation Workshop after the Examination for 

candidates. The third Refresher Course for examiners was held in December 2019 to maintain the standards of the assessment.  

 

Another task of the Board is to scrutinize applications for nomination to Fellowship of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in Family 

Medicine. It also assesses application for Certificate of Specialist Registration with comparable training according to guidelines laid 

down by Education Committee, HKAM and makes recommendation to our College Council. The College submitted 22 fellowship 

nominations and were all approved by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. 

 

Finally, the Board would like to express the most sincere thanks to all examiners for their dedication and hard work in making the Exit 

Examination possible and successful.  
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BUSINESS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

 

Chairman:  Dr Billy C F CHIU  

Committee Members: Dr Angus M W CHAN Dr Mary B L KWONG 

   Dr Alvin C Y CHAN  Dr NGAN Po Lun 

Dr David V K CHAO  Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

 

Ex-officio:  Dr Cecila Y M FAN 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

   Dr William C W WONG 

                  

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO     (General Manager) 

Ms Teresa D F LIU     (Executive Officer) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI       (Administrative Executive) 

  

This year is a turbulent year and also year of change. Owing to the unpredictable social and traffic conditions in 2019, we had cancelled 

many lectures from September to December 2019. Also because of the outbreak of COVID-19 from the early of 2020, we have 

changed the CME activities from on-site to digital online lectures for providing different types of lectures/seminars to our members 

continuously. The regular bi-monthly Dermatology and Mental Health Interest Groups, Medical Humanities Interest Group, Evidence-

Based Medicine Interest Group and Counselling Interest Group are most welcome by our members. Certificate Course on Community 

Geriatrics for Primary Care Doctors co-organized with Department of Health; Certificate Course on Primary Care Point-of-care 

Ultrasound (POCUS) co-organized with the School of Biomedical Sciences, LKS Faculty of Medicine, the University of Hong Kong. 

Bringing Better Health to our Community co-organized with Queen Elizabeth Hospital; Refresher Course for Health Care Providers 

co-organized with Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and the Hong Kong Medical Association; and CME Course for General Practitioners 

co-organized with the United Christian Hospital. Assessment Enhancement Course (AEC) and Annual Refresher Course (ARC) are 

also successfully arranged by Board of Education. As usual, we have yearly pre-examination workshop for the candidates and 

standardization for the examiners arranged by Board of Conjoint Examination and Specialty Board.  

 

The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Conference and the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019 with the theme “People-centred 

Care: Towards Value-Based Innovations”, held on 6 – 8 December 2019 had more than 560 participants. These valuable activities, 

some are generously sponsored by pharmaceutical companies, can effectively enhance and update a broad range of medical 

knowledge for our members. 

 

The 42nd Annual Dinner on 8th December 2019 was cancelled due to the unpredictable social and traffic conditions. 

 

Our Journal remains to be one of the most outstanding and widely circulated local medical literatures. The advertising section in The 

Hong Kong Practitioner and The FP Links, The College’s bulk e-mail mailing and circulating services from members and other 

institutions remain very popular.  

 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Committee members for their contributions. 

 

On behalf of the College, I would also like to express my gratitude to all the following companies and organizations for their generous 

support for the College’s functions in the past one year: 

 

A Menarini Hong Kong Limited 

AXA Hong Kong 

Abbott Laboratories Ltd 

Amgen Hong Kong Limited 

AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited 

Bayer Healthcare Limited 

Boehringer Ingelheim Hong Kong Limited 

Cardiff University 

Ego Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong Limited 

Galderma Hong Kong Limited 

Gilead Sciences Hong Kong Limited 

GlaxoSmithKline Limited 

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (HK) Limited 

HK Sanatorium & Hospital Ltd 

J. Health Enterprise Limited 

Leo Pharma  

Lundbeck Hong Kong 

Merck Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 

Merck, Sharp & Dohme (Asia) Limited 

Novartis Pharmaceuticals (HK) Ltd 

Novo Nordisk Hong Kong Limited 

Pacific Medical Systems Limited 

Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Limited 

Roche Hong Kong Limited 

JC JoyAge : Jockey Club Holistic Support Project for Elderly 
Mental Wellness 

Sanofi-aventis Hong Kong Limited 

Servier Hong Kong Ltd 

Taisho Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong) Limited 

Takeda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong) Limited 

TEVA Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong Limited 

Union Medical Centre Limited 
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EDUCATION COMMITTEE (AM AFFAIRS) 

(April 2019 – March 2020) 

 

Coordinator: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN   (Vice President, Education and   

Examinations)  

 

Staff:  Ms Erica M SO        (General Manager)  
 

Trainer to Trainee Ratio 

For the Trainer to Trainee Ratio, all Colleges (and respective specialties) including HKCFP were 

able to provide a ratio better than the basic requirement of 1 : 3. 

 

Policy on Part-time Training in HA 

Fractional work arrangement which would be applied to services of certain specialties (initially A&E and Family Medicine as a 

pilot), covering both specialists and resident trainees. Emergency on-call duty would be on pro-rata basis and the overall period 

of such arrangement would be limited up to 1 year. 

 

HKAM Principles and Guidelines on CME/CPD for Cycle 2020-22 

As required by MCHK Education & Accreditation Committee (EAC), any cases of failure to meet the minimum CME/CPD 

requirement including those eligible for remedial programme must be reported. EAC could consider if any action should be taken 

against the specialists concerned. 

 

HKAM Principles and Guidelines on CME/CPD for Cycle 2020-22 was approved with minor changes incorporated in Section 10 

of the Guidelines to reflect the new requirement from MCHK for the Academy to provide information on CME/CPD of all Fellows 

after the end of cycle (instead of only providing the information on those non-compliance cases in the past). 

 

Revision on Basic Training Handbook and Logbook 

The revised “Handbook on Vocational Training in Family Medicine” and “Training Logbook for Basic Training” of the Hong Kong 

College of Family Physicians was endorsed by EC in August 2019 with the following highlighted: 

 The eligibility of training has been updated to include medical practitioner with limited registration in Hong Kong in 

addition to medical practitioner with full registration in Hong Kong. 

 The title of the Conjoint Examination between HKCFP and RACGP was updated to “Fellowship of the HKCFP/ 

International Conjoint Fellowship of the RACGP Examination”. The change of name to ICFRACGP is nomenclature 

change only, without any change in format and standard of the Conjoint Examination. Trainees who have enrolled into 

vocational training after 31 December 2018 are eligible to apply for the award of International Conjoint Fellowship of the 

RACGP (ICFRACGP) upon successful passing the examination and satisfying the relevant prevailing criteria for the 

fellowship. 

 The Objectives, Exposure and Skills of the Hospital based Training was reorganised in order to be applicable for all 

specialise. 

 The curriculum of General/Family medicine training was revised to be a competency based one. 

 Some forms were added to the training logbook to enhance the communication mechanism between the College and 

Trainees. 

 

Issues raised in the Training Forum between HA and HKAM 

Various matters were discussed in the Forum for Training Collaboration between HA and HKAM in July 2019, including the 

arrangement of venue charging for College examination held at HA venues, recognitions of trainers / examiners in HA etc.  

 

Colleges’ readiness in allowing specialist training for non-locally trained doctors (under Limited Registration (LR) was discussed 

also. The College has no objection to adopt a unified policy on the three points set out by HKAM as follows, if there are no legal 

concerns. 

 LR doctors would be required to work in training centres accredited by respective Colleges  

 Local graduates should be given priority, and  

 LR doctors will only be accepted when vacancies have not been filled up. 

 

HA confirmed that there would be rent-free arrangement with no charges on the venues and facilities to Academy and its Colleges 

for examinations and specialist training activities conducted in HA venues. HA colleagues would be allowed to serve Colleges as 

examiners during office hours without applying for annual leave, provided that they did not receive honorarium. 
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Concern on Fulfilling the CME/CPD Requirements of the Current Cycle 

There were concerns from members of some Colleges on fulfilling the CME/CPD requirements of the current cycle due to the 

cancellation/postponement of CME/CPD activities in the later year of 2019. After discussion, EC agreed to keep the existing 

mechanism unchanged and to exercise flexibility during the remedial year within the boundaries of existing regulations. 

 

Professional Indemnity for Trainees 

Members were reminded of encouraging their trainees to purchase their own professional indemnity insurance when receiving 

accredited training at private hospitals and clinics. 

 

Special Considerations in Arrangement of College's Examination / Assessment, and Educational event under the COVID-19 

outbreak. 

In light of the COVID-19 outbreak, special considerations and flexibility would be applied in the arrangement of college’s 

examination and assessment. HA recapped and affirmed the prevailing policy that staff promotion would be considered as far as 

Colleges are able to confirm the completion of training and examination of respective trainees, of which there would be no cut 

off dates and staff promotion can be granted irrespective of the timing of fellowship conferment. 

 

Academy would investigate into the introduction of online-based CME / CPD activities and development of e-platform with 

security and accreditation issues considered. Any change associated to the existing mechanism for submission of CME 

compliance report to the MCHK might require legislative amendment and could lead to scrutiny by the MCHK, which was not 

recommended. Instead, Colleges might consider allowing flexibility in arranging CME-accredited activities, and the Academy 

would refer to Colleges’ recommendations and report the compliance status to the MCHK as appropriate. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(July 2019 – June 2020) 

Chairman:  Dr David VK CHAO (President) 

Member: Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

  Prof Samuel Y S WONG 

     

Ex-officio: Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

Dr Cecilia YM FAN   (Vice-President, Education and Examinations)   

Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary)  

  Dr Billy C F CHIU  (Honorary Treasurer) 

 

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

 

 

RACGP GP19 Conference in Adelaide, Australia 

The Annual Conference of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners (RACGP) was held from 24 - 26 October, 2019 with 

the theme “Your patients, your community, your solutions”. The Conference introduced the latest in technological breakthroughs, 

groundbreaking research, and clinical skills that could make a real difference to the lives of patients. Dr David Chao, as the President 

of HKCFP, was invited to present in the International College Case Study Session on “The CPD programme in Hong Kong and its 

contribution to a ‘Healthy GP’ and ‘Healthy Patient’”. 

 

WONCA APR Conference 2019 in Kyoto, Japan 

The WONCA APR Conference 2019 was held in Kyoto, Japan from 15 to 18 May 2019, organised by the Japan Primary Care 

Association (JPCA). The theme of the WONCA APR Conference 2019 was ‘Medical generalists: bringing forward a brighter future.’ 

Under this theme, three keynote speeches, seven plenary sessions, more than 50 workshops and symposia, and more than 500 oral 

presentations, as well as posters, were presented. It attracted a total of 1,643 participants from 46 countries all over the world. The 

Young Doctors Pre-conference organised by The Rajakumar Movement (TRM) was held on the first day of the Conference. TRM 

representatives from different member organisations of APR presented reports of their local young doctors’ movement (YDM). The 

Chairlady of HKCFP Young Doctors Committee Dr Loretta Chan represented our College to share on the HKCFP Young Doctors’ 

activities held in Hong Kong. 
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CMDA Summit Forum 2019 in Beijing, Mainland China 

The Chinese Medical Doctor Association (CMDA, 中國醫師協會) annual summit forum was held on 30-31 August 2019. This 

collaboration with CMDA has further fostered knowledge and experience exchange between Hong Kong and mainland counterparts. 

Dr William Wong joined the delegation of HKAM as a representative of our College, and delivered presentations to share on the 

experience of Hong Kong about research by general practitioners. 

 

WONCA APR Conference 2020 in Auckland, New Zealand 

The Royal New Zealand College of General due to the uncertainties around COVID-19. 

 

World Family Doctor Day 2020 

To celebrate the World Family Doctor Day 2020 on 19 May this year, the College had compiled a video by collecting photos from 

College members and fellows at the front line for circulation on 19 May. Members were invited to send a photo (with or without 

message) based on the theme of “Family Doctors on the front line: first in, last out”. 

 

Also, the College was invited to participate in an open celebration programme co-organised by海峽兩岸醫藥衛生交流協會全科醫學

分會, 中國醫師協會全科醫師分會 and 中華醫學會全科醫學分會 together with many family doctors in various locations in China through 

online television broadcasting on 19 May 2020. An ad hoc project team was set up with the coordination of our College’s Vice President 

Dr Lau Ho Lim to produce a video to celebrate the WFDD and meanwhile showing the multifaceted nature of general practice/family 

medicine in Hong Kong and the activities of HKCFP. Council members were invited by our President Dr David Chao to join the filming 

of a 5-min video. The video recording was boardcasted during the World Family Doctor Day celebration programme on 19 May 2020. 

 

The 7th Cross-Strait Congress of General Practitioners in Wuhan, Mainland China 

Due to the COVID-19 oandemic, the organiser of the 7th Cross-Strait Congress of General Practitioners (第七屆海峽兩岸全科醫學大

會暨海醫會全科醫學分會第七屆學術年會) announced in Janurary 2020 that the conference had been posponed. The Orgnaiser would 

explore other possible dates for rescheduling the conference later. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 – March 2020) 

Chairman: Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Committee Members: Dr David V K CHAO (President) 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr William C W WONG      (Honorary Secretary) 

 

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO           (General Manager) 

   Ms Priscilla S M LI             (Administrative Executive) 

 

With careful monitoring by the Finance Committee, the financial situation of the College in 2019-2020 continued to remain sound and 

healthy. Our accumulated financial reserve kept on growing steadily. There is now a deposit of equivalent of over HK$14.8 million in 

our accounts. There are no major changes in our portfolio as compared to the previous financial year. We have about 21% of our 

portfolio is in equity shares, purchased when they were first issued, and the great majority of our funds are in the form of cash savings 

in various banks. 

  

I would like to express my sincere thanks to Dr David Chao, our President, Dr Lau Ho Lim, our Vice-President (General Affairs), Dr 

Cecilia Fan, our Vice-President (Education & Examinations), Dr William Wong, our Honorary Secretary, Ms Erica So, our General 

Manager and Ms Priscilla Li, our Administrative Executive, for their continuous support and services. I would also like to thank Mr C F 

Cheung, our Honorary Auditor, for his professional advice and services. 
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FP LINKS COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 – March 2020) 

 

Chairlady:        Dr Wendy W S TSUI    

Chief Editor:   Dr Catherine S W NG 

Deputy Editors: Prof Martin C S WONG      (to February 2020) 

 Dr Judy G Y CHENG       (from March 2020 onwards) 

 Dr Anita W M FAN 

 Dr Natalie Y K YUEN 

Members: Dr David C S CHENG Section Editor (Feature) 

 Dr John H TAM Deputy Section Editor (Feature) 

 Dr SZE Hon Ho Section Editor (News Corner) 

 Dr Natalie P Y SIU Deputy Section Editor (News Corner) 

 Dr SIN Ming Chuen  Section Editor (After Hours) 

 Dr YIP Tze Hung  Deputy Section Editor (After Hours)  

 Dr Ken K M HO Section Editor (WONCA Express) 

 Dr Maria K W LEUNG Section Editor (Photo Gallery)  

 Dr Christina CHEUK Deputy Section Editor (Photo Gallery) 

 Dr Alvin C Y CHAN      Section Editor (Board of Education News) 

 Dr CHAN Man LI 

 Dr FOK Peter Anthony  

 Dr Heidi H T FUNG  

 Dr Alfred S K KWONG 

 Dr Dorothy T C LAW  

 Dr LEUNG Lok Hang 

 Dr Eva H F TSUI 

   

Ex-officio:           Dr David V K CHAO 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 Dr William C W WONG  

 

Staff:   Ms Alky H K YU    (Executive Officer) 

  

 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

Since the publication of the inaugural edition in March 2004, FP Links serves as the College Newsletter of HKCFP with the following 

missions: 

1.    To disseminate the College News to College members. 

2.    To report news of various Boards and Committees. 

3.    To provide a channel for dissemination of information or articles related to Family Medicine, either clinical or non-clinical. 

4.    To act as a bridge for communication between members and the College. 

 

The founding Editorial Board started off with three members under Dr John T N CHUNG’s leadership. Throughout these years, 

there is significant expansion of our membership list. Our committee now comprises 23 members coming from different sectors: 

public and private; universities, cross clusters and even cross countries. With the vision to promote Family Medicine and advocate 

for primary care, we work closely to promote the development of Family Medicine and enhance the communication between the 

College, members and other professionals. Our contents are strongly diversified, from photo gallery and highlights of college 

events, WONCA news, Family Medicine related activities and development, clinical practice sharing, to latest medical updates and 

health related news, and sharing of colleagues, young and experienced, about their life and reflections as a family doctor. There 

is also support from other Boards, e.g. the Board of Education who contributes the learning points discussed in group meetings. 

Our aim is to produce a newsletter which is both informative and interesting. We also promote “Go Green” that members could opt 

for only receiving electronic copies of FP Links. 

 

 

 



 

71 

 

 

HKAMC & HKPCC ORGANIZING COMMITTEE (HKCFP Segment) 
(July 2019 – June 2020)  

Organizing Committee: Co-Chair: Dr Angus MW CHAN 
 

 Members: Dr David VK CHAO  

  Dr Billy CF CHIU  

  Dr LAU Ho Lim  

  Prof William CW WONG  

 

Scientific Sub-Committee: Co-Chair: Prof William CW WONG  

 Dr Lorna V NG  (Co-Chair) 
     

 Members: Dr Catherine X R CHEN (Seminar Coordinator) 

  Dr Judy G Y CHENG (Publication Coordinator) 

  Dr CHIANG Lap Kin (Full Paper and Oral Presentation Coordinator) 

  Ms Samantha Y C CHONG (Poster Presentation Coordinator) 

  Dr Wendy W Y KWAN (Workshop Coordinator) 

  Dr KWAN Yu (Clinical Case Presentation Coordinator) 

  Dr TSE Sut Yee (Workshop Coordinator) 

 

Ex-officio: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education & Examinations,  

 

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

 Ms Crystal W Y YUNG (Administrative Manager) 

 Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Alky H K YU (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Windy W L LAU (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Suki Y C LUNG (Administrative Executive) 

 

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Annual Conference & Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019 jointly organized by our College 

and Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) was held from 6 to 8 December 2019. This was a remarkable end to the year! Initially 

this specific Conference was the tripartite event of the three Academies of Medicine from Malaysia, Singapore and Hong Kong that 

happened only once every nine years in Hong Kong. It was unfortunate that due to unexpected circumstances and travel warning 

issued by the other two countries, Malaysia and Singapore could not join us as originally planned. HKAM and our College decided to 

proceed with the Conference just two weeks prior to its opening. 

 

The theme of this Conference was “People-Centred Care: Towards Value-Based Innovations. Dr CHUI Tak Yi, Under Secretary for 

Food and Health was one of our main officiating guests. The Conference aimed at addressing the future directions of healthcare 

improvement and development in provisions of patient-oriented clinical care. This amplified the diversity of topics from basic Genetics 

and Genomics to various innovative medical advances and back to the clinical approach of LBGT. The clinical symposia covered 

topics from acute to chronic conditions and from artificial intelligence in healthcare to voluntary health insurance. We had two 

inspirational plenary lectures, the first by Mr Ricky CHU, Chairperson of Equal Opportunities Commission to deliver the Halnan Lecture 

titled “Knocking Down Barriers to Inclusive Healthcare”. This was immediately followed by Dr Donald K T LI, President of World 

Organization of Family Doctors (WONCA) on “Enhancing Primary Care in Hong Kong through the Provision of Integrated People-

centred Primary Care in District Health Centres”. 

 

I have to take my hat off to the 600 participants and guests who braved the weekend to share and enhance their medical knowledge. 

The Conference was a huge success considering the final phase of preparation was put together within two weeks. Our special thanks 

to Prof Doris YOUNG, Department of Family Medicine, National University of Singapore, for her unfailing support and sharing with us 

during the HKPCC over the years. I have to express my sincerest gratitude to the Organizing Committee, and our Scientific 

Subcommittee led by Prof William W C WONG and Dr Lorna V NG. My final words to our Secretariat, you were all amazing and simply 

the best! 
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Scientific Programme at-a-glance 

 

 

Date

Time

18:00

16:3015:00 -

17:30 -

6 December 2019 (Friday)

-

20:00 - 21:00

18:00

HKAM Dinner (by invitation only)

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 R
e

g
is

tra
tio

n

20:00

HKAM Best Original Research by Trainees

HKAM Annual General Meeting 

HKAM Annual Fellowship Conferment Ceremony 

and 

David Todd Oration

Date

Time

-

-

14:30

18:30

17:00 -

08:30

10:00

12:30 -

-

-

14:00 -

16:00

11:00

15:00 -

11:00

09:00

-

14:00 Lunch Symposium 1

-

Seminar 1

09:00

12:30 Seminar 5

10:00

11:30

Seminar 8

Conference Registration

7 December 2019 (Saturday)

Seminar 3

Seminar 6

11:30

14:30

Seminar 4

Seminar 2

- 17:00 Coffee Break and Poster Presentation - Part 2 #

- 15:00

Welcome Reception

-

Halnan Lecture

24th Gordon Arthur Ransome Oration

20:00
Tripartite VIP Reception and Dinner

(by invitation only)
Dinner Symposium

15:30

18:30

(Primary Care)

Free Paper Oral 

Presentation Competition

16:30 Plenary 1

Seminar 7

Opening Ceremony

16:30

15:30 - 16:00

Coffee Break and Poster Presentation - Part 1 #

Workshop 1
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HOUSE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 – March 2020) 

 

Chairman:               Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 

Ex-officio:   Dr CHAO V K David  (President) 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice President,   

Education Examinations) 

Dr William C W WONG   (Honorary Secretary) 

Dr Billy C F CHIU  (Honorary Treasurer) 

 

College Secretariat 

General Manager:   Ms Erica M SO 

 

Administrative Manager:   Ms Crystal W Y YUNG 

 

Executives Officer:  Ms Teresa D F LIU 

    Ms Alky H K YU  

 

Administrative Executives:  Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG 

    Ms Anna M HO  (from 23 March 2020) 

Ms Kathy K Y LAI   

Ms Windy W L LAU 

Ms Priscilla S M LI 

Ms Suki Y C LUNG  

Mr John P C MA 

 

Administrative Assistant:  Ms Angel O K FUNG 

    Ms Katie P L LAM 

Ms Cherry F C MA   (to 24 March 2020) 

Date

Time

Worskhop 2

Plenary 2

Coffee Break and Poster Presentation - Part 3 #11:00

09:00 10:00

10:00 11:00-

Seminar 10

12:00 - 12:30 Plenary 3

12:30 -

Semiar 11

13:00 -

Conference Registration

(Primary Care)

Clinical Case Presentation 

Competition

Seminar 9

14:30 Lunch Symposium 2

13:00 Prize Presentation & Closing Ceremony

08:30 -

11:30 - 12:00

-

-

8 December 2019 (Sunday)

17:00

- 11:30

09:00

-

-

16:30

14:30 15:30

Workshop 4

Seminar 13

15:30 16:00

16:30

Seminar 13
Workshop 3

Seminar 14

-

16:00
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EXPERTISE AND PROFESSIONALISM OF THE SECRETARIAT 

There are 4 major academic events organised annually by our College, namely the Diploma of Family Medicine Examination, the 

Conjoint Fellowship Examination, the Exit Examination and the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference.  

 

Last year, our College Secretariat once again helped organise and run three very successful professional examinations, the Diploma 

of Family Medicine Examination, the Conjoint Fellowship Examination and the Exit Examination, earning very encouraging positive 

feedback from our Examiners and External Examiners alike.  

 

As in previous years, our Secretariat also organised the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference single-handedly without the need to 

outsource the task to professional conference planners. As such, it allows us to host an important medical conference on primary care 

in Hong Kong within our limited financial and manpower resources. It also demonstrates to other members of the medical community 

that HKCFP possesses the expertise to host important medical conferences, so much so that the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine 

invited our College to co-organise the HKAM Conference and HKPCC 2019, which received a lot of positive feedback. 

 

COVID-19-RELATED WORK ARRANGEMENT 

We placed our staff’s health among our highest priorities. Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020, the Committee has 

adopted tiered contingency measures to maintain the necessary operation of the Secretariat with attention to social distancing and 

the recommendations from the government. Examples of these measures include alternate-day home-office arrangements, shortened 

working hours in the office, and teams working in different offices. Corresponding duty rosters were assigned by the Committee with 

a weekly review and update. Staff who worked at home were expected to make themselves available to contact for work arrangement 

during office hours.  

 

The Committee has also provided relevant information to staff to help reduce confusion and anxiety concerning prevention of infection, 

e.g. proper use of mask, personal hygiene, and social distancing. 

 

SALARY REVISION EXERCISE AND STAFF PROMOTIONS 

In consideration of the diversity of College’s job categories, this year, the probation period for new staff had been adjusted from 3 

months to 6 months for better acclimatisation.  Moreover, the Committee reviewed the existing over-time work compensation pay / 

leave scheme and revised overtime (OT) compensation system according to the job categories and the role of staff in general 

 

It is the usual practice of the Committee to review staff performance and propose an adjustment in salary, taking into consideration 

factors like the inflation rate, completion of contract, promotion and performance review for the individual staff. The Academy of 

Medicine’s grading system and the latest Government's civil service pay policy were also taken as a reference. 

 

HIGH-MORALE TEAM 

The House Committee Chairman has talked to individual staff at regular intervals, in order to know their views on College matters and 

to ascertain if there are any difficulties encountered in their work. Appropriate feedback would be given and any necessary follow-up 

or actions done. 

 

STAFF CHANGES 

Ms Cherry Ma (Administrative Assistant) resigned while Ms Anna Ho (Administrative Executive) joined the Secretariat in the past year. 

 

Last but not least, the Committee Chairman would like to thank Ms Erica So, General Manager, for her excellent leadership and 

contribution, and all staff for their committed support throughout the years. 
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INTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(July 2019 – June 2020) 

 

Chairman:    Dr Welchie W K KO   

    

Ex-officio:    Dr David V K CHAO   

     Dr LAU Ho Lim 

     Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

     Dr William C W WONG 

     Dr Billy C F CHIU  

 

Staff:     Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

     Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer) 

     Ms Windy W L LAU (Administration Executive) 

 

42nd Annual Dinner 

The 42nd Annual Dinner previously scheduled on 8 December 2019 (Sunday) was cancelled in view of unforeseen circumstances due 

to the social activities, and uncertainty regarding transportation for members and guests arriving or leaving the Hong Kong Academy 

of Medicine in Wong Chuk Hang throughout the evening for the dinner. 

 

The decision to cancel the Annual Dinner, which is one of the most important events of the College was not an easy one, but the 

safety of our members and guests always comes first. We look forward to welcoming all members in future Annual Dinner. 

 

33rd Conferment Ceremony and the 31st Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration 

The 33rd Fellowship Conferment Ceremony and the 31th Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration previously scheduled on 13 September 2020 (Sunday) 

was postponed in light of the on-going situation of COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

The College would try to arrange the ceremony later this year or early next year if COVID-19 situation has improved and other 

circumstances allow. If not, new fellows, diplomates and awardees would be accommodated in the next ceremony. 

 

Photography Club 

The “Phone Photography Workshop” previously scheduled on 21 March 2020 (Saturday) was postponed until further notice due to 

COVD-19 pandemic. The workshop would be rescheduled where circumstances allow. 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE 

(July 2019 – June 2020) 

 

Chairlady:             Dr Maria K W LEUNG    

 

Deputy Chairlady: Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

 

Committee Member:   Dr CHAN Man Li 

   

Ex-officio:  Dr David V K CHAO 

        Dr Billy C F CHIU  

   Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  

   Dr LAU Ho Lim    

   Dr William C W WONG  

       

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive) 

   Ms Katie P L LAM (Administrative Assistant) 

   Ms Angel Fung (Administrative Assistant, to June 2020) 
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2015-2016 711 213 571 48

2016-2017 738 209 577 59

2017-2018 754 207 599 82

2018-2019 776 205 621 95

2019-2020 796 205 624 117

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians
Members Status Report 

The current membership of HKCFP is as follows: - (as at end of June 2020) 

Fellows*    796  (HKAM Fellows: (518) 

Full Members   205  

Associate Members   624 

Others **    117 

Total:                1,742 

* Fellows include Fellows, Foundation Fellows Honorary Fellows and Non-HKSAR Fellows. 

**       Others include Affiliate Members, Non-HKSAR Members and Student Members. 

 

More of our members become fellows and the body of Membership remains steady in the past year.  With our College’s team of 

dedicated members who are practicing quality medicine, the term “Family Medicine” is increasingly recognized by the general public 

as synonymous to quality primary care.  We expect to see a constant growth in membership with increase in proportion of fellowship. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

(July 2019 – June 2020) 

 

 

 

Committee Members: Dr  Simon C L AU Dr Aster W Y LAU 
 Dr CHAN Lam Prof Donald K T LI 

 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr Vincent W S LI 
 Dr Stephen K S FOO Dr LI Yim Chu 
 Dr Anthony P FOK  Dr Leon M NGAI 
 Dr HONG Tin Chak Dr Hugh J TAM 
 Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr TSE Sut Yee  (to December 2019) 
 Dr  Edmund W W LAM   

Chairman: Dr NGAN Po Lun 

 

Vice-Chairman: 

 

Dr 

 

HO Ka Ming 

Vice-Chairlady: Dr CHAN Wing Yan     
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Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 
 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 
 Dr LAU Ho Lim 
 Dr William C W WONG 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Media Column Subgroup : Dr Simon C L AU Prof  Cindy L K LAM 
 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN Dr LAM See Yui 
 

Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Dr Edmund W W LAM 
 

Dr CHAN Ka Lung Dr LAU Ho Lim 
 

Dr Amy K L CHAN Dr Aster W Y LAU  
 

Dr Keith K W CHAN Prof Donald K T LI 

 Dr CHAN Lam Dr Vincent W S LI 
 

Dr Angus M W CHAN Dr LI Yim Chu 
 

Dr Mark S H CHAN Dr Dana S M LO 
 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG) 
 

Dr David V K CHAO Dr Leon M NGAI 
 

Dr Andy K Y CHEUNG Dr NGAN Po Lun 
 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Dr SHEK Hon Wing 
 

Dr CHING Kam Wing Dr Simon SO 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU Dr Alan SYED 

 Dr Oliver O C CHIU Dr Hugh J TAM 
 

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr Sammy L T TSOI 
 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN Dr Gene W W TSOI 
 

Dr Anthony P FOK Dr WAN Kwong Yu 
 

Dr Stephen K S FOO Prof Martin C S WONG 

 Dr HO Ka Ming Dr William C W WONG  
 

Dr HO Kam Wai Dr Marcus M S WONG 
 

Dr HONG Tin Chak Prof Samuel Y S WONG 
 

Dr HUI See Ying Dr WUN Yuk Tsan 
 

Dr Andrew K K IP Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 
 

Dr Alan Y L KWOK Dr Esther Y T YU 

 Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr Natalie C L YUEN 
 

Dr Stanley K H LAM Dr TSE Sut Yee (to December 2019) 

 

Staff: Ms Windy W L LAU  (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Kathy K Y LAI (Administrative Executive) 

 

This year, the Public Education Committee continued to carry out public education activities through different channels. The Media 

Column Subgroup continued to publish articles regularly in the Hong Kong Economic Journal (信報). The published articles are 

amounted to 685 for the Hong Kong Economic Journal. 

 

In response to the health concern of public related to the social events and COVID-19 pandemic, the Committee prepared a series of 

articles to help the public for preparing and facing the challenges: 

 

For the social events: 

Topic Author Date 

請讓我繼續以專業守護你 Dr LAU Wai Yee, Aster 22 August 2019 

災難防護應變 家庭醫生堅守崗位 Dr LI Kwok Tung, Donald 05 September 2019 

妥善處理催淚彈帶來的風險 Dr HO Ka Ming 21 November 2019 

 

For the COVID-19 Pandemic: 

Topic Author Date 

不明 「不明原因的肺炎」 Dr NGAN Po Lun 16 January 2020 

自律自重 保護自己 嚴抗肺炎 Dr NGAN Po Lun 30 January 2020 

「沙士」十七年 從經驗齊心抗疫 Dr HO Ka Ming 06 February 2020 

殺滅病毒攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 13 February 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 Members of Public Education Committee 20 February 2020 
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疫境自強  家居清潔有法 Dr TAM John Hugh 27 February 2020 

同心應對傳染病大流行 Dr HO Ka Ming 05 March 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 之二 Dr LAM Wing Wo and Dr TAM John Hugh 19 March 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 之三 Dr TAM John Hugh 26 March 2020 

檢驗病毒攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 02 April 2020 

快速測病毒 抗原對抗體 Dr NGAN Po Lun 09 April 2020 

家庭醫生在抗疫下的全人醫療 Dr HO Ka Ming 16 April 2020 

檢測病毒 有幾準確？ Dr NGAN Po Lun 23 April 2020 

家庭醫生 與你同行 守護每刻 Members of Public Education Committee 14 May 2020 

家庭醫生在前線 走在最前 守到最後  Dr HO Ka Ming 21 May 2020 

 

The theme of 2020 World Family Doctor Day (on 19 May each year) is “Family doctors on the front line. First in, last out!”. In 2020, we 

are fighting hard against the COVID-19 pandemic. College organized the campaign to collected photos from College members and 

fellows to share and express their concerns and experiences during the process.  The photos were compiled into a video and uploaded 

to our College Facebook and website for the World Family Doctors Day, and show supports to one another in our difficult time. 

  

Various public education activities and events in 2019 to 2020 were listed at the end of the report. I would like to thank all the colleagues 

who had offered their valuable assistance in the past year, and our excellent administrative support from the secretaries. 

 

Public Education Activities: 

Date  Event Chairpersons 

31 January 2020 
Media interview on TVB Channel 83 抗疫手冊 programme to talk about 

Health issues for elderly and children in prevention of the nCoV infection. 
Dr NGAN Po Lun 

19 May 2020 
Campaign for World Family Doctor Day 2020 – “Family doctors on the front 

line. First in, last out” 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr NGAN Po Lun 

 

Following is the list of weekly publications in Hong Kong Economic Journal (信報): 

Topic Author Date 

風濕還是類風濕 你清楚嗎? Dr CHAN Lam 11 July 2019 

質子泵 抑制劑 怎樣用 才最好 Dr NGAN Po Lun 18 July 2019 

靜觀減痛 Dr Aster W Y LAU 25 July 2019 

漫長的告別 Dr HO Ka Ming 08 August 2019 

電子競技 VS 遊戲障礙 Dr HO Ka Ming 15 August 2019 

請讓我繼續以專業守護你 Dr LAU Wai Yee, Aster 22 August 2019 

災難防護應變 家庭醫生堅守崗位 Dr LI Kwok Tung, Donald 05 September 2019 

用藥上癮?  Dr NGAN Po Lun 19 September 2019 

緊急避孕的方法 Dr SAU Chung Ying 26 September 2019 

《人魚沉睡的家》----- 如何渡過哀傷期 Dr HO Ka Ming 10 October 2019 

藥物總有副作用? Dr NGAN Po Lun 17 October 2019 

血管 VS 神經線 Dr NGAN Po Lun 24 October 2019 

醫生，我是不是熱氣? Dr LAU Wai Yee, Aster 31 October 2019 

感冒定傷風 流感病毒 VS 鼻病毒 Dr NGAN Po Lun 14 November 2019 

妥善處理催淚彈帶來的風險 Dr HO Ka Ming 21 November 2019 

流感疫苗: 滅活 VS 減活 Dr NGAN Po Lun 28 November 2019 

醫生，我有腸胃炎!  Dr CHAN Chung Yuk, Alvin 12 December 2019 

從堅決維持現狀到成功改變習慣 Dr LAU Chi Hang 19 December 2019 

成立地區康健中心 強化本港基層醫療發展 Dr HO Ka Ming 09 January 2020 

不明 「不明原因的肺炎」 Dr NGAN Po Lun 16 January 2020 

提升改變動力 Dr LAU Chi Hang 23 January 2020 

自律自重 保護自己 嚴抗肺炎 Dr NGAN Po Lun 30 January 2020 

「沙士」十七年 從經驗齊心抗疫 Dr HO Ka Ming 06 February 2020 

殺滅病毒攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 13 February 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 Members of Public Education Committee 20 February 2020 

疫境自強  家居清潔有法 Dr TAM John Hugh 27 February 2020 

同心應對傳染病大流行 Dr HO Ka Ming 05 March 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 之二 Dr LAM Wing Wo and Dr TAM John Hugh 19 March 2020 

齊心抗疫 你問我答 之三 Dr TAM John Hugh 26 March 2020 

檢驗病毒攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 02 April 2020 

快速測病毒 抗原對抗體 Dr NGAN Po Lun 09 April 2020 
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家庭醫生在抗疫下的全人醫療 Dr HO Ka Ming 16 April 2020 

檢測病毒 有幾準確？ Dr NGAN Po Lun 23 April 2020 

不要忘記「三高」 Dr NGAN Po Lun 30 April 2020 

家庭醫生 與你同行 守護每刻 Members of Public Education Committee 14 May 2020 

家庭醫生在前線 走在最前 守到最後  Dr HO Ka Ming 21 May 2020 

抽筋 拉筋 Dr NGAN Po Lun 28 May 2020 

不想孤身作戰的家庭醫生 Dr NGAN Po Lun 11 June 2020 

誤解，是行為改變的大障礙 Dr LAU Chi Hang 18 June 2020 

五十歲 勞損多 Dr NGAN Po Lun 25 June 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 – March 2020) 

 
Chairman:            Dr CHAN King Hong 

 

Vice-Chairmen:           Dr KO Siu Hin 

     Dr LEUNG To Fung       
 

Committee Members:    Dr CHAN Kin Ling  Dr Winson W Y HUNG 

 Dr Clarence C M CHOI Dr Mary B L KWONG 

Dr Antonio A T CHUH   Dr Edmund W W LAM 

Dr HUI Lai Chi  Dr SIU Ping Cheong 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG                        

  

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr Cecilia YM FAN 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr William C W WONG 

 

Staff: Mr John P C MA        (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Anna HO       (Administrative Executive, from March 2020) 

 Ms Cherry MA       (Administrative Assistant, to March 2020) 

 

The QA&A program aims to promote participation in Continuing Medical Education (CME) and Continuing Professional Development 

(CPD) activities for General Practitioner (GP) and Family Physician (FP). With end in mind to promote best practices, educational 

activities proposed to our College are assessed by the QA&A committee to identify relevant and high quality ones for members’ 

attendance. Participation in these learning activities towards best practices are acknowledges by CME/CPD points, with issuing of 

CME certificate to those fulfilling the College’s requirement as a token recognition and encouragement. 

 

In order to further enhance an effective and efficient QA&A program for GP/FP, the QA&A committee has conducted a review on 

prevailing operation since 2Q 2016. An Active Learning Mode (ALM) has been endorsed in Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 

since 2016. In this regard, active participation in prescribed learning of a prior-accredited activity may earn CPD points upon successful 

submission of both pre- and post- MCQs. Through innovative learning mode as such, learning may be facilitated efficiently and 

effectively in this era of rapid knowledge and technology expansion. ALM has also implemented in the Annual Refresher Training 

Course held by Specialty Board since 2018. 

  

An enhanced CPR course was introduced in 2017 in response to the amended CPR requirement of RACGP QI & CPD Programme 

in 2017-19 to attain reciprocal recognition with RACGP and our College QA Programme. The ‘Advanced Primary Care Life Support 

Course’ has been promoted alongside with CPR Subcommittee of The Board of Education starting from 2017.  

 

Regarding CME, for HKCFP Members who have chosen Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) as their CME Administrator under 

“MCHK CME Programme for Non-specialists” category, we would administer their MCHK CME with waiving of fee charged by HKAM 

starting January 2017. In addition, arrangement was made to recognise unexpected difficulties faced by members due to social events 

and COVID-19 in late 2019. A special remedial programme for QA Certificate 2017-19 was arranged in early 2020 to allow extra 6 

months for member to fulfil CME & CPD requirement for the HKCFP QA Certificate 2017-19 by June 2020 (instead of Dec 2019). 
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To strengthen continuity of the committee, kindly note that we have introduced 2 vice chairmen posts with interposing terms since 

2018. 

 

Kindly note that the electronic copy of QA Certificate 2017-19 and CME Certificate 2019 is available on the College's homepage 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk, members can login to their own account to download the certificates anytime. Request for hardcopy certificate 

can be made in writing to the college secretariat, an administrative fee of $50 per copy will be charged starting from July 2016. Please 

find list of active fellows/members who have fulfilled the College’s requirement for awarding certificate as below. 

 

List of Active College Fellow who obtained QA Certificate 2017-19 

Dr AI Hiu Fay Dawn Teresa Dr ARORA Namrata Dr AU Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr AU Chi Lap Simon Dr AU Tai Kwan Eva Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin 

Dr BIEN Tse Fang Barry Dr CHAN Angela Shuk Yan Dr CHAN Chi Hung 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Edmond Dr CHAN Chi Wing Dr CHAN Chin Ping 

Dr CHAN Chung Yuk Alvin Dr CHAN Fu Leung Dr CHAN Ham 

Dr CHAN Hau Ting Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Peter Dr CHAN Hung Wai Patrick 

Dr CHAN Ka Chun Julie Dr CHAN Ka Ho Dr CHAN Ka Lok Carroll 

Dr CHAN Kam Sum Dr CHAN Ki Chun Enoch Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

Dr CHAN Kin Wai Dr CHAN Kiu Pak Kilpatrick Dr CHAN Kwok Wai Keith 

Dr CHAN Lam Dr CHAN Lit Ping Dr CHAN Man Hung Jeff 

Dr CHAN Man Li Dr CHAN Mei Tak Dr CHAN Ngai Ping 

Dr CHAN Pang Fai Dr CHAN Pui Chuen Dr CHAN Pui Kwan 

Dr CHAN Pui Wai Dr CHAN Shan Ching Dr CHAN Shui Ling 

Dr CHAN Sio Pan Dr CHAN So Wai Dr CHAN Suen Ho Mark 

Dr CHAN Sze Luen David Dr CHAN Wei Kwan Rita Dr CHAN Wing Chi Annie 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan Dr CHAN Wing Yi Dr CHAN Yam Lai Thomas 

Dr CHAN Yan Kwong Eric Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei Dr CHAN Yin Chiu 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Dr CHAN Yin Yue Yeni Dr CHAN Ying Ho 

Dr CHAN Yu Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Dr CHAN Yuk Ying Angela 

Dr CHANG Wells Dr CHAU Hoi Ki Samantha Dr CHAU Ka Vai 

Dr CHAU Kai Man Dr CHE Ka Seng Dr CHEN Hing Han 

Dr CHEN Liujing Dr CHEN Xiao Qun Dr CHEN Xiao Rui Catherine 

Dr CHENG Chun Sing David Dr CHENG Ghar Yee Judy Dr CHENG Hei Wan 

Dr CHENG Kit Wing Dr CHENG Long Yee Dr CHENG Michael 

Dr CHENG Pui Kwan Lisa Dr CHENG Pui Sum Cupid Dr CHENG Sai Yip Ronald 

Dr CHENG Wai Fat Dr CHEUK Christina Dr CHEUK Man Cheong Eric 

Dr CHEUK Tat Sang Dr CHEUK Yau Chun Dr CHEUNG Chi Hong David 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King Dr CHEUNG Helen Dr CHEUNG Kit Ying Andy 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung Sydney Dr CHEUNG Man Ha Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung Dr CHEUNG Pui Shan Cindy 

Dr CHEUNG Shun Tai Dr CHEUNG Sze Man Dr CHEUNG Wang Chung 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Dr CHEUNG Yan Kit Dr CHEUNG Yau Ling Florence 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man Dr CHIANG Lap Kin Dr CHING Kam Wing 

Dr CHIU Chi Fai Billy Dr CHIU Ho Ching Dr CHO Yin Fan 

Dr CHOI Chuen Ming Clarence Dr CHOI Kin Gabriel Dr CHOI Man Kei 

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Dr CHOU Chun Wing Stephen Dr CHOW Kai Lim 

Dr CHOW Kam Fai Dr CHOW Kar Kin Peter Dr CHOW Kim Yue 

Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody Dr CHOW Sheung Yan Alex Dr CHOW Tsz Ling 

Dr CHOW Wai Hung Dr CHOW Wing Yan Dr CHOY Pui Sang Ignatius 

Dr CHU Lai Shan Dr CHU Tsun Kit Dr CHU Wai Sing Daniel 

Dr CHUA Kam Ling Dr CHUI Man Dr CHUI Siu Hang Billy 

Dr CHUI Winnie Wan Ying Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong Dr CHUNG Chi Yan Benny 

Dr CHUNG Ka Chun Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 

Dr CHUNG Sze Ting Dr CHUNG Tze Nang John Dr CHUNG Wai Ho 

Dr CHUNG Yat Ki Benedict Dr DAO Man Chi Dr DOO Ching Hoi 

Dr FAN Yuen Man Cecilia Dr FENG Longyin Dr FOK Chun Man 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony Dr FONG Chui Ying Dr FONG Ting 

Dr FOO Kam So Stephen Dr FU Sau Nga Dr FU Siu Saap Michelle 

Dr FUNG Hoi Tik Dr FUNG Kai Chiu Dr FUNG Kevin Koon Fun 

Dr FUNG Kin Chor Dr FUNG Kwok Hay Dr FUNG Pak Kei 

Dr FUNG Siu Cheung Colman Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan Dr HAN Jinghao 

Dr HAN Tun Bing William Dr HO Chin Chiu Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr HO Ka Ying Dr HO Kam Wai Dr HO Mo Sze Ellen 
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Dr HO Shu Wan Dr HO Tsz Bun Dr HO Wang Fung Desmond 

Dr HO Wing Man Dr HONG Tin Chak Dr HOU Jing 

Dr HSU Kwok Fai David Dr HUI King Wai Dr HUI Kwun Sue Wilson 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Dr HUNG Chi Bun Dr HUNG Lok Lam Susanna 

Dr HUNG Wai Shan Sandra Dr HUNG Wai Yin Winson Dr IONG Ka I 

Dr IP Kit Kuen Andrew Dr IP Pang Fei Dr IP Sai Yin 

Dr IP Sui Wah Dr IP Yan Yan Dr KAM Ngar Yin 

Dr KAM Sze Man Silvia Dr KAM Ting Ting Dr KO Siu Hin 

Dr KO Wai Kit Dr KOK Kwok Yee Dr KONG Che Wan 

Dr KONG Chi Hang Dr KONG Chun Yuk Dr KONG Yim Fai Albert 

Dr KUM Chung Hang Dr KWAN Chun Man Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr KWAN Yu Dr KWOK Chi Ming Dr KWOK Chung Hon Michael 

Dr KWOK Lai Ping Steffi Dr KWOK Memie Dr KWOK Vincci 

Dr KWOK Yee Ming Elaine Dr KWOK Yuen Na Dr KWONG Bi Lok Mary 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei Dr KWONG Lok See Dr KWONG Sheung Li 

Dr KWONG Siu Kei Alfred Dr KWONG Wing Hun Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan 

Dr LAI Kit Ping Loretta Dr LAI Ming Wah Alexander Dr LAI Pui Yan 

Dr LAI Sheung Siu Dr LAI Siu Wai Dr LAI Wai Wah 

Dr LAI Wing Yiu Dr LAM Hiu Lam Dr LAM Hon Man 

Dr LAM Ki Yu Dr LAM King Hei Stanley Dr LAM Man Man 

Dr LAM Man Jansen Dr LAM Paul Dr LAM Pui 

Dr LAM Sun Ching Dr LAM Tak Man Catherine Dr LAM Ting 

Dr LAM Ting Chung Matthew Dr LAM Tsan Augustine Dr LAM Wai Hang Eddie 

Dr LAM Wing Wo Edmund Dr LAM Ying Ying Dr LAU Cheuk Nam Mathew 

Dr LAU Chi Hang Dr LAU Chi Hung Dr LAU Chi Ming 

Dr LAU Chun Hung Gavin Dr LAU Ho Lim Dr LAU Ka Man 

Dr LAU Kam Tong Dr LAU Kin Sang Kinson Dr LAU Lai Na 

Dr LAU Man Wai Dominic Dr LAU Po Shan Dr LAU Pui Ling 

Dr LAU Sek Fung Spike Dr LAU Tai Wai Dr LAU Wai Keung Timothy 

Dr LAU Wai Yee Aster Dr LAU Wing Man Dr LAU Yue Young Geoffrey 

Dr LEE Cheuk Pong Dr LEE Chik Pui Dr LEE Ching Man Margaret 

Dr LEE Chun Hui Dr LEE Edna Tin Wai Dr LEE Ho Ming 

Dr LEE Hoi Ying Dr LEE Ka Pik Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr LEE Kam Pui Dr LEE Kar Fai Dr LEE Kar Yun Peter 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Dr LEE Ling Hin Dr LEE Man Kei 

Dr LEE Shek Hang Dr LEE Sik Kwan Jenny Dr LEE Siu Yin Ruby 

Dr LEE Sum Dr LEE Wang Yat Dr LEE Wing Lam 

Dr LEE Wing Mei Dickinson Dr LEE Wing Yi Dr LEE Yan Chi Vivien 

Dr LEE Ying Cheung Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Dr LEUNG Ching Ching 

Dr LEUNG Chun Yin Daniel Dr LEUNG Hor Yee Dr LEUNG Ka Fai 

Dr LEUNG Kim Dr LEUNG Kin Kay Dr LEUNG Kwan Wa Maria 

Dr LEUNG Lai Kuen Dr LEUNG Lai Man Dr LEUNG Lok Hang 

Dr LEUNG Man Yin Dr LEUNG May Heng Sandy Dr LEUNG Pui Sha Crystal 

Dr LEUNG Sze Wan Selina Dr LEUNG To Fung Dr LEUNG Tsi Mei Violet 

Dr LEUNG Wai Man Dr LEUNG Wing Kit Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

Dr LEUNG Yu Hang Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei Dr LEUNG Yuen Kin Kenneth 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee Dr LI Hei Lim Dr LI Heung Wing 

Dr LI Wing Shun Vincent Dr LI Yim Chu Dr LIM Martina 

Dr LIM Mo Kin Dr LIU Yin Mei Dr LO Alvina 

Dr LO Chun Hung Raymond Dr LO Ka Man Michelle Dr LO Ling 

Dr LO Shiu Bong Dr LO Sze Mon Dana Dr LO Tsun Fan 

Dr LO Tsz Yan Dr LO Yuen Chung Yvonne Dr LUI How Mui 

Dr LUI Luen Pun Benny Dr LUK Chi To Dr LUK Chun Wa 

Dr LUK Kam Hung Dr LUK Man Hei Matthew Dr LUK Wan 

Dr MAK Wing Hang Dr MAN Fung Yi Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo 

Dr MO Kam Chuen Dr MOK Ka Yee Dr MOK Yuen Fan Jennifer 

Dr NG VENTURA Lorna Dr NG Cham Chi Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr NG Chiu Lap Dr NG Hoi Yee Dr NG Kwok Fai 

Dr NG Kwok Keung Dr NG Mei Po Jackie Dr NG Mei Yee 

Dr NG Ming Shing Dr NG Ngai Mui Dr NG Pak Him 

Dr NG Pui Yam Dr NG Tsz Kin Dr NG Tze King Peter 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Dr NG Yui Wing Joanne Dr NGAI Ho Yin Allen 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho Dr NGAI Ming Leon Dr NGAN Hung Kin Henry 
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Dr NGAN Ka Lai Raymond Dr NGAN Po Lun Dr OR Ka Yan 

Dr PAK Sik On Dr PANG Siu Leung Dr PON Wai Pi 

Dr PONG Pong Dr POON Ming Wai Dr POON Ting Kong 

Dr POON Wing Kwan Dr POON Yung Yin Dr PUN Yat Hei 

Dr SHEK Chun Chiu Dr SHIU Wing Ho Dr SHUEN Chuen Kwok Mariana 

Dr SHUM Chi Shan Winnie Dr SIN Edmond Ho Fai Dr SIN Ka Ling 

Dr SIN Ming Chuen Dr SIT Wing Shan Dr SIU Pui Yi Natalie 

Dr SIU Samuel Ji-Sum Dr SO Ching Yee Gloria Dr SO Mei Ho Doris 

Dr SO Ping Roger Dr SO Tsang Yim Dr SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 

Dr SUN Yiu Kwong Dr SUNG Tai Wai David Dr SY Hung Pan Jimmy 

Dr SY Wing Man Dr SZE Chung Fai Dr SZE Hon Ho 

Dr SZE Lung Yam Dr TAM Chung Yin Janet Dr TAM Ho Shan 

Dr TAM John Hugh Dr TAM Ka Wae Tammy Dr TAM Kit Ping 

Dr TAM Kwan Wai Dr TAM Man Wai Dr TAM Wah Kit 

Dr TAM Wing Yi Cherry Dr TANG Kin Sze Dr TIN Yuen Ying 

Dr TING Fei Yin Dr TO Kit Yuk Dorothy Dr TONG Gerald Sze Ho 

Dr TONG Ka Hung Dr TONG Po Hei Timmy Dr TONG Siu Man 

Dr TOO Lai Chong Dr TSANG Ming Lam Dr TSANG Pui Lim 

Dr TSANG Sheung Yin Stanley Dr TSE Hing Choi Dr TSE Keith Kwok Ki 

Dr TSE Kwok Lam Dr TSE Po Ching Venus Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr TSE Tak Kei Dr TSE Tsui Yee Emily Dr TSE Tung Wing George 

Dr TSE Wan Ying Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang Dr TSIM Koon Lan Kathy 

Dr TSOI Lai To Sammy Dr TSUI Felix Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang Dr TSUI Sau In Dr TSUI Wing Sze Wendy 

Dr WAN King Tung Peter Dr WAN Kwong Yu Dr WAN Wing Fai 

Dr WANG Hua Li Dr WONG Chak Tong Dr WONG Chi Kwong Roger 

Dr WONG Chi Lung Dr WONG Chi Sang Martin Dr WONG Chi Wing 

Dr WONG Chit Wing Dr WONG Chun Fai Dr WONG Chung Tao 

Dr WONG Chung Yan Dr WONG Fai Ying Dr WONG Hang Fai Ricky 

Dr WONG Hei Man Emily Dr WONG Hin Hei Henry Dr WONG Hing Lam 

Dr WONG Hiu Lap Dr WONG Ho Cheong Dr WONG Hong Kiu Queenie 

Dr WONG Ka Ki David Dr WONG Ka Wah Dr WONG Kwai Sheung 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing Dr WONG Kwok Hoi Dr WONG Lai Cheung Virginia 

Dr WONG Man Kin Dr WONG Mong Sze Marcus Dr WONG Oi Yee Amy 

Dr WONG Pak Hoi Dr WONG Pak Kin Dr WONG Pui Ling 

Dr WONG Suk Ching Dr WONG Sum Lok Dr WONG Sze Kei 

Dr WONG Sze Nga Dr WONG Tak Lung Dr WONG Tseng Kwong 

Dr WONG Wai Man Rita Dr WONG Wai On Dr WONG Wing Sze 

Dr WONG Yeuk Ka Harry Dr WU Ching Ping Dr WU Chun Yu 

Dr WU Kwok Keung Dr WU Shui Chi Nerrissa Dr WU Sze Man 

Dr WU Tsz Yuen Tom Dr WU Wing Keung Ricky Dr XU Shaowei 

Dr YAN Chi Yung Dr YAU Kin Chung Dr YAU King Sun 

Dr YAU Lai Mo Dr YAU Tang Fai Dr YEN Pang Fei 

Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie Dr YEUNG Sze Wai 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Dr YEUNG Yee Mei Dr YING Gard Ching Derek 

Dr YIP Chun Kong Dr YIP Hoi Man Vivian Dr YIP Pui Chuen 

Dr YIP Tze Hung Dr YIP Wah Yung Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Dr YIP Wing Yi Dr YIU Cheuk Man Dr YIU Ming Pong 

Dr YIU Yiu Kee Kelvin Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Dr YOUNG Yiu Fai 

Dr YU Kwan Alexander Dr YU Man Sun Dr YU Pui Hang 

Dr YU Sze Kai Frances Dr YU Yee Tak Esther Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam Dr YUEN Ming Wai Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

Dr YUNG Hiu Ting Dr YUNG Yin Ying Prof LEE Albert 

Prof LI Kwok Tung Donald   

 

List of Active College Member who obtained QA Certificate 2017-19 

Dr BIEN, Szu Hsin, Davina Dr CHAN, Chun Tin Dr CHAN, Chung Mok, Samuel 

Dr CHAN, Kam Sheung Dr CHAN, Ki Fung, Dickson Dr CHAN, King Hong 

Dr CHAN, Lok Wai, Thomas Dr CHAN, Ming Wai, Angus Dr CHAN, Shiu Yee, Cynthia 

Dr CHAN, Siu Chung, Bruce Dr CHAN, So Heung Dr CHAN, Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr CHAN, Yuen Ching Dr CHAN, Yuen Ling Dr CHANG, Hsu Wei 

Dr CHANG, Ting Ting Dr CHAO, Vai Kiong, David Dr CHAU, Yiu Shing 

Dr CHEN, Cong Xiao Dr CHEN, Yun, Julie Dr CHEUK, Yau Lin 
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Dr CHIU, Yuen Man Dr CHO, Hing Sang, Kenneth Dr CHOI, Siu Chuen 

Dr CHOY, Yuk Lun, Frederick Dr CHU, Henson Dr CHUANG, Chi Kit 

Dr CHUNG, Hiu Yeung Dr FAN, Siu Wai Dr FONG, Kin Lee, Garry 

Dr FOSTER, Jonathan Charles Dr FUNG, Ka Hang, Timothy Dr GOH, Winston Louis 

Dr HO, Ka Ki Dr HO, Yiu Keung, Steven Dr HUI, Alice Sau Wei 

Dr HUI, Suk Yin, Mandy Dr HUI, Yuk Ting Candy Dr HUN, Pek I 

Dr JOR, Hon Man Dr KONG, Ka Ming Andrew Dr KWOK, Yip Tung Tony 

Dr KWONG, Ho Tak Dr KWONG, Ngar Ming, Henry Dr LAM, Ching Man 

Dr LAM, Kang Dr LAM, Wai Ming Dr LAM, Wai Yiu 

Dr LAU, Ka Man, Angela Dr LAU, Kwan Chung, Jonathan Dr LEE, Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr LEUNG, Chi Fai Dr LEUNG, Hilching Eunice Dr LEUNG, Nim No, Deborah 

Dr LEUNG, Shuk Yun Dr LEUNG, Wai Lun Dr LI, Minru 

Dr LIANG, Jun Dr LIM, Paik Chok, Rose Dr LO (WONG), Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr LO, Cheuk Wai Dr LO, Ping Wo Dr LO, Wei 

Dr LO, Yuen Man Dr LOY, Tien En, Grace Dr LUI, Rupert Yau Han 

Dr LUK, Sze Wan Candy Dr MA, Man Ki Dr MA, Mya Khin 

Dr MA, Ping Kwan, Danny Dr MA, Yuen Ying Dr MAK, Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr MAK, Wing Kin Dr MING, Shiu Kow Dr NG, Kai Man 

Dr NG, Tsz Chung Dr NGAI, Bernard Dr PANG, Sze Ching Esther 

Dr POON, Min Kan Ivy Dr SHEN, Yu Chun Dr SIU, Ping Cheong 

Dr SIU, Wing Yee Dr SO, Chi Kin Dr SUNG, Cheuk Chung 

Dr TAI, Lik Dr TAN, Shu Kwan Dr TANG, Shao Fen, Joyce 

Dr TANG, Suet Chung Lawson Dr TSAI, Hung Yu Dr TSANG, Chiu Yee, Luke 

Dr TSANG, Chun Au Dr TSANG, Kam Wah Dr TUNG, Po Yin 

Dr WANG, Amy Yang Dr WONG, Alan Yan Ho Dr WONG, Chi Wai, William 

Dr WONG, Ching Keung Dr WONG, Chiu Lun Dr WONG, Chun Bun, Gordon 

Dr WONG, Chung Ming Dr WONG, Man Ho Dr WONG, Ming Shun 

Dr WONG, Sze Man Dr WONG, Wing Ning, Rosanna Dr WONG, Yu Man 

Dr WU, Hanji Edward Thomas Dr YANG, Jung Mai Dr YAU, Chi Yan 

Dr YAU, Chiu Ming Dr YIP, Pui Leung Dr YIP, Yuk Pang, Kenneth 

Dr YU, Suet Mui Dr YUE, Wing Shun Dr YUEN, Ching Yan 

Dr YUEN, Man Ki Dr ZHANG, Dingzuan Dr ZHAO, HaiFeng 

Prof LAM, Lo Kuen, Cindy Prof LAM, Tai Pong Prof WONG, Yeung Shan, Samuel 

 

List of Active College Fellow who obtained CME certificate in 2019 

Dr AI Hiu Fay Dawn Teresa Dr ARORA Namrata Dr AU Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr AU Chi Lap Simon Dr AU Chi Sum Dr AU Tai Kwan Eva 

Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin Dr BIEN Tse Fang Barry Dr CHAN Angela Shuk Yan 

Dr CHAN Cheuk Wah Lawrence Dr CHAN Chi Hung Dr CHAN Chi Keung 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Edmond Dr CHAN Chi Wing Dr CHAN Chin Ping 

Dr CHAN Ching Teresa Dr CHAN Chor Kwong Dr CHAN Chung Yuk Alvin 

Dr CHAN Fu Leung Dr CHAN Ham Dr CHAN Hau Ting 

Dr CHAN Hoi Ying Linda Dr CHAN Hon Ming Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Peter 

Dr CHAN Hung Wai Patrick Dr CHAN Ka Chun Julie Dr CHAN Ka Ho 

Dr CHAN Ka Lok Carroll Dr CHAN Ka Lung Dr CHAN Ka Man 

Dr CHAN Ka Yiu Richard Dr CHAN Kam Sum Dr CHAN Ki Chun Enoch 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling Dr CHAN Kin Wai Dr CHAN Kit Chi Kitty 

Dr CHAN Kit Ling Amy Dr CHAN Kiu Pak Kilpatrick Dr CHAN Kwok Wai Keith 

Dr CHAN Laam Dr CHAN Lam Dr CHAN Lam Fung 

Dr CHAN Lit Ping Dr CHAN Lok Man Norman Dr CHAN Man Hay 

Dr CHAN Man Hung Jeff Dr CHAN Man Li Dr CHAN Mei Tak 

Dr CHAN Ngai Ping Dr CHAN Pang Fai Dr CHAN Pui Chuen 

Dr CHAN Pui Kwan Dr CHAN Pui Wai Dr CHAN Shui Ling 

Dr CHAN Shuk Wun Dr CHAN Sio Pan Dr CHAN Siu Ling Cloey 

Dr CHAN So Wai Dr CHAN Suen Ho Mark Dr CHAN Sze Luen David 

Dr CHAN Tat Eddie Dr CHAN Ting Bong Dr CHAN Wai Yee Tina 

Dr CHAN Wan Ki Dr CHAN Wei Kwan Rita Dr CHAN Wing Chi Annie 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan Dr CHAN Wing Yi Dr CHAN Yam Lai Thomas 

Dr CHAN Yan Kwong Eric Dr CHAN Yau Wa Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei 

Dr CHAN Yin Chiu Dr CHAN Yin Hang Dr CHAN Yin Yue Yeni 

Dr CHAN Ying Ho Dr CHAN Ying Ho Andrew Dr CHAN Yu 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Dr CHAN Yuk Chun Dr CHAN Yuk Ying Angela 

Dr CHANG Wai Wah Wilson Dr CHANG Wells Dr CHAU Hoi Ki Samantha 
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Dr CHAU Kai Man Dr CHE Ka Seng Dr CHEN Hing Han 

Dr CHEN Liujing Dr CHEN Xiao Qun Dr CHEN Xiao Rui Catherine 

Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong Dr CHENG Chun Sing David Dr CHENG Ghar Yee Judy 

Dr CHENG Hei Wan Dr CHENG Kit Wing Dr CHENG Kwan Chui 

Dr CHENG Long Yee Dr CHENG Michael Dr CHENG Pui Kwan Lisa 

Dr CHENG Pui Sum Cupid Dr CHENG Sai Yip Ronald Dr CHENG Wai Fat 

Dr CHEUK Christina Dr CHEUK Man Cheong Eric Dr CHEUK Tat Sang 

Dr CHEUK Yau Chun Dr CHEUNG Chi Hong David Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr CHEUNG Helen Dr CHEUNG Kin Wan Kelvin Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung Sydney 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung Dr CHEUNG Pui Shan Cindy Dr CHEUNG Wai Keung Paul 

Dr CHEUNG Wang Chung Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Dr CHEUNG Yan Kit 

Dr CHIU Chap Fai Johnnie Dr CHIU Chi Fai Billy Dr CHIU On Chi Oliver 

Dr CHO Kwai Chee Dr CHOI Chuen Ming Clarence Dr CHOI Kin Gabriel 

Dr CHOW Kar Kin Peter Dr CHOW Kim Yue Dr CHOW Kwan Lung 

Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody Dr CHOW Sheung Yan Alex Dr CHOW Shun Ming Simon 

Dr CHOW Tsz Ling Dr CHOW Wai Man Rudolph Dr CHOW Wing Man 

Dr CHOW Wing Yan Dr CHOY Chi Keung Dr CHOY Lai Chun 

Dr CHOY Pui Sang Ignatius Dr CHU Lai Ah Julia Dr CHU Lai Shan 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Dr CHU Wai Sing Daniel Dr CHU Wan Wing Vivian 

Dr CHUA Kam Ling Dr CHUH An Tung Antonio Dr CHUI Man 

Dr CHUI Siu Hang Billy Dr CHUI Winnie Wan Ying Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong 

Dr CHUNG Ka Chun Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Dr CHUNG Sze Ting 

Dr CHUNG Tze Nang John Dr CHUNG Wai Ho Dr CHUNG Yat Ki Benedict 

Dr DAO Man Chi Dr DOO Ching Hoi Dr FAN Wai Man Anita 

Dr FAN Yuen Man Cecilia Dr FENG Longyin Dr FOK Chun Man 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony Dr FOK Siu Wing Dominic Dr FONG Chui Ying 

Dr FOO Bong Yin Kevin Dr FOO Kam So Stephen Dr FU Sau Nga 

Dr FU Siu Saap Michelle Dr FUNG Hoi Tik Dr FUNG Kai Chiu 

Dr FUNG Kevin Koon Fun Dr FUNG Kin Chor Dr FUNG Kwok Hay 

Dr FUNG Pak Kei Dr FUNG Siu Cheung Colman Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan 

Dr HAN Jinghao Dr HAN Tun Bing William Dr HO Chin Chiu 

Dr HO Chung Yu Dr HO Ka Kei Edward Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr HO Ka Ying Dr HO Kai Chi Kenneth Dr HO Kam Wai 

Dr HO King Yip Anthony Dr HO Mo Sze Ellen Dr HO Shu Wan 

Dr HO Tsz Bun Dr HO Wang Fung Desmond Dr HO Wing Man 

Dr HONG Tin Chak Dr HOU Jing Dr HSU Kwok Fai David 

Dr HUI Chik Kwan Dr HUI King Wai Dr HUI Kwun Sue Wilson 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Dr HUI Ming Tung Eric Dr HUI See Ying 

Dr HUI Wai Lee Dr HUNG Chi Bun Dr HUNG Lok Lam Susanna 

Dr HUNG Wai Shan Sandra Dr HUNG Wai Yin Winson Dr IONG Ka I 

Dr IP Chung Ho Ronald Dr IP Kit Kuen Andrew Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sai Yin Dr IP Sui Wah Dr KAM Hing Wah Anthony 

Dr KAM Sze Man Silvia Dr KAM Ting Ting Dr KAN Chi Ho 

Dr KAN Chi Leung David Dr KAO Park Ming Dr KI Chi Wing Samuel 

Dr KO Siu Hin Dr KO Wai Kit Dr KO Yuet 

Dr KOK Kwok Yee Dr KONG Che Wan Dr KONG Chi Hang 

Dr KONG Chun Yuk Dr KONG Yim Fai Albert Dr KUM Chung Hang 

Dr KUNG Kenny Dr KWAN Chun Man Dr KWAN Ho Yin Patrick 

Dr KWAN Man Woo Dr WAN Shu To Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr KWAN Wing Yan Wendy Dr KWAN Yu Dr KWOK Chi Chiu 

Dr KWOK Chi Ming Dr KWOK Chi Sum Dr KWOK Chung Hon Michael 

Dr KWOK Hon Chu Kenneth Dr KWOK Lai Key Priscilla Dr KWOK Lai Ping Steffi 

Dr KWOK Memie Dr KWOK Tsz Tik Dr KWOK Vincci 

Dr KWOK Yee Ming Elaine Dr KWOK Yuen Na Dr KWOK Yuk Lun Alan 

Dr KWONG Bi Lok Mary Dr KWONG Hon Kei Dr KWONG Ka Wah 

Dr KWONG Lok See Dr KWONG Sheung Li Dr KWONG Siu Kei Alfred 

Dr KWONG Wing Hun Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan Dr LAI Kit Chi 

Dr LAI Kit Ping Loretta Dr LAI Ming Wah Alexander Dr LAI Pui Yan 

Dr LAI Sheung Siu Dr LAI Siu Wai Dr LAI Suk Yi Irene 

Dr LAI Sum Yin Dr LAI Tat Chau Douglas Dr LAI Wai Wah 

Dr LAI Wing Yiu Dr LAM Chi Yuen Johnny Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr LAM Hon Man Dr LAM Ki Yu Dr LAM King Hei Stanley 
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Dr LAM Man Man Dr LAM Paul Dr LAM Pui 

Dr LAM Soe Tjhoen Dr LAM Sun Ching Dr LAM Tak Hung 

Dr LAM Tak Man Catherine Dr LAM Ting Dr LAM Ting Chung Matthew 

Dr LAM Tsan Augustine Dr LAM Wai Chi Rocky Dr LAM Wai Hang Eddie 

Dr LAM Wai Leung Anthony Dr LAM Wing Kwun Dr LAM Wing Wo Edmund 

Dr LAM Ying Dr LAM Ying Ying Dr LAU Cheuk Nam Mathew 

Dr LAU Chi Hang Dr LAU Chi Ming Dr LAU Chun Hung Gavin 

Dr LAU Chun Yin Victor Dr LAU Ho Lim Dr LAU Hon Chung 

Dr LAU Ka Kin Dr LAU Ka Man Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr LAU Kin Sang Kinson Dr LAU Lai Na Dr LAU Man Wai Dominic 

Dr LAU Po Shan Dr LAU Pui Lam Patrick Dr LAU Pui Ling 

Dr LAU Sek Fung Spike Dr LAU Tai Wai Dr LAU Wai Keung Timothy 

Dr LAU Wai Yee Aster Dr LAU Yue Young Geoffrey Dr LEE Cheuk Pong 

Dr LEE Chi Leung Dr LEE Chiang Tee Frederick Dr LEE Chik Pui 

Dr LEE Chun Hui Dr LEE Edna Tin Wai Dr LEE Hoi Ying 

Dr LEE Ka Ling Glenn Dr LEE Ka Pik Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr LEE Kam Pui Dr LEE Kar Fai Dr LEE Kar Yun Peter 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Dr LEE Ling Hin Dr LEE Man Kei 

Dr LEE Shek Hang Dr LEE Sik Kwan Jenny Dr LEE Siu Yin Ruby 

Dr LEE Sum Dr LEE Wang Yat Dr LEE Wing Lam 

Dr LEE Wing Mei Winnie Dr LEE Wing Yi Dr LEE Yan Chi Vivien 

Dr LEE Ying Cheung Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Dr LEUNG Ching Ching 

Dr LEUNG Chun Yin Daniel Dr LEUNG Gin Pang Dr LEUNG Hor Yee 

Dr LEUNG Ka Fai Dr LEUNG Kim Dr LEUNG Kin Kay 

Dr LEUNG Kwan Wa Maria Dr LEUNG Lai Kuen Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

Dr LEUNG Lok Hang Dr LEUNG Man Yin Dr LEUNG May Heng Sandy 

Dr LEUNG Pui Sha Crystal Dr LEUNG Sze Wan Selina Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr LEUNG Tsi Mei Violet Dr LEUNG Wai Man Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu 

Dr LEUNG Wing Kit Dr LEUNG Wing Mun Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Kin Kenneth Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee Dr LI Heung Wing 

Dr LI Kong Yu Dr LI Shing Yan Dr LI Wing Shun Vincent 

Dr LI Yim Chu Dr LIM Martina Dr LIN Chor Keung Calvin 

Dr LIU Yin Mei Dr LO Alvina Dr LO Chun Hung Raymond 

Dr LO Ka Man Michelle Dr LO Ling Dr LO Shiu Bong 

Dr LO Sze Mon Dana Dr LO Tsun Fan Dr LO Tsz Yan 

Dr LO Wai Hon Dr LO Yuen Chung Yvonne Dr LUI How Mui 

Dr LUI Luen Pun Benny Dr LUK Chi To Dr LUK Chun Wa 

Dr LUK Kam Hung Dr LUK Man Hei Matthew Dr MA Ching Hing Stanley 

Dr MAK Kam Lun Dr MAK Wing Hang Dr MO Kam Chuen 

Dr MOK Ka Yee Dr MOK Wai Che Lena Dr MOK Yuen Fan Jennifer 

Dr NG VENTURA Lorna Dr NG Cham Chi Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr NG Chiu Lap Dr NG Chun Bor Dr NG Hoi Yee 

Dr NG Kwok Fai Dr NG Kwok Keung Dr NG Mei Po Jackie 

Dr NG Mei Yee Dr NG Ming Shing Dr NG Ngai Mui 

Dr NG Pak Him Dr NG Pui Yam Dr NG Sze Wing Catherine 

Dr NG Tsz Kin Dr NG Tze King Peter Dr NG Yeung Shing 

Dr NG Yui Wing Joanne Dr NGAI Ho Yin Allen Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr NGAI Ming Leon Dr NGAN Hung Kin Henry Dr NGAN Ka Lai Raymond 

Dr NGAN Po Lun Dr NGAN Sze Yuen Dr OR Ka Yan 

Dr PAK Sik On Dr PANG Kwok Ching Dr PANG Seung Chiu 

Dr PANG Siu Leung Dr PON Wai Pi Dr POON Ming Wai 

Dr POON Shun Bong Anthony Dr POON Ting Kong Dr POON Wing Kwan 

Dr POON Yung Yin Dr PUN Lai Yin Dr PUN Yat Hei 

Dr SCHLAIKIER Brigitte Elisabeth Dr SHE Siu Yam Dominic Dr SHEK Chun Chiu 

Dr SHIU Ka Lok Dr SHIU Wing Ho Dr SHUEN Chuen Kwok Mariana 

Dr SHUM Chi Shan Winnie Dr SIN Edmond Ho Fai Dr SIN Ming Chuen 

Dr SIT Pui Ki Lolita Dr SIT Wing Shan Dr SIU Leung Chow 

Dr SIU Lok Man Dr SIU Pui Yi Natalie Dr SIU Samuel Ji-Sum 

Dr SO Ching Yee Gloria Dr SO Fong Tat Dr SO Mei Ho Doris 

Dr SO Ping Roger Dr SO Simon Dr SO Tsang Yim 

Dr SUN Yiu Kwong Dr SY Hung Pan Jimmy Dr SY Wing Man 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Dr SZE Hon Ho Dr SZE Lung Yam 

Dr SZE Pui Ka Catherine Dr SZE Siu Lam Jason Dr TAM Chi Wing Peter 
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Dr TAM Ho Shan Dr TAM John Hugh Dr TAM Ka Wae Tammy 

Dr TAM Kit Ping Dr TAM Kwan Wai Dr TAM Man Wai 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Dr TAM Wing Yi Cherry Dr TAM Yick Sin 

Dr TANG Hiu Wai Dr TANG Hoi Yan Dr TANG Kin Sze 

Dr TANG Man Leung Thomas Dr TING Fei Yin Dr TING Sze Man 

Dr TO Kit Yuk Dorothy Dr TONG Gerald Sze Ho Dr TONG Ka Hung 

Dr TONG Siu Man Dr TOO Lai Chong Dr TSANG (LEUNG) Yin Ching 

Dr TSANG Chi Fai Dr TSANG Hing Fai Dr TSANG Hing Kwong Stephen 

Dr TSANG Ming Lam Dr TSANG Pui Lim Dr TSANG Sheung Yin Stanley 

Dr TSANG Wai Mun Dr TSE Hing Choi Dr TSE Keith Kwok Ki 

Dr TSE Kwok Lam Dr TSE Kwok Lun Tony Dr TSE Peggy 

Dr TSE Po Ching Venus Dr TSE Sut Yee Dr TSE Tak Kei 

Dr TSE Tsui Yee Emily Dr TSE Tung Wing George Dr TSE Wan Ying 

Dr TSE Wing Man Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang Dr TSIM Koon Lan Kathy 

Dr TSO Ka Hin Kathleen Dr TSOI Lai To Sammy Dr TSOI Wai Wang Gene 

Dr TSUI Felix Dr TSUI Hing Sing Robert Dr TSUI Hiu Fa 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee Dr TSUI Pun Nang Dr TSUI Sau In 

Dr TSUI Wing Sze Wendy Dr WAN King Tung Peter Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr WAN Wing Fai Dr WANG Hua Li Dr WAT Kwong Sang 

Dr WONG Bing Hang Dr WONG Chak Tong Dr WONG Chi Ho Keith 

Dr WONG Chi Kwong Roger Dr WONG Chi Lung Dr WONG Chi Sang Martin 

Dr WONG Chi Wing Dr WONG Chit Wing Dr WONG Chun Fai 

Dr WONG Chun Pong Dr WONG Chung Tao Dr WONG Chung Yan 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Dr WONG Hang Fai Ricky Dr WONG Hei Man Emily 

Dr WONG Hin Hei Henry Dr WONG Hing Lam Dr WONG Ho Cheong 

Dr WONG Hong Kiu Queenie Dr WONG Hung Peter Dr WONG Ka Ki David 

Dr WONG Ka Wah Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi Dr WONG Kwok Kitty Dr WONG Lai Cheung Virginia 

Dr WONG Man Kin Dr WONG Man Ying Michelle Dr WONG Mong Sze Marcus 

Dr WONG Nai Ming Dr WONG Oi Yee Amy Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr WONG Pak Kin Dr WONG Pui Ling Dr WONG Siu Shan Simon 

Dr WONG Suk Ching Dr WONG Sze Kei Dr WONG Sze Nga 

Dr WONG Tak Lung Dr WONG Tseng Kwong Dr WONG Tsz Kau Carl 

Dr WONG Wai Bun Wilbert Dr WONG Wai Man Rita Dr WONG Wai On 

Dr WONG Wai Ying Jeannie Dr WONG Wing Sze Dr WONG Yat Wah Alfred 

Dr WONG Yeuk Ka Harry Dr WONG Ying Fun Dr WONG Yu Fai 

Dr WONG Yuen Ping Mariana Dr WONG Yuk Shan Dr WU Ching Ping 

Dr WU Chun Yu Dr WU Kwok Keung Dr WU Shui Chi Nerrissa 

Dr WU Sze Man Dr WU Tsz Yuen Tom Dr WU Wing Keung Ricky 

Dr XU Shaowei Dr YAM Tak Kwong Dr YAN Chi Yung 

Dr YAU Chi Hong Dr YAU Kin Chung Dr YAU King Sun 

Dr YAU Lai Mo Dr YAU Tang Fai Dr YAU Wing Ho 

Dr YEN Pang Fei Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Dr YEUNG Hoi Pun 

Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie Dr YEUNG Sze Wai Dr YEUNG To Ling Solomon 

Dr YEUNG Wai Kei Patrick Dr YEUNG Wai Man Dr YIM Chi Ling 

Dr YING Gard Ching Derek Dr YIO Shing Dr YIP Chun Kong 

Dr YIP Hoi Man Vivian Dr YIP Tze Hung Dr YIP Wah Yung 

Dr YIP Wing Ki Dr YIP Wing Yi Dr YIU Cheuk Man 

Dr YIU Kam Yi Dr YIU Ming Pong Dr YIU Yee Ki 

Dr YIU Yiu Kee Kelvin Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Dr YOUNG Yiu Fai 

Dr YU Ching Ching Dr YU Kwan Alexander Dr YU Man Sun 

Dr YU Pui Hang Dr YU Sze Kai Frances Dr YU Wing Hung 

Dr YU Yee Tak Esther Dr YUEN Chi Hang Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

Dr YUEN Ming Wai Dr YUEN Shiu Man Dr YUEN Yeuk Ying 

Dr YUNG Hiu Ting Dr YUNG Yin Ying Prof LEE Albert 

Prof LI Kwok Tung Donald   

 

List of Active College Member who obtained CME Certificate in 2019 

Dr AU, Wah Cheong, Eric Dr AU-YEUNG, Kin Yiu Dr BIEN, Szu Hsin, Davina 

Dr BONG, Chi Wai, Allan Dr CHAIN, Chi Woo, David Dr CHAN, Cheuk Ming 

Dr CHAN, Cheuk Yan, Stephen Dr CHAN, Chi Wai, Allen Dr CHAN, Cho Shan, Erica 

Dr CHAN, Cho Yin Dr CHAN, Chow Ming Dr CHAN, Chun Hon, Edmond 
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Dr CHAN, Chun Tin Dr CHAN, Chung Mok, Samuel Dr CHAN, Fu Wai 

Dr CHAN, Fung Yuen Dr CHAN, Kam Sheung Dr CHAN, Ki Fung, Dickson 

Dr CHAN, King Hong Dr CHAN, Kit Choi Dr CHAN, Kwan Ho 

Dr CHAN, Lin Dr CHAN, Lok Wai, Thomas Dr CHAN, Maria Magnifica M. 

Dr CHAN, Ming Wai, Angus Dr CHAN, Nai Yin, Nelson Dr CHAN, Nim Tak, Douglas 

Dr CHAN, Ping Kwong Dr CHAN, Pui Kwong Dr CHAN, Sai Man 

Dr CHAN, Shek Hoi Dr CHAN, Shiu Leung Dr CHAN, Shiu Yee, Cynthia 

Dr CHAN, Siu Chung, Bruce Dr CHAN, So Heung Dr CHAN, Suk Yin 

Dr CHAN, Tsz Kiu, Stewart Dr CHAN, Tung Hay, Eddie Dr CHAN, Wai Chung, Virginia 

Dr CHAN, Wai Hung, George Dr CHAN, Wan Yee, Winnie Dr CHAN, Yiu Wing 

Dr CHAN, Yuen Ching Dr CHAN, Yuen Kwan, Mario Dr CHAN, Yuen Ling 

Dr CHAN, Yuen Sang Dr CHAN, Yuk Kwong, Stephen Dr CHANG PIVE, Sok Cheng 

Dr CHANG, Hoi Yi Dr CHANG, Hsu Wei Dr CHANG, King Chuen 

Dr CHANG, Ting Ting Dr CHAO, Vai Kiong, David Dr CHAU, Chee On 

Dr CHAU, Chuen Dr CHAU, Kei Wai Dr CHAU, Yiu Shing 

Dr CHEN, Cong Xiao Dr CHEN, Li Dr CHEN, Tien Chiang 

Dr CHEN, Tsz Ting Dr CHEN, Yun Ju Dr CHENG, Chung Liang 

Dr CHENG, Chung Tat, Jacky Dr CHENG, Ka Yan, Catherine Dr CHENG, Kam Wing 

Dr CHENG, Kin Keung, William Dr CHENG, Siu Han Dr CHENG, Tin Sik 

Dr CHEONG, Shao Nean Dr CHEUK, Kwok Leung Dr CHEUK, Wai Yin, Ivy 

Dr CHEUK, Yau Lin Dr CHEUNG, Cheuk Hee Dr CHEUNG, Chik Wan 

Dr CHEUNG, Kwok Wai Alvin Dr CHEUNG, San Dr CHEUNG, Tsz Ki 

Dr CHEUNG, Wai Ming, Fanny Dr CHEUNG, Wing Fat, Julian Dr CHEUNG, Yu Fung 

Dr CHEUNG, Yuen Yan Dr CHEUNG, Yuet Ying, Christina Dr CHIANG, Chay Kung 

Dr CHIENG, Buong Sieng Dr CHIU, Kun Ming Dr CHIU, Sung Kwan 

Dr CHIU, Yuen Man Dr CHO, Hing Sang, Kenneth Dr CHO, Tze Yan 

Dr CHOI, Bo Yue Olivia Dr CHOI, Lap Him Dr CHOI, Man Kit 

Dr CHOI, Siu Chuen Dr CHOI, Sze Wai Michelle Dr CHOI, Wai Hung 

Dr CHONG, Kok Hung Dr CHONG, Nga Yee Dr CHONG, Yu Hoi 

Dr CHOW, Hoi Kei, Jessica Dr CHOW, Tsz Wang Dr CHOW, Tung Fai 

Dr CHOW, Wai Hung, Willie Dr CHOY, Yuk Lun, Frederick Dr CHU, Henson 

Dr CHU, Kee Leong Dr CHU, Lun Piu, Ronald Dr CHU, Man Yee, Candy 

Dr CHU, Pui Yan Dr CHUA, Tec Sang, Susannah Dr CHUANG, Chi Kit 

Dr CHUK, Man Ting, Karen Dr CHUK, Pui Chun Dr CHUNG, Chak Hang Jonathan 

Dr CHUNG, Hiu Yeung Dr DIANTO, Jeffrey Dr FAN, Siu Wai 

Dr FAN, Vei Chen Dr FAN, Yuen Shan Patricia Dr FONG, Kin Lee, Garry 

Dr FONG, Pak Yiu Dr FONG, Ting Kwok Dr FONG, Yuk Fai, Ben 

Dr FOSTER, Jonathan Charles Dr FU, Cho Shun, Samuel Dr FU, Wing Kai 

Dr FUNG, Andrew Yat Wang Dr FUNG, Ka Hang, Timothy Dr FUNG, Tat Biu, Albert 

Dr FUNG, Yiu Tong, Bennet Dr GOH, Winston Louis Dr HARIMAN, Affandy 

Dr HEATH, Robert Barrie Dr HO, Chi Sun, Jason Dr HO, Chun Kei 

Dr HO, Chun Lam Dr HO, Hon Ming Dr HO, Ka Ki 

Dr HO, Kin Chung Dr HO, Suet Ying Dr HO, Sze Ho 

Dr HO, Ying Ho Dr HO, Yiu Keung, Steven Dr HONG, Ka Yi 

Dr HONG, Sze Nga Dr HOU, Baijing Dr HUI, Alice Sau Wei 

Dr HUI, Ling Dr HUI, Min Yee Linda Dr HUI, Suk Yin, Mandy 

Dr HUI, Yuk Ting Candy Dr HUN, Pek I Dr HUNG, Cheung Fat, Horatio 

Dr IP, Kai Wah Dr JIAO, Fangfang Dr JOR, Hon Man 

Dr KAM, Cheuk Wai Dr KAN, Kwong Tin Dr KARK, Man Fong 

Dr KELLY, Sara Jane Dr KENNELLY, Sophia Kwan Mei Dr KEUNG, Man Fung 

Dr KO, Chun Hung Dr KO, Pak Long Dr KONG, Ka Ming Andrew 

Dr KONG, On Tai Dr KOO, Chung Wai Dr KOO, Hok Tin, Hilton 

Dr KORNG, Kokan Allan Dr KU, Chi Sing, Hilary Dr KU, Hau 

Dr KUNG, Garry Dr KUO, Pih Ngo, Peggy Dr KWAN, Sze Sing 

Dr KWAN, Tsz Yan Dr KWAN, Wing Kai, William Dr KWAN, Yih Chuen, Eugene 

Dr KWOK, Ka Cheong Dr KWOK, Kwok Lung, Kevin Dr KWOK, Man Wah 

Dr KWOK, Ming Fai, David Dr KWOK, Wai Lun Dr KWOK, Yip Tung Tony 

Dr KWOK, Yu Nien, Colin Dr KWONG, Ho Tak Dr KWONG, Kam Tim William 

Dr KWONG, Kin Hung Dr KWONG, Ngar Ming, Henry Dr KWONG, Siu Kee 

Dr LAI, Chiu Fai Dr LAI, Ge Woon, Gevon Dr LAI, Ho Yeung, Kelvin 

Dr LAI, Hoi Lin Dr LAI, Ka Ho Dr LAI, Pong Shing, Eric 

Dr LAM, Chi Hang Dr LAM, Chi Yui Dr LAM, Ching Man 

Dr LAM, Ching Man, Caroline Dr LAM, Chiu Ki, Alexander Dr LAM, Chun Keung, Peter 
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Dr LAM, Chun Man, John Dr LAM, Ka Wai Dr LAM, Kang 

Dr LAM, Kar Wai, Phoebe Dr LAM, Lap Dr LAM, See Yui 

Dr LAM, Wai Kwong Dr LAM, Wai Yiu Dr LAM, Wing Ching, Nicole 

Dr LAM, Yik Tsz Dr LAM, Yuen Dr LAU, Chi Keung, Michael 

Dr LAU, Ka Fai, Tony Dr LAU, Ka Man, Angela Dr LAU, Kim Sing 

Dr LAU, Kin Wai Dr LAU, Sai Lai Dr LAU, Sin Mei 

Dr LAU, Valerie Wing Yee Dr LAU, Wing See Dr LAW, Kwok King 

Dr LAW, Man Fong Dr LAW, Wai Man Dr LEE, Big Kau, Judy 

Dr LEE, Choi Fung Dr LEE, Chun Kit, Tony Dr LEE, Chung Yan 

Dr LEE, Fook Kay Dr LEE, Jerrold Dr LEE, Kam Ha 

Dr LEE, See Mei Dr LEE, Shek Kwong Dr LEE, Sing Chark, Jack 

Dr LEE, Tsz Ching Dr LEI, Sao Kuan Dr LEUNG, Cheuk Yiu 

Dr LEUNG, Chi Fai Dr LEUNG, Ching Dr LEUNG, Fung Ming, Angela 

Dr LEUNG, Fung Sun, Peter Dr LEUNG, Hilching Eunice Dr LEUNG, Ka Cheong 

Dr LEUNG, Kwan Wai, Amas Dr LEUNG, Mei Tak Dr LEUNG, Nai Yip, Paul 

Dr LEUNG, Nim No, Deborah Dr LEUNG, Shuk Yun Dr LEUNG, Sze King 

Dr LEUNG, Wai Kay Dr LEUNG, Wai Lun Dr LEUNG, Wai Yan Viola 

Dr LEUNG, Wing Hing, William Dr LEUNG, Wing Hong Dr LI, Chi Yin 

Dr LI, Janice Chun Ying Dr LI, Kwok Ho Dr LI, Minru 

Dr LI, Ping Wai Dr LI, Shi Yue Dr LI, Shun Hoi 

Dr LI, Wai Ling Dr LI, Wing Chi Dr LI, Wing Hei, Sunny 

Dr LIANG, Jun Dr LIE, Kin Fung Dr LIE, Siu Fen 

Dr LIM, Foon Lian Dr LIM, Paik Chok, Rose Dr LIN, Su Chuen Janice 

Dr LIU, Hin Yeung Dr LIU, Hung Wai Dr LIU, Ka Yee 

Dr LIU, Kwei Hing Dr LIU, Wing Yee Dr LIU, Yuk Ping, Louisa 

Dr LO (WONG), Wan Ching, Wendy Dr LO, Chak Yui Dr LO, Cheuk Wai 

Dr LO, Chun Fat Dr LO, Hui Ying, Edmund Dr LO, King Yan, Cathy 

Dr LO, Pik Har Dr LO, Ping Wo Dr LO, See See 

Dr LO, Shuk Kam Dr LO, Wan Shun, Kara Dr LO, Wei 

Dr LO, Yuen Man Dr LOCKE, Michael Ka Yung Dr LOO, Anne 

Dr LOO, Wai Ho Dr LOY, Tien En, Grace Dr LUI, Rupert Yau Han 

Dr LUI, Tsz Yin Dr LUK, Sze Wan Candy Dr LUK, Wai Yin 

Dr LUK, Wing Kun Leona Dr LUKE, King Kai, Kenneth Dr MA, Man Ki 

Dr MA, Mya Khin Dr MA, Ping Kwan, Danny Dr MA, Yuen Ying 

Dr MAK, Chin Sing, Dennis Dr MAK, Ho Yin Dr MAK, Kwan Wo 

Dr MAK, Shen Rong, Sharon Dr MAK, Tak Wah, Philip Dr MAK, Wing Kin 

Dr MCBRIDE, Andrea Evelyn Dr MING, Shiu Kow Dr MO, Chun Hung, Eric 

Dr MOK, Kwan Yeung Dr MOY, Man Cho Dr NG, Carrie Chi Wing 

Dr NG, Hee Liang Dr NG, Hok Wai Dr NG, Ka Wing 

Dr NG, Kai Man Dr NG, Kit Leung Dr NG, Man Hon, George 

Dr NG, On Li Dr NG, Pui Yee, Beatrice Dr NG, Shak Hong 

Dr NG, Tin Chue, Helmut Dr NG, Yue Chun John Dr NGAI, Bernard 

Dr NGAI, Man Chiu Dr NGAN, Yuen Fat Dr NOH, Young Ah 

Dr O'TREMBA, Francis Martin Dr OWENS, David Edward Dr PANG, Kwan 

Dr PANG, Kwong Kee Dr PANG, Sze Ching Esther Dr PEI, Yuk Man, Debra 

Dr PONG, Che Og, Andrew Dr PONG, Fei Fung Dr POON, Ka Yin 

Dr POON, Lai Ping Dr POON, Man Kay Dr POON, Min Kan Ivy 

Dr POON, Wai Cho Dr SAU, Chung Ying Dr SCHRADER, Hans Franciscus Jozef 

Dr SHAM, Shiu Kow Dr SHEK, Kai Cheung Dr SHEN, Yu Chun 

Dr SHEN, Yu Wei Dr SHENG, Wei Yang Dr SHIK, Cheng Fong 

Dr SHING, Yuk Ping, Agnes Dr SIU, Ping Cheong Dr SIU, Wing Yee 

Dr SO, Chi Kin Dr SO, Hei Ming Dr SO, Kwok Ho, Kevin 

Dr SO, Yung Pak Dr SUN, Xiao Ling Dr SUNG, Cheuk Chung 

Dr SYED, Alan Dr SZETO, Chui Ying Dr TAI, Hing Kuen 

Dr TAI, Lik Dr TAI, Lok Yin, Nadia Dr TAM, Chi Wai 

Dr TAM, Chun Ho Dr TAM, Kwok Wai, Sunny Dr TAM, Long Yee 

Dr TAM, Wing Pik, Eliza Dr TAM, Yiu Pun Dr TAN, Shu Kwan 

Dr TANG, Anthony Hing Yung Dr TANG, Kuen Yan, Alfred Dr TANG, Shao Fen, Joyce 

Dr TANG, Siu Man, Simon Dr TANG, Tin Yuk, Adrian Dr TAY, Wee Kok, Jordan 

Dr TIK, Tsz Ling Nicola Dr TO, King Dr TOA, Wai Lung 

Dr TONG, Man Chiu Dr TONG, Wai Keung Dr TONG, Wing Sze 

Dr TONG, Yuet Han Dr TRODD, Timothy David Patrick Dr TSAI, Hung Yu 

Dr TSANG, Chiu Yee, Luke Dr TSANG, Chun Au Dr TSANG, Hoi Ham 
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Dr TSANG, Kam Wah Dr TSANG, Lai Ting Dr TSANG, Sharon 

Dr TSANG, Tsz Lok, Charlotte Dr TSANG, Woo Kay Dr TSANG, Yat Fai 

Dr TSANG, Yee Wing Dr TSAO, Goh Mei Ling, Marion Dr TSE, Boon Keung 

Dr TSO, Sau Lin Dr TSOI, Wing Yin, Winnie Dr TUET, On Sang 

Dr TUNG, Po Yin Dr WANG, Amy Yang Dr WEN, Yongna, Wendy 

Dr WONG, Alan Yan Ho Dr WONG, Calvin Alexander Dr WONG, Che Hing 

Dr WONG, Chi Ho, Hubert Dr WONG, Chi Wai, William Dr WONG, Ching Chuen 

Dr WONG, Ching Keung Dr WONG, Chiu Lun Dr WONG, Chun Bun, Gordon 

Dr WONG, Chun Hun, Jonathan Dr WONG, Chun Kit, Arthur Dr WONG, Chung Ming 

Dr WONG, Hau Ching, Kelly Dr WONG, Hiu Yeung Dr WONG, Hor Yung 

Dr WONG, Hung Tat Dr WONG, Ka Kin Dr WONG, Ka Yan, Catherine 

Dr WONG, Kar Shing Dr WONG, Kwok Ho, Joseph Dr WONG, Kyaw Lwin, Simeon @ 
Huang Hsin Yang 

Dr WONG, Kyin Lin, Peter Dr WONG, Lai Koon, Magdalene Dr WONG, Ling Ling 

Dr WONG, Man Ho Dr WONG, Ming Shun Dr WONG, Ping San, John 

Dr WONG, Sau Kuen Dr WONG, Sau Yee Dr WONG, Sze Man 

Dr WONG, Tai Wai, David Dr WONG, To Chuen Dr WONG, Wai Man 

Dr WONG, Wai Pang Dr WONG, Wing Fung Dr WONG, Wing Ning, Rosanna 

Dr WONG, Wing Sang, Bernard Dr WONG, Yan Biu Dr WONG, Yu Man 

Dr WONG, Yuk Sen, Anna Dr WOO, Long Yiu Dr WOO, Wing Hung 

Dr WU, Flora Dr WU, Hanji Edward Thomas Dr WU, Ming Wai, Thomas 

Dr WU, Xiao Chun Dr WU, Xiao Qing Dr XIANG, Yuling 

Dr XU, Song Ci, Alice Dr YAM, Chun Yin Dr YANG, Jung Mai 

Dr YAP, Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee Dr YAP, Pek Gan Dr YAU, Chi Yan 

Dr YAU, Chiu Ming Dr YAU, Kwok Ho Dr YAU, Wai Keung 

Dr YAU, Yung Sang Dr YEUNG, Lok Ki Dr YIP, Pui Leung 

Dr YIP, Yuk Pang, Kenneth Dr YIU, Man Lok, Genevieve Dr YU, Chung Kwan Cellina 

Dr YU, Kwun Nam Dr YU, Louise Anne Sum Wun Dr YU, Wai Cho, Michael 

Dr YU, Wai Hong Dr YU, Wai Ming, James Dr YU, Wai Nam 

Dr YU, Xiaoxia Dr YU, Yee Cheung, John Dr YU, Yi Fung 

Dr YUE, Wing Shun Dr YUEN, Ching Yan Dr YUEN, Ching Yi 

Dr YUEN, Ka Wai Dr YUEN, Man Ki Dr YUEN, Sek Cheung 

Dr YUNG (YEE), Sui Yin, Ruth Dr YUNG, Caroline Man San Dr YUNG, Leung Tung Daniel 

Dr ZHANG, Dingzuan Dr ZHAO, HaiFeng Dr ZHOU, Niman 

Dr ZHU, Yin Prof LAM, Lo Kuen, Cindy Prof LAM, Tai Pong 

Prof WONG, Yeung Shan, Samuel   

 

 

 

 

 

RESEARCH COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

 

Chairman:  Prof Samuel Y S WONG 

 

Honorary Advisors: Prof Cindy L K LAM   Prof Doris YOUNG 

 

Committee Members: Dr Catherine X R CHEN  Prof Martin C S WONG 

   Dr CHIANG Lap Kin   Dr Esther Y T YU 

Dr LEUNG Lok Hang   Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

(from January 2020 onwards)       (to December 2019) 

Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun  Dr CHIN Weng Yee 

(from September 2019 onwards)     (to December 2019) 

Dr LIANG Jun   Dr Antonio A T CHUH (to December 2019) 

Dr Lorna V NG     

       

Ex-officio:  Dr David V K CHAO  (President) 

Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

   Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

   Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

   Dr Billy C F CHIU  (Honorary Treasurer) 
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Staff:    Ms Crystal W Y YUNG  (Administrative Manager) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI   (Administrative Executive) 

 
 

Five submissions had been received for the Best Research Award 2019 and the selection panel consisted of two assessors. The 

winning paper was “Relative importance, healthy life-year lost and population attributable risk of modifiable risk factors on 

cardiovascular disease in a 10-year Diabetes Cohort” by Dr Eric Y F WAN. 

 

The 2020 HKCFP Research Fellowship had received two applications this year. The selection panel which consisted of two assessors 

had selected the winner to be Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN. His research project was “Prevalence and Associated Risk Factors of Resistant 

Hypertension among Chinese hypertensive patients managed in primary care settings in Hong Kong”. 

 

The Committee has established two new funding awards over the last seven years: Trainees Research Fund, to encourage trainees 

to attempt research segment of the Exit Examination, and Research Seed Fund, to provide the opportunity for other interested parties 

to develop fitting proposals and ideas. Successful applicants from the awards can fully implement and test their research strategies 

in the public, which ultimately contribute to the primary care sector.  

 

A survey on “How are family doctors serving the Hong Kong community during the COVID-19 outbreak? A survey of HKCFP members” 

was conducted in March 2020 to provide information on needs and role of family doctors in the initial phase of the COVID-19 pandemic 

and was published in the June, 2020 issue of the Hong Kong Medical Journal. 

 

Finally, I wish to thank all who have provided assistance to the Research Committee and look forward to closer collaborations in the 

future. 

 

 

 

 

 

WEB AND COMPUTER COMMITTEE 

(April 2019 to March 2020) 

 

Chairman:      Dr Matthew M H LUK 

 

Members:       Dr Stephen K C CHEUNG  Dr Peter K T WAN 

Dr CHOW Kai Lim  Dr David K K WONG 

Dr Howard H T KWONG  

 

Ex-officio:       Dr David V K CHAO (President) 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

        Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

        Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

 

Staff:        Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

Mr John P C MA  (Administrative Executive) 

 

 
In the year 2019-20, we are delighted to serve our College members.  

 

Computer software and hardware are being updated and renewed to tackle the increasing demand. Thanks to our secretarial support 

and input from the Committee, the registration system for educational activities, members MCQs and Clinical Quizzes function in our 

college website are maintained smoothly. The Web and Computer Committee is also responsible to manage our College Facebook, 

which provides a platform for sharing timely information to our College members, our community friends and the public. Paypal 

payment has also been launched to facilitate transactions of Membership Subscription Fee and registration fee of HKAMC / HKPCC 

Conference 2019. In addition, our Committee has provided advices and testing of video conferencing software for College’s online 

CME Lectures. Furthermore, our Committee has given technical support in the QA special remedial programme.  

 

We welcome all suggestions from our College members. The web and computer daily operations are being monitored by our 

secretarial staff, and we are thankful for their dedicated work. 
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I would like to once again express my appreciations to the members of the Web and Computer Committee for their support in the 

past year.  We look forward to serving our College in the coming year. 

 

 

Google Search Console at www.hkcfp.org.hk  from 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020 - No of visitors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Top 10 pages visited: 

Ranking Page Number of Clicks 

1 家庭醫學手冊 之二《家庭醫生》: 高血壓的治療黃金期 

https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book2/chapter_1_14.html 

8578 

2 家庭醫學手冊 之二《家庭醫生》: 隱形殺手—膽固醇 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book2/chapter_1_12.html 

7035 

3 首頁 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/ 

6682 

4 家庭醫學手冊 之二《家庭醫生》: 子宮頸 - ASCUS 和 CIN 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book2/chapter_1_10.html 

6612 

5 家庭醫學手冊 之三《一家人的好朋友》: 揪出心口痛元兇 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book3/chapter_1_14.html 

5666 

6 家庭醫學手冊 之一《伴我同行》: 抗生素 應用則用 可免則免 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book1/chapter_1_4.html 

5204 

7 Exit Exam: Veracrypt Userguide 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Documents/EXIT/VeraCryptUserguide.pdf 

3092 

8 Hong Kong Practitioner Dec 2016 Issue: ‘A review on the role of Culicoides biting midges 

in public health for the family physician’ 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/HK_Practitioner/2016/hkp2016vol38dec/update_article_2.html 

2904 

9 家庭醫學手冊 之二《家庭醫生》: 健康焦慮 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book2/chapter_4_4.html 

1856 

10 家庭醫學手冊 之二《家庭醫生》: CEA的夢魘 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/Upload/Familydoctorsbooks/book2/chapter_3_3.html 

1854 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/
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YOUNG DOCTORS COMMITTEE 
(April 2019 to March 2020) 

  

 

CO-CHAIRMEN’S MESSAGE: 

 

The HKCFP Young Doctors Committee was formed by our College in May 2017. We aim to engage our young doctors joining the 

College activities and nurture young leaders. We would connect the medical students, medical interns and young members of our 

College to enhance our communication with each other. We also promote our younger leaders to represent our College in the 

participation of local, national and international meetings. The composition of our membership were enthusiastic young doctors 

came from public and private sectors in order to keep up the momentum. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Co-Chairmen: Dr CHAN Chi Wai        (Representative, 吳階平醫學基金會家庭醫學部青年委員會)   

 Dr TSE Sut Yee  

(from January 2020 onwards) 
(Representative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter from July 
2019 onwards) 
(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement to 
December 2019) 

 

 Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

(to December 2019) 
(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement) 
(Representative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter to June 
2019) 

 
 
Dr CHAN Chi Wai 

Committee 

Members: 
Dr CHAN Lam  

(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement from 
December 2019 onwards) 

 

 Dr CHAN So Wai   

 Dr Cherlyle Y C CHAN   

 Dr Stella Y Y CHAN  

 Dr Mira L CHEN (from June 2019 onwards)  

 Dr Christina CHEUK  

 Dr Thomas M C DAO (Representative, 全國全科醫學青年專家聯盟)  

 Dr Victor S W IP   

 Dr LAU Ka Man   

 Dr Will L H LEUNG  Dr TSE Sut Yee 

 Dr Leon M NGAI                                                                      

 Dr Annie K Y OR   

 Dr Joyce L P POON   

 Dr Emily T Y TSE  

 Dr Aldo C L WONG   

 Dr CHAN Ka Ho (to December 2019)  

 Dr Eugenia L C LAM (to December 2019)  

    

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President)  

 Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)  

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education and Examinations) Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

 Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretariat)  

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer)  

    

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)  

 Ms Kathy K Y LAI (Administrative Executive)  
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ACTIVITIES: 

Date Event YDC Representatives 

13 June 2019 

HKCFP 2nd Family Medicine Career Talk 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Lam 

Dr CHAN So Wai 

Dr CHAN Yuen Ching 

Dr Christina CHEUK 

Dr Thomas M C DAO 

Dr Victor S W IP 

Dr Leon M NGAI 

Dr Emily T Y TSE 

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

1 July 2019 – 30 
June 2020 

HKCFP Mentorship Programme for the third year Basic Trainee (2019 – 
2020) 
 

List of Mentors: 

Dr Simon C L AU 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Lam 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr Simon S M CHOW 

Dr John T N CHUNG 

Dr Andrew K K IP 

Dr Lam Sun Ching 

Dr Edmund W W LAM 

Dr Aster W Y LAU 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr Carl T K WONG 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

1 January 2020 

YDC 2nd Hiking activity - Tung O Ancient Trail (「東澳古道」行) 

 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai  

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN  

Dr Christina CHEUK 

Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr Cherlyle Y C CHAN 

Dr Angel F M LEUNG 

Dr CHEUNG Yan Kit 

Dr Judy B K LEE 

Dr Amy WANG 

Dr Joyce L P POON 
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Other activities: 

Date Event YDC Representatives 

14 September 2019 

FM2 (醫家樂隊) at HKAM Fellows’ Get-Together  

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

Dr Chloe L CHAN 

Dr P A FOK 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Dr CHANG Wells 

12 October 2019 – 

13 October 2019 
Chinese Young GP Alliance Meeting (Beijing) Dr Thomas M C DAO 
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HONORARY TREASURER 
(April 2019 to March 2020) 
 

Honorary Treasurer:  Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Staff:      Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive) 

  

          

The financial situation of our College remains stable for the year 2019-2020. 

With a current reserve valued in excess of HK$18 million, thanks to the 

conservative investment strategy of the Finance Committee. The great majority of our funds are in the form 

of cash savings in the Bank of East Asia, HSBC and Wing Hang Bank. 

Our College is operated under four companies, as detailed in the Auditor’s report. 

In this financial year, our main income sources were from, in descending order, the Membership Committee, 

Board of Conjoint Examination, Board of Diploma in Family Medicine (DFM), Specialty Board and Board of 

Vocational Training and Standards. When compared with 2018-2019, the Membership Committee, 

membership subscriptions obtained an income of HK$1.44 million (9% increase). The Board of Conjoint 

Examination obtained a surplus of HK$1.08 million (5% increase). The Board of DFM obtained a surplus of 

HK$932K (6% increase). The Specialty Board obtained a surplus of HK$656K (3% decrease). The Board 

of Vocational Training and Standards obtained a surplus of HK$497K (2% increase). All these Boards were 

have increment in last year. 

On the side of expenditure, our single most significant spending is still in staff salaries and allowances, 

which amounted to HK$4 million. The total cumulative expenses is still under control and had decreased 

by 0.2%. 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL  

The Council has pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the College are provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine. 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the College for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 6 to the financial statements. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

The council members during the year were: 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (President) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-president) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia  (Vice-president) 

Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon-Secretary)  

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy (Hon-Treasurer) 

Dr. Au Chi Lap 

Dr. Chan Chi Wai 

Dr. Chan Chung Yuk 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. Chan King Hong 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus  

Dr. Ho Ka Ming 

Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric  

Dr. Ko Wai Kit  

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria  

Dr. Li Yim Chu  

Dr. Liang Jun  (Resigned on 8 December 2019) 

Dr. Luk Man Hei, Mathew  

Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr. Wong Mong Sze (Appointed on 8 December 2019) 

Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel  

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan  

Dr. Yu Yee Tak, Esther (Appointed on 8 December 2019) 

 

In accordance with Article 47 of the College's Articles of Association, the President, Vice-President, Hon. Secretary and Hon. Treasurer 

and not exceeding one-third of the other members, shall retire from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election. 

INTERESTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Saved as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, no other contracts of significance to which the College was a party and in which 

a council member had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the College a party to any arrangements to enable the council members of the College to acquire benefits 

by means of acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the College or any other body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the College were entered into or existed during the year. 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs W. M. Moo who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
 
On behalf of the board 
 
 
 
 
Chairman 

HONG KONG, 30 October 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (“the Company”) set out on pages 5 to 13, which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and of its 

financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in 

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I 

am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have 

fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

The Council of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information included in the 

Council’s report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Council and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs 

issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council determine is necessary 

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Council are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council either 

intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. I also: 

 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
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perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by the Council. 

 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  

My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
W. M. Moo 
Certified Public Accountant 
 
Hong Kong, 30 October 2020
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 
   2019 
 
 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Membership subscription fees   1,376,779 1,267,423 

Entrance fees from members  61,600 53,290 

Bank interest income  1,141 471 

Other income                                                                                   8,150                    6,701 

 

 3(d)            1,447,670             1,327,885 

  ------------- ------------- 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  8,500 8,500 
Bank charges   8,172 2,768 
Building management fee  186,984 174,944 
Business registration fee  250 2,250 
Depreciation  7,931 7,930 
Legal and professional fee  87,000 100,705 
Management fee  1,200,000 1,200,000 
Meeting allowance                                                     -  325 
Sundry expenses                                                                                 24,176                   12,602 
 
  1,523,013 1,510,024 

  ------------ ------------  

 
Deficit before taxation   (75,343) (182,139) 
 
Taxation     4                 (4,436)                  (4,565)  
 
Net deficit for the year  (79,779) (186,704) 
     ===== ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 

   2019 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 6 29,077 37,008 

 

Current assets 

Accounts receivable  141,381 153,123 

Other receivable  41,467                       - 

Amount due from related companies 7 160,403 145,726 

Cash at bank   2,128,995 1,896,209 

  2,472,246 2,195,058 

  -------------- -------------- 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  38,500 20,500 

Deposit received  36,500 36,500 

Amount due to related companies 8 2,079,828 1,753,228 

  2,154,828 1,810,228 

  ------------ ------------ 

 
 

Net current assets   317,418 384,830 

  ______ _______ 

 

Total assets less current liabilities  346,495 421,838 

   

Non-current liabilities  

Deferred tax 9 695,390 690,954 
 

  (348,895) (269,116) 
   ======     ====== 
 

FUNDS                                                                                                                                            

 

Premises fund   785,274 785,274 

 

General fund  (1,134,169) (1,054,390) 

 

  (348,895) (269,116) 

   ======= ====== 
 
 
 
 
 
                             

_____________________                   ____________________ 
Chairman                                            Hon Treasurer 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 
 

  2019 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 

Premises Fund 
 
At 1 April and 31 March  785,274 785,274 
 ----------- ----------- 
 
General Fund 
 
At 1 April (1,054,390) (867,686) 

 
Net deficit for the year                                                               (79,779) (186,704) 

 
At 31 March  (1,134,169) (1,054,390) 
 ------------ ------------- 

 
Total equity 

 
At 1 April  (269,116) (82,412) 

                                                                                               ======              =====        
 

At 31 March  (348,895) (269,116) 
                                                                                       ======              ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

  2019 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year  (75,343) (182,139) 

Adjustments for: 

Bank interest received  (1,141) (471) 

Depreciation                7,931           7,930 
 

 

Operating results before working capital changes  (68,553) (174,680) 

Decrease in accounts receivable   11,742 86,177 

Increase in other receivable  (41,467) - 

Increase/(Decrease) in accruals  18,000                   (6,000) 

 

Cash used in operations  (80,278) (94,503) 

Bank interest received   1,141  471 

 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (79,137) (94,032) 

 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from related companies  311,923 197,187 

 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 232,786 103,155 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL  1,896,209 1,793,054 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 2,128,995 1,896,209 

   ======= ======= 

 



 

103 

 

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

1 LEGAL STATUS 

The College is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its members, in the 

event of its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for payment of the 

debts and liabilities of the College contracted before he ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and expenses of 

winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an amount not 

exceeding HK$10. 

 

 

2 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company are provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine.  

 

 

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment, except investment properties, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as 

repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it is 

incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future 

economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of 

the asset. 

 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method at the following rate to write off the costs of the assets over their 

estimated useful lives. 

 

 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% p.a. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

 At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of 

related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, the 

carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 

or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c) Related party 

 For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  
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(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Group and the Company if that person:  
 

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group and the Company or of a parent of the Group and 
the Company;  

 
(ii) has control over the Group and the Company; or  
 
(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.  

 
(2) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:  

 
(i) the entity and the Group and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  
 

(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the other entity 
is a member).  

 
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  

 
(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  

 
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group and the Company or 

an entity related to the Group and the Company. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the plan.  

 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  

 
(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

 Entrance fee from members are recognised in the financial year of receipt. 

 
 Annual subscriptions fee is recognised on a time proportion basis. 
 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
rate of interest applicable. 
 

 (e) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets and 

liabilities in foreign currencies at the period end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial 

position date.  All exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
(f) Income tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 

temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when the 

carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable profit 

(tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible temporary 

differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 

temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which it 

expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
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4 TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements because there is no estimated assessable 

profits for the year.  (2019:Nil) 

 

    2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 The taxation charge is made up as follows: 

 

 Deferred tax 

 Charge to statement of comprehensive income during the year  4,436 4,565 

  ==== ===== 

 

The taxation on the company’s deficit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation 

rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 

 

 Deficit before taxation (75,343) (182,139) 

   ===== ====== 

 

 Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019:16.5%) (12,432) (30,053) 

 Tax effect of non-deductible expense 5,745 5,873 

 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (4,436) (4,564) 

 Additions to unrecognized tax losses 15,559 33,309 

 Taxation charge 4,436 4,565 

   ==== ==== 

 

5 COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Council members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the College during the year.  

(2019:Nil) 

 

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

   Furniture 

  College fixtures & 

  premises equipment Total 

 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 Cost 

 At 1.4.2019 and 31.3.2020 500,000 3,826,359 4,326,359 

  ----------- ------------- ------------- 

 Accumulated depreciation 

 At 1.4.2019 500,000 3,789,351 4,289,351 

 Charge for the year                                                           -                             7,931                     7,931 

 At 31.3.2020 500,000 3,797,282 4,297,282 

  ----------- ------------- ------------- 

 Net book value 

 At 31.3.2020                                                                       -  29,077 29,077 

  ===== ===== ===== 

 At 31.3.2019                                                                       -  37,008 37,008 

  ===== ===== ===== 

 

The College premises is held in Hong Kong under a medium term lease from the Federation of Medical Societies of Hong 

Kong. 
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7 AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 

                                                                                             Amount outstanding                     Maximum amount outstanding 

  At 31.3.2019 At 31.3.2020 during the year 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 HKCFP Holdings And 

 Development Limited 92,079 45,898 92,079 

HKCFP Education Limited 53,647 114,505 114,505 

  145,726 160,403  
  ====== ======  

 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 
 

8 AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

 

9 DEFERRED TAX  

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 

16.5% (2019:16.5%). 

 

 The movement on the deferred tax liabilities account is as follows: 

   2019 

  

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 At 1 April 690,954 686,389 

 

 Charge to statement of comprehensive income during the year                      4,436                            4,565 

 
 At 31 March 695,390 690,954 

  ======   ====== 

 

At 31 March 2020, the company has unused tax losses of HK$1,698,074 (2019:HK$1,603,776) available for offset against 

future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognized due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.  The losses 

may be carried forward indefinitely. 

 

 

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s length 

basis, are summarised as follows: 

   2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Management fee paid 1,200,000 1,200,000 

  ======= ======= 

 

 

11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the Council on 30 October 2020. 
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  File No. 22/05368560 
 

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2019/2020 

 
  HK$ 
  
Loss per accounts 75,343 
 
Less: Depreciation  7,931 
 
  67,412 
 
Add: Depreciation allowance 3,099 

 Commercial building allowance  23,787 

 
Adjusted loss 94,298 
  ===== 
 
Statement of loss 
 
Balance b/f 1,603,776 
 
Add: Loss for the year  94,298 
 
Balance c/f 1,698,074 
  ======== 
 
Depreciation allowance 
 
    Total 

 10% pool 20% pool 30% pool allowance 

 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 
W.D.V. b/f 81 15,331 84 
 
A.A.  8  3,066  25 3,099 
       ==== 
W.D.V. c/f 73 12,265 59 
 == ===== ==  
  
 
 
 
 
 

  File No. 22/05368560 
Sch. 1 

 
Commercial building allowance 
 
   HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction b/f and c/f 594,675 
  ====== 
    
Residue value b/f 123,266 
 
A.A. (4%)  23,787 
 
Residue value c/f 99,479 
  ===== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 
30 October 2020 
 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other Council members and officials 

of the College, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the College’s financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2020 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the College and of the results and cash flows of the College for the year.  In preparing these financial 

statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions 

undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other relevant records and 

related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the Council members received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the 

Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

 
 

For and on behalf  

of the Council 

 

 

 
                        
______________________                   ______________________ 
Chairman                                                Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2020. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is 

Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman)    

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon. Treasurer) 

Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon. Secretary)  

 

In accordance with Articles 38 and 39 of the company's Articles of Association, Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David shall retire 

from the Board and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

Saved as disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the company was a party 

and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any 

time during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company to 

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the company or any other body 

corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed 

during the year. 

 

AUDITOR 

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs W. M. Moo Certified Public 

Accountant, as auditor of the Company. 

 

 

On behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 30 October 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Qualified Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Education Limited (“the Company”) set out on pages 5 to 12, which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows 

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report, the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and of its financial 

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards for Private 

Entities (“HKFRS for PE”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly 

prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As explained in note 6 to the financial statements, the company has not prepared consolidated statements of the Group because 

the directors consider that it would involve expenses and delay out of proportion to the value to the members. Under Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards, group accounts should have been prepared. If is not practicable to quantify the effects of the 

departure from this requirement. 

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the 

Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information included 

in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  I have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 

HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors 

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

  

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 

directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material 
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the directors. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 

attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 30 October 2020 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

   2020 

    

   HK$ HK$ 

 

Surplus on Board of Conjoint Examination  1,087,652 1,031,948 

Surplus on Board of Vocational Training   497,118 488,077 

Surplus on Specialty Board   656,836 635,029 

Surplus on Editorial Board  38,484 -  

Management fee income  3,100,000  3,100,000 

Sundry income  86,972 900 

Bank interest income   945  368 

 

  5,468,007 5,256,322  

  ------------ ------------  

 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  8,500 8,500 

Bank charges and interest  2,020 595 

Business registration fee  250 2,250 

Cleaning expenses  4,649 5,029 

Committee expenses  930,603 1,648,594 

Deficit on Editorial Board  - 6,354 

Deficit on Board of Education  721,755 658,579 

Insurance  81,627 75,083 

Legal and professional fees  27,300 19,435 

Loss on exchange difference  2,788 5,579 

Newspapers  3,550 3,080 

Postage  3,111 2,747 

Printing and stationery  95,121 89,647 

Provident fund contribution  245,271 222,551 

Repairs and maintenance  5,834 954 

Salaries and allowances  4,039,610 4,097,190 

Sundry expenses  35,089 19,525 

Telephone and fax  51,699 50,780 

Travelling expenses                                                                               19,071                    5,481 

  

  6,277,848 6,921,953  

  ------------- -------------  

 

Deficit for the year  (809,841) (1,665,631) 

    ======     =======
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 
    

   2019 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Interest in a subsidiary 6 3,942,990 3,176,825 

 

Current assets 

Deposits paid and prepayments  16,223 43,798  

Account receivable                                                    44,440 91,724                

Cash at bank and in hand  903,946 697,579 

 

  964,609 833,101  

  ----------- -----------  

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  58,670 73,920  

Receipt in advance                                                  474,300 375,650 

Amount due to related companies 7 21,333,896 19,709,782  

 

  21,866,866 20,159,352  

  -------------- --------------  

 

Net current liabilities  (20,902,257) (19,326,251) 

  _________ _________  

 

  (16,959,267) (16,149,426) 

  ======== ========  

 

GENERAL FUND                                                                                                                           

 

Balance brought forward   (16,149,426) (14,483,795) 

 
Deficit for the year    (809,841)  (1,665,631) 
 
  (16,959,267) (16,149,426) 
  ======== ======== 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
___________________             __________________ 

Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

  2019 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year   (809,841) (1,665,631) 

Bank interest received                    (945)                     (368) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes (810,786) (1,665,999) 

Decrease in deposits paid and prepayments 27,575 98,158 

(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable    47,284 (87,224) 

Decrease in accruals  (15,250) (255,580) 

Increase in receipt in advance                                                              98,650 244,230 

 

Cash used in operations (652,527) (1,666,415) 

Bank interest received                                                                         945  368 

 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (651,582) (1,666,047) 

 ------------- ------------- 

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from related companies 1,624,114 1,816,508 

Net advance from/(to) a subsidiary  (766,165)  154,568 

 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 857,949 1,971,076 

        ---------- ------------- 

 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 206,367 305,029 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL 697,579 392,550 

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 903,946 697,579 

 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

 The company is limited by guarantee and without a share capital.  The liability of each of its membership in the event of 

its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for the payment of the debts 

and liabilities of the company contracted before he ceases to be a member and of the costs, charges and expenses of 

winding up the company, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an 

amount not exceeding HK$10. 

 

2. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine.  

 

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is a company in which the company, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the board of directors, 

controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital.  The company’s interest 

in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value.  Results of the subsidiaries are 

accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and receivable. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, 

the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately 

in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

 (c) Related party 

For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  

 

(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Group and the Company if that person:  
 

(ii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group and the Company or of a parent of the Group 
and the Company;  

 
(ii) has control over the Group and the Company; or  

 
(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.  

 
(2) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:  
 

(i) the entity and the Group and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  

 
(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the other 

entity is a member).  
 

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  
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(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  
 
(viii) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group and the Company 

or an entity related to the Group and the Company. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the plan.  

 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  

 
(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from activities is recognised when the activities are completed. 

 
Management fee received is recognised when management services are rendered. 
 
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
rate of interest applicable. 

 

 (e)  Income tax 

 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for 

all temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when 

the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable 

profit (tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible 

temporary differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which 

it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

4 TAXATION 

 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as there is no estimated assessable 

profits for the year.  (2019:Nil). 

 

 The company had no significant unprovided deferred taxation at 31 March 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended. 

 

At 31 March 2020, the company has unused tax losses of HK$17,322,643 (2019:HK$16,518,190) available for offset 

against future profits.  No deferred tax assets has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.  

The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 

 

5 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  (2019:Nil) 

  

6. INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 

   2019 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Unlisted ordinary shares, at cost 10,000 10,000 

 Amount due from subsidiary 3,932,990 3,166,825 

  3,942,990 3,176,825 

  =======   ======= 
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 Name of Principal Description

 Country of Percentage 

 subsidiary activity of shares held incorporation of equity held 

 

 HKCFP Holdings Education Ordinary Hong Kong 100% 

   and Development  shares 

   Limited 

 

 Statement pursuant to Paragraph 18(4) of the Tenth Schedule of the Companies Ordinance. 

 

No group financial statements are prepared as the directors are of opinion that it would involve expense and delay out of 

proportion to the value to the members. 

 

 The following net aggregate amounts of profit/(loss) of the subsidiary has not been dealt with in the company’s accounts: 

 

   2019 

  HK$ HK$ 

 The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary's 

 profit/(loss) for the year (36,856) 40,031 

 Add: Post-acquisition loss brought forward (3,520,279) (3,560,310) 

 Net aggregate amount retained by the subsidiary (3,557,135) (3,520,279) 

  ======== ======== 

The subsidiary company’s financial statements had been audited by W. M. Moo, Certified Public Accountant. 

 

No qualification is contained in the report of the auditor of the subsidiary on its accounts for the year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

7. AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 

 The advances are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

8. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES 

     2019 

  Income Expenses 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 

 Deficit on Education Board 322,500 1,044,255 (721,755) (658,579) 

 Surplus/(Deficit) on Editorial Board 174,885 136,401 38,484 (6,353) 

 Surplus on Board of Conjoint  

  Examination 1,428,000 340,348 1,087,652 1,031,948 

 Surplus on Board of Vocational                 

  Training 520,000 22,882 497,118 488,077 

 Surplus on Specialty Board 1,005,000  348,164            656,836             635,029 

  3,450,385 1,892,050         1,558,335          1,409,122 

   ====== ======       ======        ====== 

 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s length 

basis, are summarised as follows: 

   2019 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Management fee income 3,100,000 3,100,000 

    ========   ======== 

 

10. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 30 October 2020. 
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                 File No. 22/14876267 

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2019/2020 

 HK$ 

 

Loss per accounts 809,841 

 

Less: Sundry expenses                                                                                                        2,600 

 Loss on exchange difference                                                                                      2,788 

 

Adjusted loss 804,453 

      ====== 

Statement of loss 

 

Loss brought forward 16,518,190 

Add: Loss for the year  804,453 

Loss carried forward 17,322,643 

 ======== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 
30 October 2020 
  

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company’s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2012, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other 

relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made 

available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

   

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the Company 

Ordinance during the year. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

   
________________________ ______________________ 
Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD  

The Executive Board has pleasure in submitting its report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2020. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Foundation is to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and education on 

family medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the Foundation for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

The Executive Board members during the year were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman)   

Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon Secretary)  

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon Treasurer)  

Dr. Ho Ka Ming (Appointed on 8 December 2019) 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit (Appointed on 8 December 2019) 

Dr. Ng Ventura, Lorna (Resigned on 8 December 2019) 

Dr. Ngan Po Lun (Resigned on 8 December 2019) 

 

In accordance with Article 52 of the Foundation's Articles of Association, all Executive Board members shall retire from the Board 

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 

 

INTERESTS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

Saved as disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the Foundation was a party and in 

which a member of the Executive Board had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or 

at any time during the year. 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the Foundation a party to any arrangements to enable the members of the Executive Board of the 

Foundation to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of, the Foundation or any other 

body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the Foundation were entered into or existed during the 

year. 

 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs W. M. Moo who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

On behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 22 October 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Foundation Fund (“the Foundation”) set out on pages 5 to 11, 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, 

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Foundation as at 31 

March 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong 

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Foundation in accordance with the HKICPA’s 

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

 

The Executive Board of the Foundation is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all 

information included in the Executive Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s 

report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing 

to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Executive Board and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements 

 

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal 

control as the Executive Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Board is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the Executive Board either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Foundation’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the Executive Board. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Foundation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves 

fair presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during 

my audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 22 October 2020 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

 

   2019 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Donation received    2,688,402 2,188,328 

Bank interest income  34,881 21,702 

Investment income                                                                              172,976                 164,028 

  

 3 (d) 2,896,259 2,374,058 

  -------------- -------------- 

Less: Expenses  

 

Audit fee  6,500 6,500 

Bank charges   2,955 2,065 

Legal and professional fee         341 565 

Loss on exchange difference  123,458 92,651 

Management fee  900,000 900,000 

Sponsor expense  444,866                    5,000 

 

  1,478,120 1,006,781 

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Surplus for the year  1,418,139 1,367,277 

  =======   ======= 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 

    2019 

 

 Note  HK$ HK$ 

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets 

Available-for-sale investments 6  3,957,217 5,101,771 

 

Current assets  

Interest receivable                    60,000 204,478      

Amount due from related companies 7 23,299,219 21,409,363 

Cash at bank   11,771,766 12,099,005 

 

  35,130,985 33,712,846 

  --------------- ---------------- 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  6,500 126,500 

Amount due to a related company                                                                  2,500                    2,500 

 

  9,000 129,000 

    ------ --------- 
 

Net current assets  35,121,985 33,703,846 

  _________ _________ 

 

  39,079,202 38,805,617 

  ======= ======= 

 

FOUNDATION’S FUND 

 

Balance brought forward  35,651,877 34,284,600 

 

Surplus for the year  1,418,139 1,367,277 

 

Investment revaluation reserve 8  2,009,186  3,153,740 

  

                                                       39,079,202 38,805,617 

                                                   =======           ======= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
______________________  ______________________ 

Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

  2019 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year 1,418,139 1,367,277 

Bank interest received                                                                          (34,881)  (21,702) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes 1,383,258 1,345,575 

Decrease in accounts receivable  144,478 123,731 

Increase in accruals      -                    (120,000) 

 

Cash generated from operations 1,527,736 1,349,306 

Bank interest received  34,881  21,702 

 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,562,617 1,371,008 

 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advances to related companies (1,889,856) (1,975,095) 

 

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (327,239) (604,087) 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL 12,099,005 12,703,092 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 11,771,766 12,099,005 

 ======== ======== 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

The Foundation is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its members, 

in the event of its being wound up while he is a member or within one year after he ceased to be a member for payment 

of the debts and liabilities of the Foundation contracted before he ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and 

expenses of winding up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an 

amount not exceeding HK$50. 

 

2. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Foundation is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is 

Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the Foundation is to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and 

education on family medicine. 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Available-for-sale investments 

 Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed equity securities that are designated as 

available for sale.  After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value, with gains or 

losses recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is 

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the 

statement of comprehensive income. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is 

lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined 

had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an 

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c) Related parties 

For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  

(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Foundation if that person:  

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Foundation or of a parent of the Foundation;  

(ii) has control over the Foundation; or  

(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.   

 

(2) An entity is related to the Foundation if any of the following conditions applies:  

(i) the entity and the Foundation are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  

(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the 

other entity is a member).  

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  

(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Foundation or an 

entity related to the Foundation. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are 

also related to the plan.  

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  
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(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

 Donation received is recognised on receipt basis. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 

rate of interest applicable. 

 

(e) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets 

and liabilities in foreign currencies at the year end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial 

position date.  All exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

4. TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as the Foundation is exempt from 

tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. 

 

5. EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Executive Board members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the Foundation during 

the year.  (2019:Nil) 

 

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 

   2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Listed equity securities, at market value  

 At 1 April 5,101,771 4,289,015 

 Surplus/(Deficit) on changes in fair value 

 charged to equity (1,144,554)  812,756 

 At 31 March 3,957,217 5,101,771 

  ======== ======== 
 

The available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value which is determined by reference to the bid price quoted 

in an active market. 

 

 

7. AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 

 

  Amount outstanding Maximum amount outstanding 

  At 31.3.2019 At 31.3.2020 during the year 

  HK$  HK$        HK$ 

 

 The Hong Kong College of 

   Family Physicians 1,753,228 2,079,828 2,079,828 

 HKCFP Education Limited 19,656,135 21,219,391 21,219,391 

  21,409,363 23,299,219  

   =========  =========  

 

 The advances are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 
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8. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE 

   2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Balance at April 1 3,153,740 2,340,984 

 

 Add: Surplus/(Deficit) on changes in fair value of investment                       (1,144,554)                      812,756 

 

 Balance at March 31 2,009,186 3,153,740 

     ====== ===== 

 

 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Material transactions with related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s 

length basis, are summarised as follows: 

 
  2019 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
Management fee paid 900,000                       900,000 

                                                                                                            =====                  ===== 
 

 

10 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

These financial statements were approved by the Executive Board Members on 22 October 2020. 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 

22 October 2020 

 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other board members and officials 

of the Foundation, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the Foundation’s financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Foundation and of the results and cash flows of the Foundation for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other 

relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made 

available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the Executive Board members received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to 

S383 of the Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

9. We confirm that the market value of the investment securities held by the company as at the statement of financial position 

date amounted to HK$3,957,217. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Executive Board  

 

 
 
 
  
  
_______________________ _______________________ 
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 



 

130 

 

HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the company’s registered office is Rooms 803-

4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activity of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of family medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 5 to the financial statements. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman)  

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon-Treasurer)  

 

In accordance with Article 9 of the company's Articles of Association, all directors shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves 

for re-election. 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

Saved as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the company or its holding 

company was a party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 

year or at any time during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company or its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company 

to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed during the year. 

 

AUDITOR 

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs W. M. Moo Certified Public Accountant, as auditor 

of the Company. 

 

 
On behalf of the Board 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 

HONG KONG, 22 October 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Holdings and Development Limited (“the Company”) set out on pages 

5 to 12, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of income and 

retained earnings and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 

2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards for Private Entities (“HKFRS for PE”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. 

 

Other information 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information 

included in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  I have nothing to report 

in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 

with HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as 

the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
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decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the directors. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair 

presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 

audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 22 October 2020 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

   2019 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Course income   2(c) 1,254,399 1,172,383 

Bank interest income  432 191 

Other income                                                                                1,150                         -  

  1,255,981 1,172,574 

    -------------   ----------- 

 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  6,500 6,500 

Bank charges  1,120 520 

Business registration fee  250 2,250 

Cleaning expenses                                                          -  360  

Depreciation  179,162 48,006 

Legal and professional fee  3,405 2,205 

Management fee  1,000,000 1,000,000 

Printing and stationery  885 3,659 

Rates and building management fee  46,033 44,526 

Repairs and maintenance  530 5,461 

Sundry expenses                                                                               7,700                        -  

Telephone and fax  6,336 4,990 

Utilities                                                                                   6,497                    7,334 

 

  1,258,418 1,125,811  

  ------------- -------------  

 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation  (2,437) 46,763  

 

Taxation 3 (34,419)  (6,732)  

 

Net profit/(loss) for the year  (36,856) 40,031  

 

Retained earnings at start of the year  (3,520,279) (3,560,310)  

 

Retained earnings at end of the year      (3,557,135)     (3,520,279) 

  =======   ======= 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 

   2019 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 5 996,800 124,284 

 

Current assets 

Prepayment and deposit paid    60 60 

Amount due from a related company 6 2,500   2,500 
Cash at bank and on hand  78,477 150,733 

 

  81,037 153,293 

   --------- ---------- 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  456,500 19,787  

Receipt in advance                                                          -  354,000  

Amount due to holding company  3,932,990 3,166,825  

Amount due to a related company 7 45,898 92,079  

Provision for taxation                                                            6,698                       6,698  

 

  4,442,086 3,639,389 

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Net current liabilities  (4,361,049) (3,486,096) 

  ________ ________ 

 

Total assets less current liabilities  (3,364,249) (3,361,812) 

 

Non-current liabilities 

Deferred tax 8  182,886  148,467 

 

  (3,547,135) (3,510,279) 

  ======= ======= 

 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES                                                                                                            

 

Share capital  9 10,000 10,000 

 

Retained earnings   (3,557,135) (3,520,279) 

 

  (3,547,135) (3,510,279) 

  ======= ======= 
 
 
 
 
 
                             

_______________________                     ______________________   
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 

 

 

   2019 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results before taxation  (2,437) 46,763 

Depreciation  179,162 48,006 

Bank interest received     (432)                  (191) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes  176,293 94,578  

Increase/(Decrease) in accruals  436,713              (31,382)  

Decrease in receipt in advance                                   (354,000)             (20,000)  

 

Cash generated from operations  259,006 43,196 

Bank interest received   432  191 

 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  259,438 43,387 

  ---------- ---------- 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance to a holding company  766,165 (154,568) 

Net advance from a related company                                        (46,181)             (38,600)  

 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES         719,984            (193,168) 

                     ----------             ----------- 

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment (1,051,678) (17,000) 

    ---------   ---------- 

 

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (72,256) (166,781) 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL  150,733 317,514 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 78,477 150,733 

 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine. 

 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for 

Private Entities (HKFRS for Private Entities) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.  They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   

 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as 

repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the statement of income and retained earnings in the period in 

which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in 

the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an 

additional cost of the asset. 

 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the statement of income and retained earnings is the 

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis at the following rates to write off the costs of the assets over their 

estimated useful lives: 

 

 Furniture, fixture and equipment 15% p.a. 

 Leasehold improvement 15% p.a. 

 

(b)        Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, 

the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately 

in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c)        Turnover 

Turnover represents course fees received. 

 

(d)        Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from professional courses is recognised when received. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 

rate of interest applicable. 
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(e)       Income tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for 

all temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when 

the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable 

profit (tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible 

temporary differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which 

it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

 (f)        Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern concept because the shareholders agree to 

provide adequate funds for the company to meet its liabilities as they fall due. 

 

3 TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements in view of the excess of the allowable 

losses brought forward over the estimated assessable profits for the year.  (2019:Nil) 

 

 The taxation charges is made up as follows: 

   2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Deferred tax 

 Current year 34,419 6,732 

  ===== ==== 

 

The taxation on the company’s profit/(loss) before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 

taxation rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 

 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation (2,437) 46,763 

       ====    ===== 

  

 Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2019:16.5%) (402) 7,716 

 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 63,980 14,653 

 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (34,419) (6,731) 

 Addition to/(Utilisation of) unrecognised tax losses                                                     5,260 (8,906) 

 Taxation charge                                                                                                         34,419 6,732 

  ===== ==== 

 

4 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  (2019:Nil)  
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

  Furniture,  

  fixture and Leasehold  

  equipment improvement Total 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 Cost  

 At 1.4.2019 635,626 881,345 1,516,971 

 Additions                                                                                      198,198 853,480 1,051,678 

 At 31.3.2020 833,824 1,734,825 2,568,649 

  ---------- ---------- ------------

 Accumulated depreciation 

 At 1.4.2019 632,892 759,795 1,392,687 

 Charge for the year                                                                      25,640                    153,522             179,162 

 At 31.3.2020 658,532 913,317 1,571,849 

  ---------- ---------- ------------- 

 Net book value 

 At 31.3.2020 175,292 821,508 996,800 

  ====== ====== ====== 

 At 31.3.2019 2,734 121,550 124,284 

   ==== ====== ====== 

 

6 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 

   Maximum amount 
  Amount outstanding outstanding during 
  At 31.3.2019 At 31.3.2020 the year 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 HFCFP Foundation     
 Fund    2,500                                 2,500                                       2,500 
  ====                                  ====                                       
  
 The advance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 

 

7 AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 

 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

 

8 DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation 

rate of 16.5%.  (2019:16.5%) 

 

 The deferred tax liabilities account is as follows:  2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 At 1 April 148,467 141,735 

 Charge to statement of income and retained  

  earnings for the year  34,419  6,732 

 

 At 31 March 182,886 148,467 

  ====== ====== 

 

At 31 March 2020, the company has unused tax losses of HK$2,974,952 (2019:HK$2,943,076) available for offset 

against future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams. 
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9 SHARE CAPITAL 

   2019 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Issued and fully paid: 

  10,000 ordinary shares 10,000 10,000 

    =====       ===== 

 

  

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s 

length basis, are summarised as follows: 

    2019 

 

   HK$  HK$ 

 

 Management fee paid   1,000,000 1,000,000 

   ======= ======= 

 

11 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY  

The company is a subsidiary of HKCFP Education Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is also 

regarded by the directors as being the company’s ultimate holding company. 

 

 

12 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 22 October 2020. 
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File No. 22/33523051 

HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2019/2020 

 

 HK$ 

 

Loss per accounts  2,437 

 

Less: Depreciation 179,162 

 

 (176,725) 

 

Add: Depreciation allowance 139,208 

 Commercial building allowance (Sch.1)                                                                              69,393 

 

Adjusted loss        31,876 

  ===== 

                                                                                                                                             

Statement of loss 

 

Loss b/f  2,943,076 

 

Add: Loss for the year                                                                                                                    31,876 

 

Loss c/f  2,974,952 

  ======== 

 

Depreciation allowance 

  Total 

  20% Pool allowance 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

W.D.V. b/f          22,167 
 
 
Additions (Sch. 1)                                                                                        198,198 
 
I.A. 118,919 118,919 
 
 101,446 
 
A.A. 20,289                          20,289 
 
W.D.V. c/f 81,157 

===== 
 139,208 
 ====== 
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  File No. 22/33523051  
  Sch. 1  
 
Commercial building allowance 
        HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction b/f 881,345 
   
Additions                                                                                                                          853,480 
 
Deemed cost of construction c/f 1,734,825 
   ======= 
 
Residue value b/f 595,007 
 
Additions 853,480 
 
A.A. (4%)  69,393 
 
Residue value c/f 1,379,094 
    ======= 
 
Additions to property, plant and equipment  
 
Leasehold improvement 
 
HKCSS WC Office Lobby construction                                                                          853,480 
  ====== 
 
Equipment 
 

Projectors HDMI System 91,284 

Air conditioner x 7 units 91,558 

Chairs x 25 units 5,254 

Shelf x 4 units 9,657 

Tralley x 2 units  445 
 
  198,198 
  ====== 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

22 October 2020 

 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company’s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong; 

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions 

undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other relevant records and 

related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the Company 

Ordinance during the year. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 

               

 

                       

                             

_______________________ _______________________ 

Chairman Hon. Treasurer 
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